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Edward O’Brien Limited

Directors’ report
for the year ended 31 March 2007

The directors have pleasure in submitting the annual report and financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2007

Results and business review
The Company did not trade 1n the yearunder review and accordingly no profit and loss account is presented

For part of the year under review the Company was a wholly owned subsidiary of GUS plc and then became a
wholly owned subsidiary of Experian Group Limited

The principal nisks and uncertainties facing the Company are set out within the group financial statements of
Experian Group Limited (see note 6)

Directors
The directors who served during the vear were

P A Atkinson
P G Cooper

Statement of directors’ responsibihities
The directors are responsible for preparing the annual report and the financial statements in accordance with
apphicable law and regulations

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year Under that law the
directors have elected to prepare the financial statements n accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice (Umited Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law) The financial statements are
required by law to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the profit or loss of the
Company for that period

In preparing those financial statements, the directors are required to
*  select smitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,
»  make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

e  state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any matenal departures
disclosed and explained in the financial statement, and

e prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it 1s mappropriate to presume that the
Company will centinue 1n business, in which case there should be supporting assumptions or qualifications as
necessary

The directors confirm that they have complied with the above requiements 1n preparing the financial statements

The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records that disclose with reasonable accuracy at any
time the financial position of the Company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the
Companies Act 1985 They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other iregulanties

By order of the board —
P G Cooper

Director
6 July 2007




Edward O’Brien Limited

Balance sheet
at 31 March 2007

Note 2007 2006
£2000 £000
Current asset
Amount owed by the parent undertaking 890 890
Net Assets 890 890
Capital and reserves
Called up share cap:tal 5 24 24
Profit and loss account 866 866
Equity Shareholders’ funds 890 890

For the year ended 31 March 2007 the Company was entitled to exemption from auditing 1ts accounts conferred
by section 249AA(1) of the Companies Act 1985 Members have not required the Company to obtain an audit
for the year ended 31 March 2007 in accordance with section 249B(2) of the Companies Act 1985

The directors acknowledge their responsibilities for

a} ensuring the Company keeps accounting records which comply with section 221 of the Companies Act
1985, and

b} preparing accounts which give a true and fair view of the slate of affairs of the Company as at the end of
its financial year, and of its profit and loss for the financial year in accordance with section 226 of the
Companies Act 1985, and which otherwise comply with the requirements of the Companies Act relating
to accounts, so far as applicable to the Company

The accounts have been prepared n accordance with the special provisions of Part VII of the Companies Act
1985 relating to small companies

The financial statements on pages 3 and 4 were approved by the Board on 6 July 2007 and are signed on 1its
behalf by

P G Cooper
Director




Edward O’Brien Limited

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2007

Accounting policies
The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, on a going concern basis 1n

accordance with Compantes Act legislation n force and applicable Accounting Standards in the United
Kingdom

Profit and loss account

The Company has not traded during the year and accordingly no profit and loss account 15 presented Any
expenses have been borne by the ultimate parent undertaking

Directors and employees

None of the directors received any emoluments from the Company during the year ended 31 March 2007
{2006 ml) There were no other employees

Group undertaking

The Company owns the whole of the issued share capital of GUS Limited {formerly Sleepyrest Limited), a
company mcorporated in England and Wales, which did not trade during the year Group financial statements
are not prepared, as permitted under Section 228 (2) of the Companies Act 1985, as the Company 15 stself a
wholly owned subsidiary of another company (see note 6)

Called up share capital

2007 2006
£000 £'000
Authorised:
40,000 Ordsnary shares of £1 each 40 40
Allotted and fully paid:
24,300 Ordmnary shares of £1 each 24 24

Parent and ultimate parent undertaking
The immediate parent undertaking 1s GUS Holdings Limited, a company incorporated 1in England and Wales

For part of the year under review the Company's ultimate pareni undertaking was GUS plc In October 2006,
GUS plc became a subsidiary of Experian Group Limited as a consequence of the separation of Expenian and
Home Retail Group, which were the two major divisions of GUS In December 2006, GUS plc changed its
name to Experian Finance plc

Experian Group Limited is mcorporated n lersey and 1ts registered office 1s 22 Grenville Street, St Heler,
Jersey, JE4 8PX It 15 the smallest and largest group in which the results of the Company for the year were
consolidated and copies of the group financial statements may be obtamned from the Company Secretary,
Experian Group Limited, Newenham House, Northemn Cross, Malahide Road, Dublin 17, Ireland
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136509

ATTENTION IS DRAWN TO THE

FACT THAT TWO SETS OF ACCOUNTS
WITH DIFFERENT COMPANY NUMBERS
MUST BE KEPT TOGETHER
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At the heart of Experian lies a vast store of
information - about consumers and how they
behave, about businesses and how they
perform, and about motor vehicles, insurance
policies and other valuable assets

Over the years, we have developed exceptional
skills in the management and safeguarding of
this information We have also gained a unique
understanding of the significance and value of
different types of information, and the ability to
apply this insight to everyday decisions. It has
opened up almost limitless possibilities.

At Experian, we harness information and use it
to empower businesses and consumers.
Whatever they want, however they want it,
we figure it out.

Experian Annual Report 2007 | O1
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Experian at a glance

Principal activities

Experian 15 dedicated to helping

crganisations and consumers make
Important and often time-critical
decisions with increased confidence
and control

Credit
Services

Organisations rely on us for help

Helping organisations
1o evaluate the risks
and rewards associated
with prowiding credit to
consumers and
businesses

In finding new customers and

developing successful relationships
with their existing customers
Consumers turn to us for help in
making more informed financial
and purchasing decisions

Decision
Analytics

We employ more than 13,000

"| Prowiding the analyt:cal

skills and specialist
software praducts that
enable organssations to
mcrease the speed and
quality of therr
decision-making

people through offices in 36
countries and support clients In
over 60 countries Our products
and services are grouped under four
principal activities Credit Services,
Decision Analytics, Marketing
Solutions and Interactive

Marketing
Solutions

Helping organisations
to find new customers
and to take advantage
of opportunities for
expanding existiing
relatignships

Interactive

Providing personal
credit information
to consumers and
helping guide them
10 the best deals on
milkons of products
and services

On an average day we process two
milhgn credit reference enquiries

02 | Expenan Annual Report 2007
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£1 5bn

Our fraud prevention
\ tools helped clients in the
\ UK to identify over <

i
]
]
f

£15 billon of potential

Contribution to Group sales

Highiights of 2007 i e Sales by region

= \ fraud last year

- T,

-~ e s

A

Sales up 4% to $4,520m, organic growth of 3%

EBIT up 11.a6 to $420m, with margin up
150 basns points

A;qmred credit bureaux in Canada and Estonia

Resmence of business mode!l demonstrated in
UK and US

All fnanoal numbers relate to contnuing acives only with growth rates a1 constant exchange rates

Sales up 16% to $392m, organic growth of 15%

EBIT up 27% to $136m, with margin up
320 basis points

Further contract wins during the year with established
clients such as HSBC and Bank of Amerca

Building our presence in emerging markets such as
india and Russta

Al fmanaal numbers refate 10 contiruing aciavities only with growth rates a1 constant exchange sates

Sales up 13% to $728m, organic sales unchanged

EBIT up 24% to $73m, with margin up
90 basis points

Repositoning tnto digital media continues

Product innovauon accelerated

All finanaal nrmbers relate 10 conbnuing actvties only with growth rates at constant exchange rates

Sales up 40% to $784m, organic sales up 23%
EBIT up 50% to $173m, with margin up 110 basis points

Consumer Direct and PriceGrabber performed strongly,
LowerMyBIlls impacted by weakness in US sub-prime
mortgage market In latter part of year

Businesses warking closely together to optimise returns on
marketing spend, Interactive’s largest cost

All linancial numbers meiate o contnung JCIviDes only with growth rates al comitant exchange rates

24m

Each manth, 24 millon
i people wisit our ;

Interactive websites 5
. Interactive webs # Experian Annual Report 2007 | 03
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Credit Services

Credit Services helps
organisations to evaluate the
risks and rewards associated
with providing credit to
consumers and businesses. We
enable clients to take better
informed lending decisions and
to make it easier and quicker
for their own customers to
obtain finance.

Our credit databases hold information about the
credit status of more than 300 million consumers
and about 30 mithon businesses around the world
The information 1s collected from publicly avalable
sources and from lending organisations It 1s used
by our clients to confirm the identity of applicants
and to help them decide whether to provide credit
and on what terms It also assists them mn
determining what measures to take when a
customer fails to fulfil the terms of a credit
agreement or other obligation

The collection and use of credit information,
particularly about individuals, 1s strictly controlled
by law We go to great lengths to ensure that we
comply fully with the regulations that apply within
each of the countnes in which Experian operates
We also play a leading role in helping consumers
to understand how credit Information 1s used

and how to avoid the penis of fraud

and over-indebtedness

Our long experience of managing very large credit
databases has resutted in us becoming the host for
other types of mformation too In the US and UK,
for example, we maintain information on over 600
millon motor vehicles, enabling consumers, traders
and lenders to establish the true history of used
vehicles We also support the UK insurance
industry with a database of previous insurance
claims, allowing companies to confirm instantly
the claims history of new applicants In France,

we help organisations wanting to outsource
actiities such as the processing of cheque and
debrt card transactions

04 | Experian Annual Report 2007




Case study

3is the UK's Ieading mobile media It takes Expenan, on 'average, less than two seconds to
company, and the group has over 10 17 % et ey s s i
million customers worldwide. In

2003, 3 launched the first 3G

network in the UK, to support the

new generation of mobile phones.

Four years on, the company is the

market leader in 3G, providing

customers with access to an

unrivalied range of voice, video,

internet and information services

through a single mobile device.

35 services are sold through a network of almost 9,000
retail outlets, including thetr own high street shops,
internet and many independent retailers  To support its
rapid growth, 3 needs the confidence of knowing that it
15 taking on new customers who will fulfu their credit
commitments In the competitive mabile phone market,
customers expect instant credit decisions, with iImmed ate

access to the mobile network and to leave the shopwath  *with over 500,000 applications for credit each year we

a highly valuable 3G mobule phone have 1o be confident in our ability to make the nght

decisions, quickly”, explains Mike Eliott, Head of Credit
Experian provides 3 with a range of services to support Risk “Expenan has become an important partner 1o us,
its need for rapnd decmon-maklng at the point of sale helping us 10 grow our business and bnng new and
Central to this 13 Experian’s credit database, which better services to the mobile madia market *

combines publicly avatlable informauon, such as the

electoral register, with detalled historical information i
from lending organisations about how consumers have

fulfilled their past and current obligations New :
customers are checked against this database to confirm

their identity and, with the help of Expenan’s Delphi

scoring system, to predict the likelhood of them

becoming a ‘good’ account if the application 1s accepted

As with all "instant credit’ industnes, fraud 1s an ever-

present danger and understanding the applicant’s

ability to pay s vital information for 3 Using .

Expenan‘s fraud prevention tool, Detect, 3 i5 .

able 1o hughlight potenual frauds at the - -

sarne ttme that the application 15 . .
processed Detect uses an extensive

database of previous credit ! \
apphcations to ideniify

discrepancies tnh new applications,

prowiding 3 with the information ’
to be able to further validate !
tugher nisk applications '

3 receves over 500,000
apphcations for credit each year .

-

1

I 05
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Decision Analytics

Decision Analytics provides the
analytical skills and specialist
software products that enable
organisations to increase the
speed and quality of their
decision-making.

Using Experian’s products, clients are able to assess
very quickly the potential nisks and rewards
assoclated with particular actions They can
determine, for example, the suability of a
customer for additional loan products or the
probability of an indwidual responding to a
particular credit offer They can also assess the
Iikelihood of a customer account falling into arrears
if a credit mit s increased

Expertan’s credit scorecards use well-proven
statistical techniques to predict the behaviour of
consumers based upon their historical performance
and the characteristics declared on their application
forms This helps to ensure that decisions are taken
farly and impartially Used in conjunction with our
specialist software, clients can test and fine-tune
different lending strategies Changes in strategy
can then be implemented quickly, with the
confidence that they will be reflected in dealings
with all customers throughout the orgarnisation

Experian also supports clients in the constant fight
against fraud Consumers today expect to be able
to make instant purchases with ther credit and
debit cards, even remotely over the Internet or by
telephone They also want fast decisions when
applying for crednt facilities, personal ioans or other
services We help by instantly venfying a customer’s
identity and alerting our clients to discrepancies In
the information provided

06 | Expenian Annual Report 2007




Case study

HSBC is one of the world’s largest
banking and financial services
organisations, with over 125 million
customers in 82 countries and
territories.

Everyday, HSBC makes millions of decisions in the
management of its customers’ accounts and applications
It may be to authorise a payment to faclitate an Internet
or in-stare purchase, to cansider an application for a new
or increased credit imit, to determine the most
appropriate product to offer, or to decide whether a
customer can access money from a cash machine

The ablity to take those decisions quickly and accurately
15 critical 1o the success of HSBC's different delivery
channels and operations around the world Just as
important 1s that each deciston 1s taken in a umely,
consistent and fair manner, wherever they are made and
whatever the circumstances

Faced with increasingly complex requirements and
customer demands, H5BC chose Expenan’s Strategy
Management software to assist in the delivery of mission-
entical solutions Strategy Management 1s a sophuisticated
business tool, already used by over 600 organisations
worldwide, which enables organisations ta automate or
stmplify large volumes of decisions 1t does this by
assessing relevant information and customer requests
against a wide array of regulatory, business and .
commercial requirements and abjectives

“Expenan’s Strategy Management solution will become
an integral part of our global business”, explains Chris
Hawkes, Head of Group Retall Credit & Risk at HSBC "It
Is enabling us to achieve consistency in decistan-making
across HSBC' derse operauons, whilst improving the
speed and gquality of our deasions For our customers, 1t
means that we can prowide quicker decisions, offer a
wider range of products and provide options that are
more relevant to their particular needs and
crcumstances In short, it 1s an essential component to
delivering high quality customer service ”

“Once we have rolled 1t out fully across our business,
Strategy Management will be helping us make the
hilhons of decisions we need to make each year ”

Chris Hawkes, Head of Group Retall Credit & Risk, HSBC

Expenian and HSBC have a longstanding relatonship
spanning 21 years and six coniinents

*Like HSBC, Experian operates globally, but with a strong
local focus on the markets in which it operates in order
to provide local solutions”, says Chris Hawkes “In
Expenan we have a trusted global partner with the
experience and technalogy to support our business gaing
forward *

\ Expenan’s Strategy ;

S Management software 15 .
already being used by 600 .
organisations worldwide

| 07
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Marketing Solutions

Marketing Solutions helps
organisations to find new
customers and to take
advantage of opportunities for
expanding existing
relationships. We enable our
clients to communicate with
prospective customers in the
most effective way and with the
most appropriate offer. It might
be by email, post, telephone,
direct response television or
even text messaging.

Experian owns and manages very large databases of
information about the locaton, lifestyle and attitudes
of consumers These databases include publicly
avallable mformation, as well as the results of
large-scale consumer surveys The mnformation
provides clients with considerable insight into the
purchasing preferences of consumers In total,
Experian holds consumer marketing information on
about 130 milllon households globally

Expenan assists clients in planning and executing
campargns across all forms of media channel, from
emailing to newspaper and television advertismg

By combining our information resources with our
skills 1n data analysis, we can help chents predict who
1s most likely to respond to a given offer and the
best channel through which to communicate

As well as managing our own databases, we build
and maintain marketing databases for chents These
combine the client's own customer records with
Experian data to provide a comprehensive profile of
each customer They enable organisations to
communicate with therr customers in a very personal
and relevant way, as well as helping them dentfy
individuals with similar characteristics who have the
potential to become new customers

Experian also keeps chients abreast of changes in the
wider marketplace through our research and
forecasting services We help them to measure the
potential market opportunity for particular products
and services, and to identify profitable locations for
new branches or new sales intiatives



Case study

Crate and Barrel is recognised across
the United States as a leading multi-
channel retailer of housewares and
furniture. The company was
founded in 1962 as a family business
and today has more than 150 stores
and over 7,000 associates .

’

nationwide. During this time, it has
also become a major catalogue and
Internet retailer. .

Direct marketing has been a key ingredient In Crate and
Barrel's success and, for more than 15 ‘years, the
company has looked to Expenan 1o help drive its
catalogue and retal campaigns

Underpinning these campaigns 1s the confidence that
Crate and Barrel's customer database 15 operating
efiectively and that it 15 successtully reaching the nghs
customers Expenian provides a range of list processing
services to ensure that the company’s mailing lists are
accurate and up-to-date, as well as being comphant with
postal regulatrons and properly formatted for quick and
easy processing through the mall

Prospecting for new customers 15 a key prionty Crate and
Barrel needs access to potential customers with simular
behaviours and Iifestyles as its own, as well as a good
understanding of these customers so that it can market
to them in the most effective way By participating in
Experian’s Z-24 cooperative database, Crate and Barrel
has access to information about milions of avid
catalogue shoppers, enabling the company to continue
growing its customer base Its prospecting effarts have
also been supported by expert analysis from Experian of
the responses to campaigns This helps Crate and Barrel
1o identify those consumers that will be most respensive
to its direct marketing and to determine the most
appropnate messages and offers

With the adoption of new online sales channels, Crate
and Barre! has also needed an email service delivery
solution that can help drive the same success in the
digital world that 1t has experienced with direct mail The
company has therefore adopted Expenan's CheetahMail
services to delwer all of 1ts email

marketing offers

Experian has supported
Crate and Barrel for .
; . more than 15 years *

- - -

.

“The partnership with Experian has been a long and
successful one”, savd Gordon Segal, Founder and CEQ
of Crate and Barrel “Expenan has helped Crate and
Barrel maintain a strong refationship with lifefeng
customers, while ensuring that we cantinue 1o grow cur
customer base “
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Interactive

Interactive is a trusted
intermediary on the Internet,
helping to guide consumers to
the best deals on millions of
products and services. We also
offer consumers the ability to
view their credit report on line
and to monitor changes to their
credit records. Each month, we
attract over 24 million visitors
to our consumer websites.

Expenan owns a number of Internet businesses that
assist consumers in secunng the nght deal
LowerMyBIlls com, for example, heips consumers to
identify the most appropriate offers on mortgages
and other financial products PriceGrabber com
provides information that compares miilions of
different products, from computers and cameras to
clothing and furniture ClassesUSA guides
consumers to the most appropriate oniine education
courses These websites provide a free service that
helps people to lower the cost of dally Imng We
earn our revenues from chents, who pay us for each
sales lead we generate for them

Expenan also provides consumers with the ability to
view thetr credit file securely over the Internet This
file contains the information that lenders see when
deciding whether to give someaone a loan, mortgage
or credit card Consumers can check their file at any
time to ensure 1t accurately reflects their credit
history Regular alerts from Expernian keep them in
touch with changes to the file and help protect
them from becoming a victim of identity theft

Interactive businesses

Consumerinfo com PriceGrabber com
www consumerinfo com www pricegrabber com

LowerMyBills com www pricegrabber co uk

www lowermybills com FreeCreditReport com

ClassesUSA www freecreditreport com

www classesusa com CreditExpert
www creditexpert co uk

10 | Expenan Annual Report 2007




Case study

MSN is one of the world’s largest
Internet portals, giving millions of
people access to a range of specialist
sites and services. Its financial
section, MSN Money, is one of the
most popular personal finance
websites in the UK.

In 2004, MSN Money became a partner for Expenan’s
online CreditExpert service, expanding on a successful
and established relationship with Experian in the
United States

CreditExpert gives consumers uniimited online access to
their Experian credit report, enabiing them to see the
same information that financial organisations use when
making decsions about lending money

In return fer a monthly subscription fee, CreditExpert
users can monitor changes in therr report and check that
the information 1t contains 1s up to date and accurately
reflects their situation Emar or text message alerts are
sent to them If a sigrificant change occurs that might
indicate atiempted identify fraud

Subscnibers also have access to helphnes staffed by
experts In credit matters and identity fraud, as well as a
lbrary of information about credit-related and identity
fraud 1ssues

"Credit monitoring 1s still a relatively new concept for
consumers n the UK, but with nsing personal debt,
soanng house prices and wide publicity around the risk
of 1D fraud, t 15 set to become part of everyday life”,
says Alastar Bruce, Semor Content Manager for

MSN Money

"CreditExpert 1s 3 logical extension of the services we
provide through MSN Money Visitors to our site can now
learn how to take control of their credit history, which
helps them to get the credit they need in future and,
more wnportantly, guard against idenuty fraud “

MSN 1s one of several partners with whom Expenan
waorks to find new ways to spread the message about the
importance of credit report monitoring More than 2,000
websiies have agreements to promote CreditExpert in
the UK

Alastair Bruce, Senior Content Manager, MSN Money

.

2,000

Over 2,000 websites in the
UK have agreements to
promote CreditExpert

3
s

il
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Chairman’s statement

Experian has made a good start in its
new life as an independent company
The demerger last October was well
received by shareholders, while the
£800m of new equity that we raised
from investors will provide the
flexibility to fund future growth
opportunities Since then, we have
made progress operationally and
strategically, while delivering a fifth
consecutive year of double-digit
revenue and profit growth

Your Board has announced a dividend of 11 5 cents,
gving a full-year dividend of 17 cents

At the time of demerger, we talked about Expersan’s
strategy for achreving long-term, sustainable growth Qur
am 15 to continue to deliver mid to high single-chgit
organic sales growth each year and to accelerate this
through complementary acquisitions We also remain
firmly focused on tight cost control throughout our
operaticns, in order to reinvest the savings in new
products and new markets, while maintaining or
improving our profit margin

1 am pleased to say that we successfully harnessed all our
key drivers of growth this year For example, we won
significant new contracts with clients such as Bank of
Amenca, HSBC and GE Meney We deveioped more than
20 new products, covering all areas of our business We
strengthened our position in new market sectors, Including
government, healthcare and tefecommunications We
extended our operations into other countries such as India
and Poland And we acquired further complementary
businesses to accelerate our entry into new markets and
new product areas

We also conunued to attract and retain talented people
throughout all parts of the business | am especially
pleased that we have been able to appoint such a strong
Board to take the Group forward Qur recent
appomtments have ensured that the Board has an
excellent blend of skills and experience, gained
Internationally and across a wide range of market sectors

One of our cther early acuons as an independent company
was ta set out explicitly our social responsibilities These
range from ensuning that our data 15 protected effectively
10 reducing our greenhouse gas emissions We believe that
Experian’s. products and services contribute strongly 1o a
healthy economy, by helping businesses to build successful
customer relationships and enabling censumers to make
more Informed purchastng decisions

Ultimately, Experian’s success fies in the skills and energies
of the people who work for us and 1 would tike to
acknowledge thew achievements and 1o thank them for
their tremendous support In particular, | would hke to
recognise the extraordinary contribution of John Saunders,
our Chief Executive of Global Operations, whe has recently
retired after 24 years with the bustness

I hope you will emjoy reading this first annual report from
Expenan and that, ke me, you wall be pleased with our
progress this year

John Peace
Chairman

22 May 2007

12 1 Expenian Annual Report 2007




Highlights of our year

Demerger completed
Experian became an independent
company, hsted on the

London Stock Exchange,
successfully raising

£800m to support

future growth

tnitiatives

Deepening client

relationships

HSBC and Bank of America were
among many long-estabiished clients
to award major new contracts o
Expenan

Expanding
geographically

Experian now
has offices in
36 countnes
around the
world foltowing
the opening of
our first office
in India

Product innovation
TrueTouch was one of more than

20 new products launched dunng the
year, 1t classifies the UK's 46 million
adults according to their hkely
response to different methods of
communrication

Developing

new sectors

Qur CreditExpert service,
which enables consumers
to manage their own
personal credit
information, provided
over three million

credit reports 10 UK
subscrbers last year
following 11s introduction
from the US 1n 2003

Complementary
acquisitions

We made several acquisitions during
the year, including credit bureaux in
Canada and Estorua and marketing
businesses around the world, n order
to complement our existing businesses
and accelerate

their growth

Investing in people

As part of the demerger, Experian
employees were granted shares 1o
enable them 10 associate even more
closely with our goai of bullding
shareholder value over the long term

Investing In data
information 1s at the

heart of what Expenan

does and we are

always looking to

acquire new sources In

April 2007, we agreed

to acquire Hitwise, which

provides data on how people use the
Internet

Investing in technology

Secure and efficient data processing is

vital to our success and last year we

began consolidating our three major US

data centres into two, induding the

bunkered secure state-of the-art centre
In Mckinney,
Texas

Expenan Annual Report 2007 | 13
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Interview with Don Robert, Chief Executive Officer

“We have 50 many great
opportunities that probably

our biggest challenge is deciding
which ones to focus on next ”
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How have things changed for Expenan since
ganing independence?

For the great majority of us at Expenan it has been
business as usual We have a clear strategy for growth,
which we're continuing to implement with enthusiasm
and confidence The only significant change 15 that most
of our employees are now shareholders, which was the
result of a grant of shares at the time of the demerger
For me this was one of the best outcomes of Experian's
independence It means that our people have a real stake
in the future of the company and can align themselves
even mare closely to our goal of creating value for
shareholders through susiained profitable growth

Were you pleased wrth the Group’s performance
last year?

Yes, | was dehghted with our performance It was our
fifth consecutive year of double-digit sales and profit
growth, which 15 a significant achievemnent by any
standards We did exactly what we said we would do
We delivered strong organic growth, we improved our
margins, we achieved strong cash generation and we
continued to deliver against our strategic objectives Just
as important 5 that It was a balanced performance,
which came from all our principal geographies

Where do you see the best future growth
opportunities for Expenan?

Experian 15 well positioned to take advantage of many
long-term growth trends In our core credit markets, we
are seeing government departments and companies in
sectors such as telecommunications and healthcare
wanting to make use of the experttse we first developed
in financial services Fraud prevention 1s one example of
how we are successfully transferring this expertise to
different market segments We are also seeing clients
wanting to communicate with their own customers over
multiple communication channels and to switch more of
their advertising expendsture to new media This 15 good
for our marketing businesses and enables us to capitalise
on investment 0 services such as email delivery and
market research The continunng growth of the Internet s
creating remendous opportunities for our Interactive
businesses as consumers make greater yse of this
medum for informavon and purchasing And, of course,
we are also seeing increasing demand for our skills from
emerging markets such as China, india, Laun America
and Russia, which 15 helping to drive our geographic
expansion Expenian is a bustness with muttiple

growth drivers

1

A
™, Last year alone we rolled out
- over 20 new producis

.

What are going to e .

be the main challenges . .
for Expenan going forward? |
We have 50 many great opportunities that probably our
biggest challenge 15 deciding which ones to focus on
next As with any business, 1ssues can occasionally
surface that are beyond our ¢ontrol, but we have the
advaniage of not being ovedy dependent on any one
geography, client, channel 6r economy for our success
One challenge we face all the time though is the need
for talented people to support our growth plans We are
a people business in thesreal sense of that word and we
pride ourselves on being able to attract employees with
the skills and ambittor necessary 10 develop and grow
our business Tatent management 1s cne of our top
priorities and mdeeﬁ our talent plans are reguiarly
reviewed by the Group Board

1T e =

How 1s Experian preparing for the future?

By being in the night markets with the nght products and
the night people leadership Innovation 15 key 1o our
business and ensures that we continue to provide clients
with marketsdeading solutions Last year alone we rolled
out over 20 new products We are also expanding into
new geographtes to create future platforms for growth
and to enable us to support chients on a global basis We
are continually nvesting 1n our future - in people, in
products, in acguistiions and in our infrastructure

What do you think Expenian will look hke in

five years’ time?

we'll be bigger, with a greater presence In more
countries Our clients will be even more diverse and we
will be firmly established in many different sectors
beyond our onginal financial services and reiailing
markets We will have an increasing number of clients
who rely on us to deliver wide-ranging sclutions across
many different geographies Our Deciston Analytics
products will have becomne the global standard in

their respective miches and will be deeply embedded
within our chents’ decision-making processes at an
enterprise-wide level We will be a recognised leader :n
all types of customer acquisition through our Interactive
and Marketing businesses And many more consumers
will have Experian websites "bookmarked” as then
favourite sites for saving money and making important
financial deasions

What I1s it about Experian that makes you

feel most proud?

Without question, our people Whenever | visit an
Experian office, wherever it 1s in the world, | am struck
by the energy and enthusiasm of the employees | meet
We are fortunate in having a great team of committed
people, who | know share my optimusm about the future
for Experian

Experian Annual Report 2007 | 15

.



Introduction | Business review | Governance ! Financial statements

Business review
Overview

Nature of busmess

Experian 1s a global ieader in providing
information solutions to business clients
and consumers

We help organisations to find new customers and develop
and manage existing relationships by providing data,
deasion-making solutions and processing services We also
help consumers to understand, manage and protect therr
personal information and hetp them make more informed
purchasing decsions

Experian’s vision 1s that our people, data and technology
become a necessary part of every major consumer
economy around the world

Data At the core of Expernan are comprehensive databases
of credit and marketing information on both consumers
and businesses These databases, denved from both public
and private sources, contain extensive high gualrty
mnformation that not only has historical depth, but aiso
significant breadth across vanous types of data The
comprehensive portfolio of data maintained by Expenan
makes us a partner of choice for many clients as we offer
more information than any single competitor

Decsions Building on this foundation of data, Expenan
uses praprietary analytical tools to analyse and interpret the
data and 1o help business clients to turn raw data into
critical decisions in a timely and consistent manner Our
tools also help consumers to make mare informed financial
and purchasing decisions more quickly

Distnbution Expenan has a very broad distribution network
helping both business clients and consumers We sell to
chients in over 6Q countnes around the world, m many
different markets inciugling the financial services, retall,
telecommunications, automptive and public sectors This
broad distnbution platform 1s unmatched wathin the global
information solutions industry .

As described on pages 4 to 11, Expenian has four princpat
actmities Credit Services, Decision Analytics, Marketing
Solutions and Interactive Our business 1s managedona -
geographic basis with the three key regions being the
Americas, the UK and Ireland, and Europe, Middle East,
Afnica and Asia Pacific (EMEA/Asia Pacific) This structure
enables Experian to understand the different needs and
constraints of each local market and to serve both domestic
and international clients effectively within each region

Additional detalled infarmation on Expenan 1s available in
“Explaiming Expenan” which can be viewed on our Group
website 3t www experiangroup com

.

Markets in which Expenan operates

Experian has a wrdespread and balanced portfolio by

product type, by vertical market served and by country
served As examples

= |n the year to 31 March 2007, 44% of sales came
from Credit Services, 129% from Decision Analytics,

* In the year to 31 March 2007, 58% of sales came
from the Amenicas, 25% from UK and ireland and

21% from Marketing Solutions and 23%
from Interactive

17% from EMEA/AsIa Pacific

Finanaal services clients account for 53% of our sales,
followed by 14% n direct-to-consumer, 11% for retail
and home shopping, 7% from telecommunications,

utlities and insurance and the balance from

government, publishing and media and automotive

16 | Expenan Annual Report 2007
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85*

* We have over 100,000 chents, of which the top ten Competitive position . 85% of our top 50

account for 17% of sales and the top 50 chents 36% Although we have " clients have been

of sales COI’I‘IDETI'(OFS in- each of our ‘\\ doing business with

principat dctivities, there Is no " Experian for at least o
. single competrtor capable of T five years -7
T offering the broad range of products e e et
- and solutions that Experian 1s able to
PPN provide 1o domestic and multinational chents

. around the world on the same scale

There 15 limuted, if any, public information available on
the market share of each of Experian’s competitors in

* We employ more than 13,000 people with offices each geographic region and across each principal actvity
n 36 countries tn particular, because of the breadth of Experian‘s
= We own and operate consumer credit bureaux in 14 products offered around the world, we often compete
countries and business credit bureaux m 7 countnes against niche local providers of services in our markets
However, there are a number of larger and readly
* We dlassify one bifion consumers globally by identfiable companies that we view as our key
socio-demograpic type In over 25 countries competitors, which are summarised below

around the world

Credit Services there are two other national consumer
As a result of tius diversity, Experian is not overly credit bureaux in the US (Equifax and TransUnion} In the
dependent on any one geogrephy, client, channel or UK, Expenan 1s the clear market leader m consumer
economy While Experian as a whole is cleariy dependent g1 with mainly local competiion elsewhere Dun &

on the economic environments in which we operate, OUT  gradstreet 15 the only giobal business credit competitor
broad portfolio of products and markets served gives us

some resiliznce when our major markets weaken New Deciston Analytics the market leader in the US 1s Faw

products aiso affect Experian's performance, as does our  158ac, outside the US, Experian 15 the major player, facing

success (h gaining share in our chosén markets mainly fragmented local competition

“Explaining Expenan” detalls some of the ecanomic Marketing Solutions shere are some large competiiors in

indicators that Expenan monitors the US (such as Acuom and Harte-Hanks) but
competriuon elsewhere 1s local, fragmented and often
specialist

Interactive Expenan is the clear market leader in seliing
credit reports and services direct to consumers ahead of
Equifax, TransUnion, Fair Isaac and other specialist
providers Qur sales are more than twace the size of any
of our competrtors The online lead generation market 1§
fragmented and Expenan has strong market positions in
our chosen areas of operation
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Overview cont

Growth drivers
Expenan 1s well posioned to benefrt from a number of
key drivers of long-term growth These include

« Global growth in consumer credit this leads to
increased demand for data from our credit bureaux
and increased use of our Decision Analytics’ tools to
help clients control credit risk and prevent fraud

« Increased use of the Internet by consumers and
businesses to both research and buy products and
services, companies are switching more of therr
marketing spend to the Internet, which helps our
Interactive and Marketing Solutions actvities

All acquisitions must deliver a
mimmum 10% post-tax return

* Increase In mult-channel >
marketing companies are using over time <
more channels 1o communicate
with therr customers - away from mass  ~ .. -

-, -

media such as broadcast and print and
towards emall, the Internet, SMS and interactve TV
Qur newer Marketing Solutions activities benefit from
this trend as we help clients to target the nght
customer, with the nght message, through the

night channel

Increase 1n demand from new vertical markets chents
In sectors such as telecormmunications, automotive and
government want 10 Use the same data and tools that
Expenian has successfully deveioped for the financial
services Industry

 Increase in demand from new and emerging high
growth geographies as the use of consumer credit,
for exampie, increases in areas such as Eastern Europe,
Asia Pacific and Laun Amenca, this will drive demand
for Expenian’s data and decision tools, although it is
difficult to gauge the ulimate size of some of
these markets

18 | Experian Annual Report 2007

10"




Corporate objectives and strategy

To fulfill Experian’s vision and to
capitalise on the growth opportunities
described above, we are focusing on
the following initiatives

. * Dnving organic growth through
" .- Deeper client relationships
- Gepgraphic expansion
- Prodirct innovaton
- Vertical E"xpansmn
We aim 1o deliver mid to high single-digit organic sales
growth each year ..

« Accelerating growth through complementary
acquisitions, which bnng us new data, technology,
products or clients, or enable us to grow In new vertical
and geographic markets Qur goal 1s Yo have about haff
of our sales growth each year from acqulsions, subject
to targets meeting our strict strateqic and financial
criteria All acquisitions must deliver a mimimum 10%
post-tax return over time

Delivering operating leverage 1o maintain or improve
EBIT margins We focus on cost control throughout our
operations, with the savings then reinvested in new
products and new markets We iook to drive both
revenue and cost synergies across the Group

The key performance indicators on pages 20 and 21 show
a historical perspective on how Experian has performed
against these initiatives, while the operational review on
pages 22 0 29 discusses how Expenan has done in 2007

Key resources

Key to delvering these corporate objectives 1s our ability
to continue to Invest in our three key resources — people,
data and technology

People

We employ more than 13,000 people with offices 1n 36
counines We prde oursefves on atiracting, developing

and retaining talented, ambitious people who deliver a

quality senvice for our clients and grow ourbusiness

Expenan iwests heavily (n ensuring our employees Fféve\_
the right environment and skills 1o do their best work We
also endeavour to create the nght opportunities for them
10 apply and develop these skills The management of
tatent 1s one of our 10p prionties

Succession planming 15 used to ensure that appropriate
leadership resources are n place 1o achieve our objectves,
the plans are regularly reviewed by the Group Board Two-
way communication s also central to our business
Employees have a regular opporiunity to give therr views
through the annual employee survey, which 1s reviewed by
senior leaders and local tearns and acted on accordingly

Data

At the core of Expenan are comprehensive databases of
credit and marketing information on both consumers and
businesses The broad portfoho of data maintained by
Experian makes us a partner of choice for many chents as
we offer more information than any single competitor

We invest heawily each year in maintaining complete,
accurate and up-to-date information, while adding new
data sources, where possible, which wall further help
clents Expenian has a feadership position as the trusted
steward of much sensitive information and we have an
obligation to protect this - both to dients who are the
source of much of this data and to consumers who are
the subjects of the data As a result, we operate very
ngorous security and control policies

Technology

Experian’s information technology systems are
fundamenial to our success They are used for the
storage, processing, access and delivery of the data that
forms the foundation of our business, and for the
development and delivery of the value-added solutions
provided to clients

Much of the technology used by Experian and provided
to clients 15 developed, maintained and supported by in-
house teams across our vanous locations We operate
conunual mamntenance and management of our
information technology systems, inciuding the need to
integrate existing and acquired businesses

13,000

We employ more ;
* than 13,000 people /

b

. S

. -

T Expenan Annuat Report 2007 | 19




Introduction | Business review | Governance | Financial statements

Key performance indicators

As explained in more detail on page
19, Experian’s objectives are to drive
organic growth, accelerate this growth
through complementary acquisitions
and maintain or improve margins The
following indicators are the key ones
that the Board and management team
MOonItor to assess our Success In
achieving our objectives

Drnive organic growth

Organtc growth increased by 8% m the year to 31 March
2007 with strong safes growth across all three regions,
reflecting the benefits of Expenan’s portfolio of actmties
around the world

Make complementary acquisitions

In the year to 31 March 2007, Experian increased its sales
from continuing activities by 14% at constant exchange
rates Acquisitions accounted for 6% of the sales growth,
largely reflecting the contnbution from PriceGrabber

and ClartyBlue

Maintain or improve margins

in the year 10 31 March 2007, Expernian increased 1is EBIT
by 11% at constant exchange raies to $825m EBIT
margin increased by 80 basis points to 21 8%, a further

year of progress

We achieved
8% organic
sales growth In
the year
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Maximise EBIT conversion to cash

Experan aims 1o convert at least 85% of its EBIT into
operating cash flow each year, even after significant
investment (n growth opportunities In the year to 31
March 2007, Expernan converted 97% of EBIT to
operating cash flow

Increase sales per employee

Qur people are one of our key resources and sales per
FTE 15 a key measure of gur productivity In the year to
31 March 2007, sales per FTE increased by 12%

ki -

Expand geographic reach -

Experian currently serves both local and muttinationat
chents in over 60 countries around the world To ad this,
Experian acquired two consumer credit bureaux durng
the year (in Canada and Estonia) bringing the total to 14,
and opened additional offices in Belgium, India and
Chile, among others, to improve the level of service
offered to clients

We are also fully aware of our wider responsibilities to
our stakeholders and socety as a whole - the way we
achieve growth 15 as imgortant as the growth (tself To
check how our activities Impact society, we have evoived
a set of measures specific and relevant to our business
These include monitoning our HR practices, our data
management integrity, our direct interactions with
consumers, the expected carbon footprint of our Group
and a review of our involvement 1n the communities In
which we operate In addition, we carefully examine our
praduct portfolio and its diwect and indirect benefit to
society An oveirview of this years achievernents 1s on
page 36 1o 37 and all measures are reported in full in our
cnhine corporate responsibility report at

www expenancrreport.com

e ——.
.
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Progress in 2007

We have made excellent progress
during the year against our strategic,
operational and financial objectives
The demerger from GUS was a
significant milestone In the
development of Experian, allowing
Investors to benefit directly from the
future growth of the company and
our employees to become
shareholders The £800m raised from
both new and existing shareholders
provides us with financial flexibility
and will help to underpin our growth

Delivery against financial objectives

Over the past year, we have delivered against our key
financial objectives We have driven growth in both sales
and profits, with organic sales growth of 8% and a
further improvement n EBIT margins in our continuing
business, excluding FARES All three regions delivered
good organic sales growth, reflecting the strength of our
portfolio Our cash fiow was strong and we converted
97% of EBIT into operating cash flow, ahead of

our target

Acquisittons made in the four years to March 2006
together delwvered double-digit post-tax returns in the
year to March 2007 The more recent acquisitions are
trading to plan

Clear strategic progress

Our strategic priority at Expenan 1s to continue to deliver
sustarnable growth in order to create lasting shareholder
value To faclitate this, we focus on our primary growth
drivers, and good progress was made against these over
the past year

* Deeper client relationships - we won a number of new
mandates from existing ciients For example, we
renewed and expanded contracts with seven of the
top ten US banks

-

Geographic expansion - we have continued to expand
in markets outside the US and the UK, with significant
new client wins In many countries, including Spain,
France, fapan, China and South Africa

¢ Product innovation - we continue to focus on product
nnovation, introducing over 20 new products dunng
the year, including Precise ID, a new fraud detection
platform, MicroMarketer G3, the latest generation of
Experian’s global market segmentation system, and
Simmons onhine market research

« Vertical expansion - we have strengthened our position
In new and expanding market sectors, including
telecommunications, government, retall and media
For example, Experian 15 now a provider of credit
and decisicning services to all top five wireless
telecommunications companies in the UK

We spent 382
million on

: acquisitions
durning the year

22 | Experian Annual Repon 2007




Continued investment in bustness

We continue to invest organically in the business to dnive
growth Durning the year, this included development in
emerging markets, specfically Asia Paaific, and new
product initiatives Future organic investment will include
further emerging markets development, the establishment
of a near-shore facility in Chile, and investment in the
Canadian bureau In the year 1o March 2008, much of
this investment will be weighted towards the first half

Capttal expenditure i the year was $275m (2006
$212m) Of this, $20m relates tc an accelerated
technoiogy spend on data centre conschdation in the US,
which will enhance effictency and productivity We expect
capital expendrture 1n the current year to be broadly in
line with last year

We also take advantage of opportunities to accelerate
growth and improve productivity through selective,
targeted acquisiions In the year under review, we made
a number of small acquisitions which complement our
existing portfoho Acquisition spend n the year was
,$82m, exciuding deferred consideration paid, and

< included

s Two new credit bureaux, in Canada and Estonia,
expanding our geographic footprint

* An additional US credit bureau affiliate
* Three new Marketing Solutions businesses

* A minorty stake in Sinctrust, a business information
and market research company in China

Since the year-end, we have agreed to acquire Hitwise, a
leading online marketing intelligence company, for
$240m This acquisiion, which forms part of our strategy
1o reposition Marketing Solutions, will bring a rapidly
growing, successful business to Experian, and new unique
data Other acquisitions since the year end include
Informarketing, a direct marketing services provider in
Brazil, Emailing Solution, a leading French permission-
based emall marketing company, and Tallyman, a
collections management software business We expect a
low single-digit contribution to sales growth from
acquisitions 1n the year o March 2008

Evolution of leadership to drive v
future success '

Expenan’s full-year dwidend |,
Expenan has considerable opportunities for

was 17 cents per share -
future growth, in particular as demand -, 3
increases for our services from multinatignal e .

e p—

companies and within emerging markets In order

to give sharper focus to all our regions of operation, we
have created a number of new senior leadership roles In
additron to our two ma|or regions In the Amenicas and UK
and lreland, we now have dedicated senior managers for
EMEA, Asia Pacific and India respectively (although for
reporting purposes these regions will continue to be
combined) Qur new leaders in EMEA and Asia Pacific aré
tasked with driving our presence i these important areg's

Following 24 years of strong leadership contribution, Jehn
Saunders, Expenan’s Chief Executive Officer of Global *
Operations, has announced his retrement aftera
transitional handover period John's achievements within
Expenan have been considerable, having created a chient-
dnven organisauon focused on innovaton, and we thank
John for his enormous contribution

Second dividend of 11 5 cents, to give

full-year dividend of 17 cents

The Board of Expenan has announced a dividend of 115
cents per share to give a full year dvidend of 17 cents per
share Based on continuing pro forma Benchmark EPS this
represents cover of just over three times
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Experian Americas

Operational review

Experian Americas delivered a strong
performance, more than offsetting
chalienges in some markets There
was excellent EBIT margin
progression, with all principal
actwvities improving year-over-year

Credit Services

includes consumer credit and business information
bureaux n the US and Canada, commercial lending
software and automotive services

Sales in Credrt Services were up 5% In total dunng the
year, up 3% on an organic basis Agamst tough
comparatives in 2006 {H1 2005/6 +18%, H2 +9%),
consumer <redit services performed well, improving as
the year progressed During the year, the business
demonstrated its resiience as clients shifted spend
towards account management and collections Lattery
there has been improvement in customer acquisition
actwity Business information delivered a good
performance, reflecting expanded relattonships with
several top ten banks and robust double-digit growth in
portfolio managernent products Automotive did well on
the back of increased tractton of its AutoCheck vehicle
history report and Autocount products AutoCheck, for
example, secured a significant renewal from eBay
Motors There was strong double-digit growth from
Baker Hill's commercal lending software as 1t leveraged
Expenan’s business mformation refationships

VantageScore, the new credit score jointly developed by
the three US credit bureaux, has performed well in its first
year of deployment and to date has secured over 1,300
clients in test The integration of the Canadian consumer
database, acquired in September 2006, 18 proceeding well
and 15 on track for launch iater this year While small, thrs
will enhance the service offered to Expenan's US clients,
many of whom are active In Canada

Organic sales growth

.

29%

Sales in Decision
Analytics in Expenan
Americas were

up 29%

Decision Analytics perforped particularly well over the = — =~
year, with sales up 29%, reflecting increased market

penetration of both decision support software and fraud

prevention tools The relationship with Bank of America

has continued to develop, as Expenan becomes a

provider of enterprise-wide solutions, supparting Bank of

America across Its credit and deposit products

Decision Analytics
Includes credit analytics, decision support
software and fraud solutions -

Fraud prevention delivered very strong double-digrt
growth, as demand for Experian’s identity versfication
solutions has increased, driven by the launch of Precise
1D, 1ts new fraud detection product There was increased
adoption amengst financial services compantes and a
rnajor client win in the Internet payment space

Marketing Solutions

includes data and data management (consumer data,

hst processing and data integrity (including QAS),

database management and analytics), digital services |
(CheetahMal), research services (Simmons and Vente),

and business strategies

Sales in Markettng Soluttons were flat year-on-year and
marginally down (2%) on an organic basis Marketing
Solutions continues to show divergent trends, with
decitnes in the traditional activities (consumer data, list
processing and database management), offsetting very
strong double-digrt sales growth across Daitat Services,
Research Services and QAS Traditional activities, which
In the year still accounted for over 50% of Marketing
Solutions sales, have been impacted by the secular shift
in marketing spend to new digital channels

Progress in the newer marketing areas 1s haghly
encouraging For example, CheetahMail deiwvered record
emall volumes dunng the year (20 bilion permission-
based messages), Simmons delivered strong growth in
syndicated research sales following new client wins and
QAS’ early focthold in the US has expanded rapidly

Total sales growth
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Interactive

includes Consumer Direct (online crediit reports, scores
and monttoring services) and lead generation businesses
LowerMyBills (mortgages), PnceGrabber {companson
shopping) and ClassesUSA (onhne education)

Sales i Interactive grew by 37% durnng the year,
contributing 38% of total Americas sales from continuing
activities Organic growth was 20%, with the balance of
17% from acquisitions {manly PriceGrabber}

Consumer Direct delivered excellent growth throughout
the period, with strong demand from consumers for
credit monitonng services, which led to higher
membership rates Meanwhile, increased focus on
enhancing the customer experience resulted in
significantly reduced churn rates PriceGrabber defivered
very strong growth year-on-year, including & seasonal
boost in Decemnber, at which point urique visitors hit
record numbers In the education vertical, growth at
ClassesUSA accelerated over the year, as it benefited from
shared expertise in oniine advertising with our other lead
generation properties

Sales at LowerMyBills were impacted in the final quarter
by the downturn in US sub-prime lending, as lenders
erther exited the market or considerably tightened lending
critenia (Q3 sales unchanged, Q4 down 8%) LowerMyBills
tradiuonally derives some 80% of sales from the sale of
mortgage feads to sub-prime lenders However, there was
double-digit growth in EBIT in the year as a wholg, as
LowerMyBills opttmised marketing spend to generate
more profrtable leads In this challenging ervironment,
LowerMyBills continues to focus on marketing spend
efficiency and 1s driving sales through saies of higher
quality ieads and diversification into both non sub-prime
and non mortgage-related produdts

Sales by acuwity

Financal review

Sales from continuing activities were $1,990m, up 15%
compared to the same period last year, with organic
growth of 8% Acguisiions, predominantly in the
interactive segment, contributed 7% to sales growth

EBIT from direct businesses was $508m (2006 $404m), an
ncrease of 26% In the year, giving an EBIT margin of

25 5% (2006 23 3%} Margins improved across all
business segments, reflecting growing scale in Decision
Analytics and the newer areas of Marketing Solutions,
continuing operating efficiencies and the positive impact
of last year’s affiliate credit bureau acquisitons

EBIT from FARES, the 20%-owned real estate information
associate, reduced 1 the penod 10 $361m, compared to
$69m last year This was pnmandly due to the decline sn US
mortgage onginatons The improved profit performance 1in
the second half of the year 1s attributable to a less difficult
mortgage ongination market and continued cost action

by FARES

12 months to 31 March 2007 2006 Growth Organic

Sm sm %  growth
%

Sales

- Cretht Services 804 766 5 3

- Decision Analytics 82 63 29 29

- Markeung Solutions 353 385 - {2)

- Interactive 751 547 37 20

Total - continuing activities 1,990 1,731 15 8

Discontinuing activites' 4 73 na

Total Amenicas 1,994 1,804 10

EBIT

- Direct business 508 404 26

- FARES 61 ] {11}

Total — continuing activities 569 473 20

Discontinuing actvitias' 7 5} na

Total Americas 562 479 18

EBIT margin’ 255% 23 3%

1 Disconunuing activities indude MetaReward
2 EBIT margin 1s for continuing direct business anly and excludes FARES

Volume of consumer credit reports (indexed)

Voiume of emails dehivered (indexed)
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Experian UK and Ireland

Operational review

Expenan UK and Ireland delivered a
good performance during the year,
even though market condrtions were
challenging This further demonstrates
the resilience of the portfolio and
underscores Its countercyclical qualiies

Credit Services
Includes consumer credit and business information
bureaux and automonive and insurance services

Sales in Credit Services increased by 3% over the year
The consumer credit environment in the UK remained
challenging, reflecting concerns over levels of consumer
mdebtedness and rising interest rates Expenan benefrted
as chents shifted spend from customer acquisition
towards cross-selling to existing customers, and 10
portfolio and nsk management There was also good
growth 1n Experian’s business information activities,
dniven by product innovation and market share gains
Elsewhere, dwersification into sectors outside financial
services continues to be highly successful, with further
expansion in both the telecommunications and public
senvices sectors

Organic sales growth

Total sales growth

Decision Analytics
Includes credit analyncs, decision support software and
fraud solutions

Sales in Decision Analytics showed good growth,
increasing by 8% duning the year Product innovation has
been a driver of this success, as illustrated by good
performances In onginatien and In ¢ustomer
management solutions, with new software hcensing wins
and significant chient renewals For example, Experian
further extended its relationship with HSBC, signing a
giobal contract to deliver Basel Il models through its
Strategy Management decision support software

Demand for fraud prevention solutions continues to nse,
as finanoial institutions further focus on reducing fraud-
related losses Expenan’s Hunter solution has seen
considerable success and has secured several signifrcant
new client wins, including RBS Group, which selected
Hunter for use across multiple brands and product lines

Marketing Solutions

Includes data and data management (consumer data,
data integrity (QAS and Eiger Systems), database
management {including ClarityBlue) and anaiytics), digital
services (CheetahMail) and business strategies (including
Mosarc consumer segmentation, econornic forecasting
and Footrafl)

Total sales in Marketing Solutions were up 31%, with
organic growth of 1% The latter was held back by the
weak environment for financial services in the UK, and
tough comparables for QAS, attnibutable to large public
sector contract wins last year CheetahMail delivered an
excellent performance, benefiting from voiume growth of
email campaigns and new client wins

The contribution to growth from acquisitions of 30%
was primarly attributable to ClantyBlue and Eiger
Systems, both of which performed well during the year
ClarityBlue secured a significant client win to prowide
relationship marketing services giobally to a major home

EBIT {5m) and margin
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gaming and entertainment provider, and Eiger Systems
has been successfully integrated, following ts acquisition
in june 2006

We have previously announced our intention 10 integrate
UK marketing data, processing and database
management activiues inte a single business unit,
Expenian Integrated Marketing This will provide a stngle
point of sale for Expenan’s services, an tmproved
customer proposition and segnificant cost savings
Restructunng costs, which will be charged against EBIT,
are expected to be about $12m, of which about 58m
was incurred 1n the year, with the balance n the year to
March 2008 We expect full payback of the
reorganisation costs in the year to March 2009

Interactive
Comprises CreditExpert (online credst feports, scores and
momnitanng services sold direct to consumers)

Sales from continuing activities

. were up 17%
- "‘\

-,

- -~
.,

Financial review

Total sales from cqrtinuing activities were T,
§843m, up 17% at constant exchange rates
compared 10 the same period last year Organic growth
was 7% The contribution to sales growth from
acquisitions during the year was 10%

EBIT from continuing activities was $221m, an increase
of 16% at constant exchange rates over last year, prior
1o the restructurtng charge of $8m The EBIT margen,
before the restructuring charge, was 26 2% (2006

26 4%), with the shight deciine reflecting the first ume
inclusion of ClantyBlue, which has margins below the
average for Expernian UK and lreland Improved operating
leverage and ongoing cost containment otherwise drove
margin enhancement i the other pnincipal activities

. —

: in the UK and tretand

-

12 months to 31 March 2007 2006 Growth* Organic
Interactive grew sales by 176% over the year This months to $m sm % grc? wﬂ:’
excellent performance reflects the strength of demand %
for CreditExpert, which benefited from growth in
membership and higher volumes of credit reports Sales
delivered, driven by television and radio advertising and - Credit Services 266 245 3 3
the strength of marketing partnerships, for example with - Deasion Analytics 25 185 J 8

J 9P Ps, P - Marketing Solutions 328 236 31 1

AOL, Yahoo and MSN - Interactive 33 11 176 176

Total - continuing activities 843 677 17 7

Discontinuing activises’ [ 81 na

Total UK and Ireland 907 758 13

£8IT — UK and treland 221 179 16

Restructuring charge 8 - na

EBIT - continuing activities 212 179 12

Discontinuing actwvities' 24 36 na

Total UK and ireland 236 215 4

EBIT margin’ 262% 264%

1 biscontinuing activities include UK account processing

2 EBIT margin for continuing activities onty, before restructuring charge

3 Growth at constant FX rates
Sales by actwity' Applications for credit {indexed)
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Experian EMEA /Asia Pacific

Operational review

Experian EMEA/Asia Pacific delivered
another good performance, reflecting
very high growth rates in Central,
Southern and Eastern Europe, South
Africa and Asia Pacific balanced by
slower growth in more mature
markets such as Western Europe

Qrganic sales growth

Total sales growth

Credit Services

Includes consumer credit bureaux tn ten countries,
business information bureaux in four countnes and
transaction processing, mainly in france

Credrt Services sales grew by 5% at constant exchange
rates over the year, with organic growth of 4%

Sales in transaction processing strengthened during the [
year as the business benefited from the first tme
contnbuiton from a number of contract wins, particutariy
In business process outsourcing These include multi-year,
multi-miliion euro contracts with EDF, French Ministry of
Labour, GIE Sesam Vitale and the French Ministry of
Foreign Affairs In addiuon, Expenian has extended its
customer base in cheque processing and now acts for all
top six French banks Transaction processing, which 1s a
relatively mature actmity, accounts for nearly two-thirds of
Credrt Services sales in EMEA/AsIa Pacrfic

There were excellent performances from the consumer
credit bureaux, parttcularly in Centrai, Southern and
Eastern Europe and South Africa, driven by growth in
demand for credit and value-added products The
acquisiion earlier In the year of a business and consumer
credrt bureau in Estonia has further extended Experian'’s
geographic reach in the Nordic region, enhancing the
service offering to clients operating across the region

EBIT {Sm) and margin
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Decision Analytics

includes credit analytics, decision support software
and fraud soluttons sold in over 60 countries around
the world

Sales from Decision Analytics showed excellent progress,

with growth of 21%, 18% on an organic basis

Expenian Decision Analytics 1s recognised by major clients

around the world for ts global products and local
presence In key markets In addition to delivering good

growth In core markets across Contmentaf Europe, there

was significant progress dunng the year in emerging
markets such as Russia, Turkey and Eastern Europe
Experian also secured its first magor client win in india,

ICICI Bank, for benavioural scoring In Japan, there was a

significant contract win with GE Finance and other
domestic chents, and in China Experian secured a
contract to delver software solutions and consulting to
ICBC bank, one of China'’s leading banks

Demand for fraud prevention solutions continues to
accelerate with, for example, maternial new multi-year,
multi-milion euro chient wins i Spain

2

$591m

:

Total EMEA/AsIa Pacific sales '
were 5591 million, up 8% /

5 at constant exchange rates .

Marketing Sclutions
Includes business strategies, data integrity (QAS) and
other marketing services around the world

Sales increased by 23% n the pertod, with organic
growth of 9% There was a 14% contribution from
acquisrtions, principally 1n Business Strategies (FootFall)
Growth reflects high value contract wans by QAS in
Australia and New Zealand, and good progress by
Businass Strategies

Financial review

Total sales were $591m, up 8% at constant exchange
rates compared to the same penod last year Organic
growth was 7%

EBIT was $74m, up 11% at constant exchange rates
from a year ago, gviag an EBIT margin of 125%
(2006 2 3%) Margin improvement principally
reflectéd operating leverage In Decision Analytics from
the growth n sales, and effiaiency improvementis in the
Frerrch bank back office actvity, partially offset by
investment 1 new markets

H

12 months to 31 March 2007 2006 Growth' Organic

Sm Sm % growth’
%

Sales

- Credit Services 450 410 5 4

- Decision Analytics g5 76 21 18

- Marketing Solutions 46 36 23 9

Total EMEA / Asia Paafic 591 522 8 7

EBIT - EMEA / Asia Paaific 74 64 1

EBIT margin 12 5% 12 3%

' Growth at constant FX rates

Experian central activities

Following the demerger, central activities costs are
expected to be about $52m 1n a full financial year
in the year to 31 March 2007, the reported Cosis
of central actvities were $547m {2006 $31m)

Experian Annual Report 2007

| 29



Introduction | Business review | Governance | Financial statements

Financial review

Demerger

On 10 October 2006, the separation of Experian Group
Limited and Home Retall Group was completed by way of
demerger As part of the demerger, Experian Group Limrted
became the ultimate holding company of GUS plc The
demerger transaction has been accounted for in
accordance with the UK GAAP principles of merger
accounting, which are not in conflict with IFRS and reflect
the economic substance of the transaction The distribution
to GUS plc shareholders of shares in Home Retal Group plc
has been accounted for as a dvidend In specie in the
financal statements in addition the results of Home Retall
Group have been represented as discontmued

Sales
Group sales from continuing operations grew by 14%
from $3,064m to $3,481m

Profit

Benchmark profit before tax for continuing operations
rose by $87m to $714m The wncrease in benchmark
profit 1s largely a result of the 14% increase in sales from
continuing operations Profit before tax from
discontinued operatrons decreased by 74% to $228m
principally because the prior year includes a full year of
the Home Retall Group results

Taxation

The Group’s effective rate of tax for the year was 22 4%,
based on benchmark profit This compares to 17 5%
last year

Shareholder return and dividends

Following the demerger and equity i1ssue completed in
October, Experian now has approximately 1,022m
Ordinary shares in 1ssue The number of shares to be
used for the purposes of calculating basic earnings per
share going forward 15 1,006m after deducung own
shares held

Basic earmings per share were 49 9¢ In the year to

31 March 2007 The basic earnings per share for the
pnor year of 107 5¢ includes 59 1c¢ related to
discontinued operations Benchmark earnings per share
mcreased to 59 7c from 54 Sc last year The Board has
announced a dividend of 11 5¢, giving a dividend of 17¢
for the full year The dividend for the year 15 covered 3 5
umes from benchmark earnings

Share price and total shareholder return

On & October 2006 shares 1 GUS plc ceased to be listed
on the Londen Stock Exchange's market for listed
securities Trading tn shares in Expenan Group Limited on
the London Stock Exchange commenced on 11 October
2006 On that day, Experian Group Limited also raised

£800m by way of a share offer.at-an offer-price of - = - ~-by the B and afé subjéct 1o regular

560p per share

The share price of Experian ranged from a low of 559 5p |
to a hugh of 631 5p durning the period since listing On ‘
31 March 2007, the mid market price was 585 5p, giving |
a market capitahisation of $11 7bn at that date '
Shareholders’ funds

Shareholders’ funds amount to $2,107m, equivalent to

$2 06 per share, a decrease of $3,347m n the year This

prinaipally reflects the reductron of net assets following

the demerger of Home Retall Group (decrease of

$5,627m) offset by the proceeds of the equrty 1ssue

(increase of 31,441 m}

Cash flow and net debt

The Group’s free cash flow before acquisttions,

divestments and dividends was $577m compared with

$574m in 2006 Capital expenditure in 2007 was |
$275m, 363m higher than fast year Capital expenditure, |
which included accelerated spend of $20m on data

centre consolidation, was eguivalent to 121% of the

depreciation charge in 2007 Free cash flow was used to

fund acquisitions of $118m, the purchase of other

financial assets and nvestment in associates of $42m

and dividends of $401m {principally the final dividend

paid by GUS plc) Cash outflow from exceptional items

amounted to $98m After proceeds from disposals of

bustnesses of $258m, net cash inflow for the year was

$176m Net debt at 31 March 2007 decreased by

$2,029m to $1,408m, down from $3,437m at

31 March 2006

Acquisitions

Acquisition expenditure amounted to $118m, inctuding
deferred and contingent consideration on prior year
acquisitions

Liguidity and funding

The maturity, currency and interest rate profile of the
Group's borrowings are shown in note 26 to the financal
statements The matunty profile 1s spread over the next
seven years, to avoid excessive concentration of re-
financing needs At 31 March 2007 undrawn committed
borrowing faclities totalled $2,450m

Treasury and risk management
The Group's Treasury function seeks to reduce
exposures 1o foreign exchange, interest rate and . RIRTN
other financial risks, to ensure sufficient L
fiquidity 15 available to meet foreseeable
needs and to invest cash assets safely and .~ .
profitabiy It does not operate as a profit
centre and transacts only in relation to .
underlying business requirements It
operates policies and procedures which £
are penodically reviewed and approved
At the ume of the
demerger, Experian
raised £800 mifion to .
. support future .

Group Internal Audit reviews

H
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2007 2006
Group cash flow sm $m
EBIT for continuing operations 825 727
Depreciation 237 204
Capiial expenditure (275) (212)
Change in working capital 5 (12}
Retained In associate (22) (20}
Share option charge within benchmark profit 34 30
Operating cash flow 804 717
Interest (106) (111
Corporation tax (i21) (32)
Free cash flow 577 574
Net cash outfiow from exceptionals (98) 7
Acquisitions {118) (1,420)
Purchase of other financial assets and investment in associates 42) (41}
Disposal of subsidiary 258 643
Dividends (401) (508)
Net cash flow 176 (759)
Foreign exchange movements 166 (20}
Other ivesting related cash flows i21 618
Movement in cash and cash equivalents (continuing) 463 (161)
Net debt flow of discontinued activities 32 (188)
Movement in cash and cash equivalents 495 (349)

Currency nsk management

The Group's reported profit can be significantly affected by
currency movernents In the year to 31 March 2007
approximately 35% of the Group's EBIT from continuing
operations was earned 1n currencies other than the

US dollar In order to reduce the impact of currency
fluctuations on the value of nvestments n overseas
countnes, the Group has a policy of borrowing in Sterling
and Euros, as well as in US dollars, and of entering into
forward foreign exchange contracts In its key overseas
currencies The Group's principal borrowings were
onginally undertaken in Stering Dunng the year ended 31
March 2007, the Group contnued to enter into forward
foreign exchange contracts 10 sell the US dollar and the
furo aganst Sterling Addiionally, the Group has a pohicy
of hedging foreign currency denominated transactions Dy
entenng into forward foreign exchange contracts

Interest rate risk management

The Group's interest rate exposure 15 managed by the use
of fwed and floatng rate borrowings and by the use of
Interest rate swaps to adjust the balance of fixed and
floating rate iiabilives The Group also spreads the
duraton of its borrowings to smooth the impact of
interest rate fluctuations

Credrt nisk
The Group’s exposure 1o credit nsk 15 managed by
dealing only with banks and finanaial mstiutions with

strong credit ratings, within limits set for each
organisation Dealing activity 1s closely controlled and
counter-party positions are monrtored regularly

Interest costs

At $146m net finance costs were $44m lower than last
year The changes in capital structure resuliing from the
setthing of intra-group lending prior to the demerger, the
demerger itself and the IPO mean that the prior year's
nterest cost s not comparable with the current year's
The reported net interest ine benefits from a credit 1o
interest of $16m relating to the excess of the expected
return On Pension assets over the INierest on pension
habilites (2006 $9m)

At 31 March 2007, Expenan had net debt of $1,408m,
including the net proceeds from the equity issue in
October 2006 of $1,441m

Assurming the $1 4bn equity had been raised at 1 Apnl
2006, the pro forma net interest expense would have been
$65m (H1 $30m, H2 $35m), ncluding a sivular

pension credrt

For the year to March 2008, Experian expects a net interest
expense, including the pension credit, In the region of
$70m, based on acquistion spend since the year-end and
forecast cash flows

Experian Annual Report 2007
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Financial review cont

Exceptional items

The only costs treated as exceptional rtems are those
associated with the disposal, demerger or closure of
businesses All other restructuring costs have been
charged against EBIT in the divisions in which they were
incurred

The exceptional items during the year were costs incurred
relating to the demerger of Expenan and Home Retail
Group, the charge on early vesting and modification of
share awards at demerger, costs incurred in the closure
of UK Account Processing and a gatn ansing 1n an
associate from partial disposal of its subsidiary

Other adjustment items

IFRS requires that, on acquisition, specific intangible
assets are identified and recognised separately from
goodwill and then amortised over therr usefut economic
Iwves These include items such as brand names and
customer lists, to which value 15 first attributed at the time
of acquisitton The Group has excluded amortisation of
these acquisition intangibles from s definition of
Benchmark PBT because such a charge 1s based on
uncerta:n judgements about their value and economic life

A goodwill adjustment of $14m arose In accordance with
RS 3 ‘Business Combinations’ following the recognition
of a benefit in respect of previously unrecognised tax
losses relating to prior year acquisitions The
corresponding tax benefit reduces the tax charge in

the year by $14m

Charges in respect of demerger-related equity incentive
plans relate to one-off grants made to senior
management and all other staff levels at the time of
demerger under a number of equity incentive plans The
cost of these one-off grants will be charged to the Group
Income siatermnent over the five years following the
demerger, but excluded from the definition of
Benchmark PBT The cost of all other granis will be
charged 1o the Group income statement and will be
included in the defimuion of Benchmark PBT

An element of the Group's derivatives 15 ineligible for
hedge accounting under IFRS Gains or losses on these
dernvatves ansing from market movements are charged
or credited to the income statement [n the year to

31 March 2007 this amounted to a charge of

$35m {2006 $2m)

Pensions

Note 24 to the financial statements shows the
assumptions used (including montakity assumptions)
together with the other disclosures required in
accordance with 1AS 19

At 31 March 2007 the Group has a net surplus for all
retirement benefit schemes on an I1AS 19 basis of
$85m (2006 $31m)

Accounting pohicies and standards
The prinapal accounting pohcies used by the Group are
shown 1n note 2 to the finangal statements

Exceptional items and other non-GAAP measures
2007 2006
$m $m
Exceptional items
Conunuing operat:ions
Charge on early vesting and modification of share awards at demerger
of Expenan and Home Retaill Group 23
Other costs incurred relating to the demerger of Expenan and Home Retail Group 126 7
Costs mcurred n the closure of UK Account Processing 26
Loss on disposal of businesses 2 -
Gam arising in assoaate on the partial dispesal of its subsidiary (15 -
Total exceptional ntems 162 7
Other non-GAAP measures
Continuing gperations
Amortisation of acguisition intangibles 76 66
Goodwll adjusiment 14 -
Charges in respect of the demerger-related equrty incentive plans 24 -
Financing faw value remeasurements 35 2
Total other non-GAAP measures 149 68
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tise of non-GAAP measures

Experian has identified certain measures that it believes
provide additional useful information on the perfarmance
of the Group As the measures are not defined under
IFRS they may not be directly comparable with other
companies’ adjusted measures The non-GAAP measures
are not Intended to be a substitute for, or superior to,
any IFRS measures of performance Certain non-GAAP
measures 1dentified by the Group are shown in note 2 1o
the financial statements Further non-GAAP measures
and reconciliations of those measures are set out below

Discoptnuing activittes Experian defines discontinuing
activities as businesses sold, ciosed or identified for
closure dunng a financial year These are treated as
discontinuing activities for both sales and EBIT purposes
Prior pericds, where shown, are restated to exclude the
results on discontinuing activities This financial measure
differs from the definiion of discontinued operations set

out in IFRS 5 ‘Non-current assets held for sale and
discontinued operations’ Under IFRS 5, a discontinued
operation 1s (1} & separate major iine of business or
geographical area of operations, (i) part of a single plan
1o dispose of a major Iine of business or geographical
area of operations, or (i) a subsidiary acquired exciusively
with a view to resale

Continuing activities Businesses trading at 31 March
2007 that have not been disclosed as discontinuing
activities are treated as continuing activities

Organic growth This 1s the year-on-year change in
continuing activittes sales, at constant exchange rates,
excluding acquisitions {other than affiliate Credit bureaux)
unti! the first anmiversary date of consolidation

Direct business Direct business refers to Experian’s
business exclusive of financal results of FARES

Reconciliation of sales and EBIT by geography
12 months to 31 March 2007 2006

Continumg Discontinuing  Total Continuing Discontinuing  Total

activities activities activities activities
Sm $m $m $m Sm sm

Sales
Americas 1,990 4 1,994 1.731 73 1,804
UK & Ireland 843 64 807 677 81 758
EMEA/AsIz Pacific 581 - 591 522 - 522
Total sales 3,424 68 3,492 2,930 154 3,084
EBIT
Americas - direct business 508 (7 501 404 3] 410
FARES 61 - 61 69 - 69
Total Americas 569 7 562 473 6 479
UK & Irefand 221 24 245 17% 36 215
UK & Ireland restructuring charge (8) - (8) - - -
EMEA/AsIa Pacific 74 - 74 64 - 64
Central activitias 47) - {47 (31 - (31)
Total EBIT 808 17 B25 685 a2 727
Net interest {(111) {(100)
Benchmark PBT 714 627
Exceptional items {162) {7
Amorusation of acquisiion ntangibles (76) (66)
Goodwill adjustment (14} .
Charges for demerger-related equity incentive plans (24} -
Financing fair value remeasurements (35 (2)
Tax expense of associates 9} (2}
Profit before tax 394 550
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Financial review cont

Reconciliation of sales and EBIT by business segment

12 months to 31 March 2007 2006 Total Orgamic
$m $m growth* growth*
Sales
Credit Services 1,520 1,420 4% 3%
Decision Analytics 392 325 16% 15%
Marketing Solutions 728 627 13% -
Interactive 784 558 40% 23%
Total - conttnuing activities 3424 2,930 14% 8%
Discontinuing activities® 68 154 na
Total 3,492 3,084 11%
EBIT
Credit Services
Direct business 420 371 1%
FARES 61 69 {11%)
Total Credit Services 482 440 8%
Decision Analytics 136 102 27%
Marketing Solutions 73 57 24%
Restructuning charge (8} - na
Total Marketing Solutions 65 57 10%
Interactive 173 117 50%
Central activities 47) {31 na
Total — continuing activities 808 685 16%
Discontinuing activities' 17 42 na
Total 825 727 1%
EBIT margin
Crednt Services — direct business 27 6% 26 1%
Degision Analytics 34 7% 315%
Marketing Solutions? 10 0% S 1%
Interactive 22 1% 21 0%
Total EBIT margin’ 218% 210%

1 Discontinuing activities include MetaReward and UK account processing

3 EBIT margin is for continuing direct business only excluding FARES
4 Growth at constant FX rates.

2 Total EBIT margin for continuing direct business anly, excludes FARES includes restructunng charge and central activities

Basis of preparation for pro forma
interest calculations

Equity proceeds

At demerger Expenan raised £800m of new equity For
the purposes of prepanng pro forma results, net interest
has been calculated to illustrate the impact on Group
financial performance as If this equity had been issued at
1 Apnl 2006  The financial impact of this 15 a credit to
interest of $37m

Management of bank balances

In the penod prior to demerger, bank balances were
managed centrally on a pooled basis In accordance with
the normal treasury arrangements in groups of
companies Home Retail Group companies held bank
balances in the pool and interest thereon 1s reported
within discontinued activities Expenan will continue t0
use poohng arrangements but the arrangements prior to
demerger result In an increase in the reported interest
cost for the year for continuing operations of $9m

34 | Expenan Annual Report 2007




Risks and uncertainties

As described under corporate
objectives and strategy on page 19,
Experian’s vision I1s that our people,
data and technology become a
necessary part of every major
consumer economy around the world
The major potential rnisks to achieving
this are erther specific to Expernian, such
as information secunty, or more
general such as the impact of
competition Risks to Experian are
anticipated and regularly assessed and
our internal controls are enhanced
where necessary to ensure that such
nsks are appropriately mitigated

We have identified the following major potential risks

Speafic nsks for Experian

People

Expenian 1s dependent upon highly skilfed personnel,
espeaally our semor management and other experienced
staff Loss of these people could have an adverse effect on
our ability to deliver our corporate objectives We aim to
provide compensation and benefits that are competrive with
other leading companies, as well as fulfiling future career
opportunrigs

Data

The data that Expenian holds may be iappropnately used
Expenan has estabhished ngorous information securnty
pohicies, standards, procedures, recrustment and training
schemes, which are embedded throughout our business
operations Wea also screen new third party partners carefully
and conduct targeted audnts on their operations The loss
andfor potential misuse of consumer data 1s addressed both
procedurally through continued investment in IT security
infrastructure, including the significant use of data and
communications encryption technology around the world

Leguslation or government regulations may alter what dala
Experian can collect and how we collect 1t To the best of
our knowledge, we are in compliance with data protection
requirements 1n the jurisdictions 1n which Expenan operates
We actively monror our collection and use of personal data,
while our legal, regulatory and government affairs
depariments work closely with senior management to adopt
strategies to educate lawmakers and infiuence the public
policy debate where appropnate around the world

Technology

There couid be security breaches of Expenian’s systems
and processes or our systems could fai Our data centres
are protected against damage from fire, power loss,
telecommunications failure, natural disaster, hardware or
software malfunction, computer viruses or other purposeful
attacks, such as physical break-ins or hacking Te miugate
the risk from insecure or unrehabie IT systems, we mairitain
off-site copies of all information contained 1n databases, run
back-up data centres, have established support
arrangements with third party vendors and have strict
standards, procedures and traning schemes for technology
senices, physical securtty, nformation security and business
continury

Other nisks

Expenian could face increased competition, especially in
the credst reporting industry We mingate this nsk through
continued research and investment in people, technology
and products as priontised by our strategic plan

There may be consolidation among Experian’s chents,
which may cause price compression and & reduction n
our sales and profits However, no single chent accounts for
more than 3% of our sales, which reduces the probability of
this potential risk having a significant Impact on us

Acquisitrons may not meet expectations We assess al
acguisitions nigorously using both in-house expertise and
that of professional adwisors

There may be an economic downturn in gne of Experian’s
magor markets, which impacts the demand for consumer
credit in particular As descnbed on page 16, the breadth of
Expenan’s portfolio by product, by geography, by sector and
by client partly mtigates the impact of this risk

The outcome of iigation could be unfavourable to
Experian We carry insurance cover against such nisks and
employ numerous expert legal personnel in-house and
retamn the services of several leading iegal practices around
the world 1o assist in the effective management and
disposal of legal proceedings

Experian could fail to protect adequately its valuable
intellectual property nghts or face daims for inteflectual
property rght infnngement Expenan seeks patent
protection and appropriate agreements regarding 1ts
intellectual property nghts where appropriate and feastble
and continues 1o monitor this stuation

Further discussion of risks facing Expenan can be found n
the prospectus for the global offer, dated 14 September
2006, which s avallable on our website at

WwWw experiangroup com
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Corporate responsibilities

Strategy and definrtion

Experian 15 a fast growing business and financia! success
15 8 key measure of that growth However we don't exist
in a vacuum By measuring ourselves against other
societal impacts and targeting ourselves 10 improve we
can ensure we have a sustainable business and that we

We have appointed a Head of
Global CR, reporting te Charles
Brown, to direct and co-ordinate
efforts across the Group Experian is framework and direction
structured 1nto regional businesses, each for our CR programme .
of which has appointed a CR management v

We have chosen six
essential responsibiiities
to provide the

maintain and improve socleties” understanding and - -
respect for what we do LT

Since our listing as an |ndepender:ffompany on 11
Qctober 2006, we have undertaken a review of our
wider responsibilities, consulting relevant people within
the business and drawing on external evatuations from
analysts and commentators As a result we have chosen
six essential responsibriities to provide the framework and
direction for our work

We believe we have a responsibility to

1 Use and protect data properly, respecting all the
relevant laws, helping evolve industry guidelines and
new legislation and ensunng a culture of setting and
complying with the highest standards of integrity

2 Create social e'snd economi¢ benefit through our
products services and capabilities, balanging
commercial benefit with consumers’ nghts and needs

3 inform and empower consumers and ensure that those
who interact directly with our company receve fair and
honest treatment

4 Be a good employer 1o all, establishing a set of
expected behaviours and values, ensuring that
everyone working for us Is treated fairly, given the
maximum opporiunity to fulfil ther potentiat and that
all our workptaces are safe and healthy

5 Minimise as far as possible the environmental impacts
associated with our business and enable employee
participation, with a particular concentration on the
reduction of energy use and 1ts effect on global warming

6 Play an active part in social and economic regeneration
In our communities, be they local, national or global

Discharging these six responsibilinies effectively helps
reduce risk and presents us with opportunities tn
essence, we think that taking proper account of socal
ssues makes us a beiter business in the long term We
are committed 10 dialogue, transparency and the need
for good quality benchmarks and indicators of our non-
financial performance

Management and accountability

This year we appointed a Group Company Secreiary,
Charles Brown, and gave him overall responsibility for
Corporate Responsibility {CR), ensuring that it features
regularly on the Board agenda The Board's first action
has been to approve an outline strategy 1n early 2007,
based on the six responsibiiies above

champion These champions will meet regularly

chaired by the Company Secretary and led by the Head
of Global CR, to gwe strategic input and direction They
will consider risks and opportunities and ways in which
we can embed social considerattons Into our everyday
decision-making processes There 1s also a small network
of CR co-ordinators who are the principal contacts for
the Head of Global CR to share information about
relevant risks and opportunities, develop instiatives and
report performance

Expenan 15 currently lsted in the FTSE4Good Index

We have produced a comprehensive CR Report online
(accessible via the Company website and at

www experiancrreport.com) The following sections
present a summary from that decument

Performance during 2007

Data management- using and protecting data properiy
Experian has established a lead position as the trusted
steward of sensitive consumer data We have an
obligation 1o protect and secure data from wrongful
access or misuse We have dedicated Complance and
Information Secunty teams who have overall
responsibility for ensuring a culture of awareness and
compliance within the business In the past year, these
teams have improved physical security measures and our
management of digital identity and access to our
systems, as well as gaiming SO international certification
Moare widely, we have undertaken a generai programme
of employee education including defining 2 new global
policy and have taken the lead in industry-wide initiatives
regarding the safe transfer of data

Products and services - social benefits of our services
Expenian plays an tmporant role in maintaining a healthy
economy, and many of our core products have strong
social benefits For example we are a leading player in
reducing fraud n helping lenders and indmduals avoid
over-indebiedness, reducing Junk mail and ensunng those
In need are targeted 1o receve state ard Activities in the
past year have included

+ Development of our predictive tools to ensure lenders
can pick up the very early signs of over-indebtedness

+ Establishing a Vicims of Fraud service to support those
whose identities have been transgressed

+ Launching tools to directiy help consumers better
understand haw therr behaviour affects therr
credit rating

36 | Expenian Annual Report 2007




Consumers — informing and empowering consumers
Dunng the last year, Expenan had over 25 milhon direct
contacts with consumers Over half of these nteractions
were providing consumers with access to their data on file
allowing them to test, challenge or amend it where
appropnate This type of access 15 a key part of data
protection legislation 1n many countries, and we aim 1o
ensure that we comply fully and wholeheartedly

However, we aim 10 go much further in our work with
consumers We take very seriously the need to educate
people more widely, parucularly about the credit granting
process and how to make 1t work for them We play a
leadership role in national organisatans with a remit for
promoting finanaial education, especially with the young
Training the trainers is a special focus tn the US we have
led a national campaign to ensure personat finance skills
are taught In schools and this year gave considerable nput
to a specrfic programme of financial education in Texas
high schools

The Expenan businesses that market directly 1o consumers
have extended the frequency and reach of custormer
satisfaction surveys and have monitored and improved therr

Community - social and economic regeneration We have
a strong history of community Involvement on both sides
of the Atlantic In the last year Experian invested 31 44m
into community programmes and chartable causes and,
with the addition of funds from the GUS Trust and the
funds rased by employees, this rose to $2 169m, with a
breakdown as shown in the chart below These funds
enabled a huge range of opportunities for Experian’s
people to make a real contrnbution to the Iife of their
local communities and often allowed the organisations
we worked with to leverage considerably more funding
from other sources

Experian's community investment

Cash donations from Expertan $72%,000
online accessibiltty Value of employee tme volunteered $157,000

value of gifts in kind $332,000
Employment practice - being a good employer Experian Comemunity management Cosis $222 000
employs more than 13,000 people in 36 countnes around Total from Expenan 51, 446,000
the wortd Recrurting, motivating and retaining the best
colleagues 15 an essential part of our competitive edge To Employee fundraising $212.000
ensure a far and professional workplace we have a range GUS Trust Donations $517 000
of emptoyment policies covering issues such as equal
opportunities, business ethics, bullying and harassment Total value incuding funding
and whistle-biowing  This year we initiated a brand given by others $2,169,000
development programme, which includes the development
of a consistent system of values and behaviours for This year saw us launch a new US-UK collaborative
employees We invest heavily 1n training and development, oroject, involving seven schools from the US and UK
this year delivering more onfine and computer based Students in each school created a set of Chnstmas card
iraining than In any previous point In our history designs to be used by Experian, at the same time raising

funds for chanty Save the Children A spin off from the
Environmental impact - mimmising our carbon footprint project 15 an electronic pen pal scheme between the
and waste Our most significant environmental impact 13 <chools. which we have facilitated via a secure
the use of energy n our buildings, and the errussions of online e'nwronment
€0z that come from it While the amount of energy we
use relative to our size may be low, we believe that all We also define our ‘community’ more widely As a
companies have a responsiiltty to play iheir part in responsible member of the bustness and finance
meeting the challenge of climate change We have community, we have sponsored the UK National Debtline
measured ous carbon footorint as approximately 64,000 and the Citizens Adwice service and the Money Adwvice
1onnes in 2007 (the final, verified figure can be found In corvice in Scotland In the US we support Call for Action
our online report www experiancrreport.com) Our and the National Consumer's League of identity
emissions from puildings have fallen this year as our Theft Hotline
Nottingham sites, which house more than 2,000 people,
arranged to purchase all their electneity needs from
renewable sources and our four major sites in the US
replaced ineffxcient heat pumps and chillers, installed
energy saving hght bulbs, reduced night tme temperature
conirals and controlled lighting with motion detectors
and umers
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Board of directors

Executive directors

John Peace (58)
Chairman

John Peace began iis career in 1970 at the
former GUS plc where he held several
senior IT management positions before co-
founding CCNin 1980 This was the
company formed by GUS to market
information services tc retailers and other
lending organtsattons In 1991 he was
appointed Chief Executive of CCN which
was by then one of Europe s targest
nformation services compantes During the
mud-nineties CCN was combined wath a
number of other US and European
bustnesses to form a global information
services organisauon called Expenan wath
John Peace as s Chief Execuive worldwide
John Peace joined the Board of the former
GUS plc in 1997 becoming Group Chief
Executive w January 2000 In June 2002

he was appointed Chairman of Burberry
Group pl 1 advance of its parual flotation
by GUS in July 2002 John Peace 15 also
Chairman of the Board of Governars of
Nottingham Trent University, Deputy
Chairman of Standard Chartered with effect
from 1 August 2007 and a Fellow of the
Royal Society of Arts

Non-executive directors

Fabigla Asredondo {40)
Non-Executive Director

Fabiola Arredondo 15 the Managing Partner
of Siempre Holdings a private investment
firm based in the US Pnor to this she held
Senicr operating positions at Yahoo! the
BBC and Bertelsmann A G She 15 currently
a Non-Executve Director of Bankinter 5 A
the World Wildlife Fund and Sesame
Workshop and was formerty a Non-
Executive Director of BOC Group plc and
intetsat Corporation Fabiola has a BA
degree from Stanford Unwersity and an
MBA from the Harvard Business School

Don Rabert (48)
Chief Executive Officer

Don Rabert graduated from Oregon State
Uriversity with a degree in Business
Admnistration He began his career with
US Bancorp a mult-state bank holding
campany where he held positions of
ingreasing responsibility over 15 years From
there he jorned Credco, Inc, the largest
specialist credit reporting company in the
US, as Prestdent In 1995 Credco was
acqured by First Amenican Corporation and
over the next six years Don Robert held
pasitons as Executrve Vice President of
Mortgage Onigmation Services and President
of First Amencan‘’s Consumer Information
and Serices Group In 2001, Don Robert
Joined Expenan from First Amencan
becoming Chief Executive Officer of Expenan
North America 1n Decernber 2002 In
February 2005 he took responsibility for
Expenan globally as Cheef Executive Officer
of Expenan Group Don Robert joined the
Board of the former GUS plc in Apnl 2005
His other business appointments include
Director of First Advantage Corporation
member of the Chapman University Board of
Counseltors and past Chairman of the
Consumer Data tndustry Association

Laurence Danon {51)
Mon-Executive Dwector

Laurence Danon was the frestdent and CEQ
of Pnntemnps SA the French department
store chain untf January 2007 She led the
buyout of Printemps from PPR, Europe’s
largest non-food retaller in 2006 Prior to
Prntemps Laurence heid vanowus seror roles
atl Total Fina ER She began her career
waorking for the French Government She 1s a
Non Executve Director of Diageo Pic and
Plasuc Omnmium SA

Paul Brooks {53)
Chief Financial Officer

Paul Brooks graduated from Cambndge
Unversity with an economcs degree and
went on 10 qualfy as a Chartered
Accouniant with KPMG  He then poined IC1
where he worked for the Plastics Division In
Brussels and Corporate Reporing Group in
London After five years with GKN's
Industnal Services Division mostly spent as
Diistonal CFQ wn the USA Paul Brooks
joined Inchcape latterly as inchcape
Marketing Services Finance Direclor based in
Singapore He joined Expenan in April 1999
as Finance Director of Expenan Intermational
and was appointed Global Chief Finanaal
Officer in October 2001

Roger Daws (50)
Non-Executive Director

Roger Daws spent some erght years at
Barclays latterly as the CEO of the 45 000
strong UK Bankmng operation and as a
member of the Board of Barclays Pic Prior 10
that he spent some ten years in investment
banking in London and in vartous positions
v Asia for Flemings and later BZW Roger 15
Charman of the Remuneration Committee
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Non-executive directors

Sean FutzPatnck (58)
Non-Executive Director

Sean FitzFatnck 1s currently non-executive
Chairman of Anglo Insh Bank Corporation
plc, having retired as CEO of that
organisation in January 2005 He s also the
Non-Executive Chairman of Smurfit Kappa
PLC a past President of the Insh Bankers
Federauon and a Non-Executve Director of
Aer bingus Group ple and Greencore Group
plc Sean 15 a Chartered Accouniant

Sir Alan Rudge (69)
Non-Executive Director

Sir Alan Rudge was Deputy Chief Executive
of BT untl November 1997 and Chaiman of
WS Atkins untd March 2001 He jomed the
Board of the former GUS plc in 1997 and
unyil March 2005 was President of CELTEL
International BY and a Non Executive
Director on the Board of SESA AG He s
currently Chairman of the ERA Foundation
Ltd and Pro Chancellor of Surrey University
Sir Atan ts the Semor independent Director
of Expenan He has a PhD in Blectncal
Engmeering and s a Fellow of the Royal
Society and the Royal Academy of
Engineerng He 15 a past President of the
Institumion of Electncal Engineers and past
Chairman of the Engineenng and Physical
Sciences Research Counal

Alan Jebson (57)
Non-Executive Director

Alan Jebson retired in May 2006 as Group
Chiet Operating Oficer of HSBC Holdings
Pz, a positon that included responsibility for
IT and Global Resourcing During a long
career with HSBC  Alan heid varnious
posiions i (T ncluding the position of
Group CIO His roles mcluded responstbiiity
for the Group s international systems
including the consolidation of HSBC and
widland systems followang the acquisition of
Midland Bank in 1993 Ha 15 a Non-Executive
Director of Vodafone Group Plc and of
McDonald Dettweiler in Canada Alan s a
Fellow of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales and 1s
Chairman of the Audit Commitiee

Dawig Tyler (54)
Non-Executive Director

Dawvid Tyler graduated wy 1974 from
Cambrnidge Umiversity where he read
Economics Followang 11 years with Unilever,
he joined County NatWest where he held a
number of senior financial control roles He
then worked for Christie’s International from
198% to 1996 as Finance Director and as
President of Christie's Amenica Dawid Tyler
was Group Finance Director of the former
GUS pl¢ from February 1957 unalb its
demerger in October 2006 He 15 now a
Non-Exegutive Director of Burberry Group ple
and Reckitt Benckser plc He is a Fellow of
the Chariered Institute of Management
Accountants and a Member of the
Association of Corporate Treasurers

Company Secretary
Charles Brown FCIS

Auditors

PricewaterhouseC oopers LLP

Registered office

22 Grenville Street

5t Heber

lersey

JE4 BPX

Reqistered No 93905

Reqistrars

Lioyds TSB {Jersey) Services Limited

PC Box 63

11 12 Esplanade
St Heler

Jersey

JE4 8PH

Audit Commuttee

Alan lebson tChairman
Fabwla Arredondo
Laurence Danon

Roger Dawis

Sean FitzPatnck

Sir Alan Rudge

David Tyler

Remuneration Committee
Roger Dawis {(Chatrmand
Fabiola Arredonda
Laurence Danon

Sean FitzPatnck

Sir Alan Rudge

Dawd Tyder

Namination Committee
John Peace (Chairman:
Fabiola Arredondo
Laurence Danon

Roger Davis

Sean FizPatnck

Don Robert

Sr Alan Rudge

Dawnd Tyler
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Directors’ report

The directors present therr report and the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2007

Demerger

On 10 October 2006, GUS plc (now called Experian
Finance plc) separated its Expenan business from 1ts Home
Retail Group business by way of demerger As part of the
demerger, Expenian Group Limited became the ultimate
holding company of GUS plc and related subsidianes and
shares in GUS pl¢ ceased to be listed an the London Stock
Exchange on 6 October 2006 Experian Group Limited
was mcorporated and registered on 30 June 2006 under
the Compantes (lersey) Law 1991 as a public company
hmited by shares Shares in Experian Group Limited were
admitted to the UK Listing Authonity's Official List and
trading on the tondon Stock Exchange’s market for listed
secunties commenced on 11 October 2006

Prinaipal activities and business review

Experian 1s a global leader in providing information
solutions to business clients and consumers It helps
organisations to find new customers and develop and
manage existing relationships by prowding data, decision
making solutions and processing services It also helps
consumers to understand, manage and protect their
personal information and make more informed purchase
decisions A review of the results for the year and an
indication of future developments appear on pages 16 to
37 Research and development investment has been a
high prionty for Expenian in driving growth, particularly in
relatton 1o product development Research expendsture
totalled $5m during the year 1o 31 March 2007 (and the
amount charged to the Group income statement in the
year was $5m)

Profit and dividends

The Group income statement on page 60 shows a profit
for the finangial year to 31 March 2007 of $463m The
directors have announced the payment of a second
intenm dividend of 11 5 US cents per ordinary share to be
paid on 27 tuly 2007 to shareholders on the register on
2% June 2007 An interm dmdend of 5 5 US cents per
ordinary share was paid on 2 February 2007 giving a total
dividend for the year of 17 0 US cents per ordinary share

Directors

The names and biographical details of the directors are
shown on pages 38 and 39 Particulars of directors’
remuneration, service contracts and their interests in the
Ordinary shares of the Company are shown n the report
on directors’ remuneration on pages 47 to 58 There were
no changes in the directors’ interests in the Company’s
Ordinaty shares between the end of the financial year
and 22 May 2007

Geoffrey Moore and Stephen Ranalow, the directors on
incorporation of the Company on 30 June 2006, resighed
on & luly 2006 John Peace, Paul Brooks, Don Robert and
Dawvid Tyter were appointed directors on & July 2006 and

Sir Alan Rudge was appointed on 6 September 2006
Fabiola Arredondo, Laurence Danon, Roger Davis and
Alan Jebson joined the Board on 1 January 2007 Sean
FrizPatnick was appointed to the Board with effect from
1 April 2007

In accordance with the Company's Articles of Association,
all the directors retire at this year's Annual General
Meeting, being the first annual general meeting after their
appointment Each of them, being eligible, offer
themselves for election The Board proposes to carry out
the first formal evaluation of s performance, s
commuttees and its members dunng the year ending 31
March 2008 In the meantime the Board s sausfied that
the performance, contnbution and commitment of the
directors 15 such that they ment election Any director who
15 so elected will retire at ieast every three years and

unless he or she has agreed to retire, he or she shall be
eligible for re-election

During the year, the Company mamntaned hability
insurance and third party indemnification provisions for s
directors and officers

Acquisitions

The Group made a number of acquisitions in the year
under review, details of which are included in note 30 to
the financial statements on page 110

On 18 Apnl 2007 the Company announced rts intention,
subject to regulatory approval, to acquire Hitwise, a
leading internet marketing intelligence company for
$240m The Company announced the acquisiiions of
Emailing Solution, a teading French permission-based
emall marketing company, and the Tallyman collections
management software business from Talgentia, a
software solutions company, on 3 May 2007 and 11 May
2007 respectively

Substantial shareholdings

As at 22 May 2007, the Company had been notified of
the following interests in its 1sswed ardinary share capital
or voting nghts

Percentage of

Direct/ Number of  1ssued share
Date of indirect  ordinary shares/  capital/voting
Notification Shareholder interest ) voting nghts (1) nights {1}
5 February 2007  Legal and General Direct 51238 042 501%

Group plc

() Untl 20 January 2007 substanual shareholders were required to notify their interesss in
accordance wath the Company's Articles of Association and thereafter following
implementation of the EU Transparency Directive effected by the Financial Services
Authonty's Disclosure and Transparency Rules also thetr voting nghts in accordance wath

those rules

Save for the above, no person has notfied any interest of
3 per cent ar more of any non-material interest equal to
or more than 10 per ceni of the 1ssued ordinary share
capital or in the voung rights of the Company
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Share caprtal

Detatls of changes to the Company's ordinary share capital
in the penod to 31 March 2007 are set out m note J to
the Company’s financial statements on page 127

Own shares

The existing authority for the Campany to purchase its
own shares, which expires at the end of this year's Annual
General Meeting, was given at an Extraordinary General
Meeting held on 13 September 2006 and permitted the
Company to purchase, in the market, up to 149,900,000
of its own shares Details of the new authority being
requested are contained in the accompanying circular 1o
shareholders There 1s no concept of treasury shares under
Jersey company law and therefore the Company would
cancel any shares 1t buys back under this authority

The Company did not utilise this authority 1o make any
purchases of 1ts own shares during the period under
review

Detalls of the shares in the Company heid under the GUS
ESOP Trust, the Experian Group Limited Employee Share
Trust and the Expenian UK Approved Ali-Employee Plan
Trust are set out In note K to the Company's financial
statements on page 128

Donations

During the period the Group donated $0 7m to charitable
causes Funds from the GUS Trust dispersed through
Expenan dunng the year totalled 30 5m

In addition to cash contributions, the Group's employees
are encouraged to give therr time and skills for the benefit
of a vanety of charitable causes

During the year the Group made no EU political
donations

Employment of people with disabiirties

People with disabilities, whether registered or not, have
equal opportunities when applying for vacancies, with due
regard 1o their aptitudes and abites In addition to
complying with legislative requirements, procedures are in
place to ensure that disabled employees are farly treated
and that therr training and career development needs are
carefully managed For those employees becomeng
disabled during the course of therr employment, the
Group Is supportive, whether through retraining or
redeployment, 50 as to provide an opportunity for them
to remain with the Group

Employee involvement

The Group 15 1ntent on motivating and keeping staff
informed on matters that concern them in the context of
therr employment and involve them through local
consultative procedures Where there are recognition
agreements with trade unions, the consultation process s
established through national and local trade union
representatives and through jont consuftation
committees Information on matiers of concern 1o
employees and about the financial and economic factors

affecting the Group's performance Is also dissemmated
through management channels, conferences, meetings,
publications and internet sites

Employees are actively encouraged to become
shareholders in Experian through the provision of Save As
You Earn and other All Employee share plan arrangements
which are intended to align the interests of employees
with those of shareholders

Creditor payment

For all trade credrtors, 1t 1s Group pohcy 1o -

¢ Agree and confirm the terms of payment at the
commencement of business with that supplier,

Pay in accordance with any contract agreed with the
supplier or as required by law, and

Review continually the payment procedures and liaise
with suppliers as a means of eliminating difficuities and
maintaining a good working retationship

Trade credrtors of the Group at 31 March 2007 were 36
days based on the ratic of Group trade creditors at the
end of the year to the amounts invaiced during the year
by trade creditors The Company has no trade creditors

Annual General Meeting

The first Annual General Meeting of the Company will be
held at the Four Seasons Hotel, Simmonscourt Road,
Bublin 4, Ireland at 9 30 am on Wednesday, 18 July 2007
Shareholders who are unable to attend In person may
watch a web broadcast of the event on the Group’s
website www experiangroup com and may

subrmit questions beforehand via email to
agmaquestions@experiangroup com or on the prepaid card
sent to shareholders The guestions will be addressed at
the meeting, via the website or indmdually as appropriate
The notuice of meeting 1s included in a separate arcular 1o
shareholders which accompanies tius annual report | 15
also avallable on the Group’s website

WWW experiangroup com

Auditors

The auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, were
appointed by the Board on 6 July 2006 and have
indicated their wilingness to continue in office

A resolution that they be re-appointed will be proposed
at the Annual General Meeting

Corporate Headquarters
Newenham House
Northern Cross
Malahide Road
Dubhn 17

By Order of the Board
Charles Brown
Company Secretary
22 May 2007

Registered Office
22 Grenville Street
St Helier

Jersey JE4 8PX
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Corporate governance

Combined Code

The Board of Expenian is responsible for the Group's
systemn of corporate governance The Board 1s committed
to good governance and to maintaiving the highest
standards of integnity in all the Group's activittes This
statement describes how the Company has applied the
main and supportng principles set out in Section 1 of the
Combined Code on Corporate Governance published by
the UK Financial Reporting Councll in July 2003 and
amended in July 2006 {the “Code") Expenan compled
with the Code's provisions throughout the penod from
Isting on 11 October 2006 until 31 March 2007 except
that (1) John Peace did not meet fully the independence
crieria set out in the Code on his appointment as
Charrrnan, (2) the Board and its commuttees did not for
the whole period comply with the requirements m respect
of the number of independent non-executive directors,
and (3) no formal evaluation of the Board's performance
or that of its committees or individual directors”
performance was undertaken These matters are
explained later n this statement

The Board

At the date of this report, the Board consists of a
Chairman, a Chief Executive Officer, a Chief Financial
Officer and seven non-executive directors The names and
biographical details of the directors are shown on pages
38 and 39 of this report

The Chairman, John Peace, did not meet fully the
independence critena set out 1n the Code on his
appointment as he was previously the Group Chief
Executive of GUS plc The nommation committee of GUS
plc which recommended his appointment was strongly of
the opinion that his appointment was 1in the best interests
of Expenan and tts shareholders in view of his unrivalled
expenence of Expenan’s business and markets and the
need for the Chairman 1o have a dose working
relatonship with Experian’s Chief Executive Officer and 1ts
expenenced global management team As a consequence,
the position was not openly advertised and external
search consultants were not mstructed The Board of
Expenian endorses this view

Don Robert and Paul Brooks remained Chief Executve
Officer and Chief Financial Officer of Expenan respectwvely
following demerger also on the recommendation of the
nomination committee of GUS plc Mr Robert served on
the Board of GUS plc They both had exiensive knowledge
and expenence of the businesses from the period pnor to
the demerger in October 2006 and had demonstrated
exceptional skills and leadersiip in ther current rofes

Six of the seven non-executive directors are determened by
the Board to be independent in character and judgment
with no relationships or arcumstances which could affect,
or appear to affect, their judgment Dawid Tyler was the
Group Finance Director of GUS plc and so 15 not
considered mndependent The non-executive directors are
appointed for three-year renewable terms Sir Alan Rudge
15 the seniwr independent director Four of the
independent non-executive directors were appointed with
effect from 1 fanuary 2007 and a fifth was appointed
with effect from 1 Apnl 2007 The Company therefore
complied with the Code's requirement that not less than

half the Board {excluding the Chairman) comprise
independent non-executive directors from 1 January 2007
onwards

The Board plans to have six scheduled meetings each year
and may meet more frequently as required It had three
scheduted meetings and one ad-hoc meeting In the
period from listng until 31 March 2007 One of these
meetings took place in Costa Mesa in California,
otherwise they were held in Dubhn, Ireland 1t 15 inevitable
that there will be occasions when crcumstances arise to
prevent directors from attending meetings In such
arcumstances, the usugl practice 15 for the absent director
to review the Board papers and convey any views on
specific 1ssues to the Chairman The time commment
expected of non-executive directors 15 not restricted to
Board and Commuttee meetings They are avatlable for
consultation on specific issues falkng within their
parucular fields of expertise and additional time 1s spent
visiting the Group’s businesses and meeting informally
with the Chairman and executive directors Together the
nan-executive directors bring an objective viewpaint and
range of expenence to the Company which ensures that
no indmidual or group of individuals 15 able to dominate
the Board's deciston making

There 15 a formal schedule of matters specfically reserved
to the Board for decision The Board establishes overall
Group strategy, approves the Group's operating budget
and monrtors performance through the receipt of monthly
reports and management accounts The approval of
significant acquisttions and divestments 1s a matter
reserved for the Board although 1t delegates to the Boards
of the Company's principal operating subsidianes the
responsibiiity for approving smalier acquisitions and
disposals The monetary imits of such delegations are
formally documented and the exercise of such delegated
authornities are reported to the Board at each of 1ts
meetngs There are also authority levels covenng capital
expenditure which can be exercised by the Boards of the
Company's principal operating subsidiarnies Beyond these
levels of authority, projects are referred to the Board for
approval Other matters reserved for the Board in¢lude

» Approval of intenm and annual financial statements
* Treasury policies

= Internal controls and risk management

¢ Succession planning

+ Corporate responsibihity

The dwision of responsibilities between the Chairman and
the Chief Executive Officer 15 clearly established set out in
writtng and agreed by the Board The Chief Executve
Officer 1s responsible for day to day management and
performance of the Group’s businesses The Charman’s
role 15 1o ensure good corporate governance which
includes leading the Board and ensuring its effectiveness
in all aspects of its role For scheduled Board meetings,
the agenda includes reports from the Chief Executive
Officer and the Chuef Financial Officer The January
meeting focuses on strategy, the March meeting deals
with the approval of operating budgets {or the coming
financral year, while the May and November meetings
cover the approval of prefiminary and intenim financial
statements respectively Members of serior management
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below Board fevel are often invited to make presentations
to the Board and pariicipate in certain aspects of the
strategy review

The Charrman, with assistance from the Company
Secretary, ensures that the Board 15 supplied in a timely
manner with information in a form and of a quality to
enable it to discharge its dunies The practce 1s to have
the agenda and supporting papers circulated to the Board
one week before each meeting Addmtional information s
also provided to directors including monthly management
accounts irrespective of whether or not a Board meeting 1s
scheduled for that month Arrangements are made for
non-executive directors to visit the Group's businesses 1o
see their operations at first hand and have the
opportunity to discuss them with local management

The Chairman and the non-executive directors plan to
meet, at least annually, as a group without the executive
directors present At the conciusion of such meetings, the
Chairman will withdraw so that, under the leadership of
the senior independent director, the non-executive
directors have the opportunity to discuss any appropriate
issues and, at least annually, will appraise the Chairman's
performance, 1aking account of any views expressed by
the executive directors

There 15 In place a procedure under which the directors, in
furtherance of therr duties, are able to take ndependent
professional advice, i necessary, at the Company's
expense The Company Secretary 1s responsible for
ensunng that Board procedures are followed and all
directors have access to his advice and services

All directors receve an Induction programme on Joining
the Board which takes into account thewr particular
experience and background The process includes
information on the Group, 1ts activities and operating
procedures, meetings with senior management and site
visits Additional training and updates on particular 1ssues
pertinent to ther role as a director are arranged for
directors as appropriate Two days were set aside for
induction and training prior to the Board meeting held in
January 2007

The Company Secretary 1s responsible for advising and
supporting the Chairman and the Board on all corporate
governance matters, a responsibility he discharges in part
through his membership of the Corporate Governance
Committee

A formal evaluation of the performance of the Board and
1s commitiees is 10 be conducted in the year ending 31
March 2008 Consideration was given to carrying gut an
evaiuation earher but with four of the directors not being
appointed until 1 January 2007 1t was decided that an
evaluation during the year would not have been
appropnate The process will include the indmidual
appraisal of each director The Charman will be
responsible for these appraisals except his own which will
be the responsibility of the sermor independent director

All directors are subject to election by shareholders at the
first opportunity after their appomntment, If appointed by
the Board of Directors, and, thereafter, re-election at least
every third year in accordance with the Company’s Articles
of Association Being the first year since the demerges, all
the directors will be reuning at the Annual General
Meeting and standing for election While a formal Board
evaluation has not been carned out, the Chairman and
the Board are satisfied that the performance, contnbution
and commitment of each director 15 such that they
recommend each director for election

The letters of appointment for non-executive directors,
including the Chairman, are avallable for nspection by
any person at the Company’s registered office during
normal business hours and at the Annual General
Meeting (for 15 minutes prior to the meeting and during
the meeting)

Board committees

The Board has appointed a number of committees
mcluding the following principal committees Nomination
Committee, Rermuneration Committee and Audit
Commuttee The terms of reference of each of the
pnncpal Board cormmittees are avallable on request and
can be viewed on the Company's website at

www experiangroup com Further detalls of these
commuttees inclucing their membership and remits are set
out below In order to ensure that undue reliance 15 not
ptaced on particular ndividuals, all the non-executive
directors are currently members of each of the prinapal
Board committees

The attendance of directors at meetings of the Board and
the principal Board commutiees of which they are
members was as foliows for the period from hsting until
31 March 2007

Board Board Nomination Remuneration Audit
{Scheduled) {Ad-hoc} Committee Committee Comrittee
lohn Peace 373 0N 272 N/a N/a
Don Rabert 373 on 272 N/a Nfa
Paul Brooks 373 N N/a N/a N/a
Fabiola Arredondo 22 0/0 11 22 22
Laurence Danon 272 0/0 1 R 212
Roger Dawvis 212 0/0 1N 22 212
Alan Jebson 212 0/0 n 2 272
Sir Alan Rudge 373 on 22 212 373
Dawvid Tyler 33 11 2R 22 33

Sean FigzPatnck was appointed to the Board with effect from 1 April 2007

Experian Annual Report 2007



introduction | Business review | Governance | Financal statements

Corporate governance cont

Nommation Committee

The Board has established a Nornmation Committee
which feads the process for Board appointments and
makes recommendations to the Board The members of
the Nomination Commitiee are currently John Peace
{Chairman), Don Robert {Chief Executive Officer) and the
seven non-executive directors The Committee 15 chared
by lohn Peace except in respect of any matter concerning
the charrmanship of the Company when the senior
independent director takes the charr The Company
Secretary 1s the Secretary to the Committee [t meets at
least twice each year

The Nomination Commuttee has written terms of
reference covenng the authority delegated to it by the
Board hs duties include reviewing regularly the
composition (including the skills, knowledge and
expenence required) of the Board and making
recommendations to the Board with regard to any
changes, giving full consideration to succession planning
for directors and other senior executives, and identifying
and nominating, for the approval of the Board, candidates
1o fill Board vacancies as and when they anise

Foliowing the demerger, the Committee first met in
November 2006 when 1ts members were John Peace
{Chairman), bon Robert (Chief Executive Officer) and the
two non-executive directors As intended on demerger
and in accordance with best practice reflected in the
Code, the Committee recommended the appointment of
five independent directors to bring an appropriate balance
to the Board The Board subsequently approved the
recommendations with the result that Fabiola Arredondo,
Laurence Danon, Roger Davis and Alan Jebson were
appointed as additional directors with effect from

1 January 2007 and Sean FitzPatnick was appointed as a
director with effect from 1 Apnf 2007 All five new
independent non-executive directors have been appointed
to the Nomination Committee Two specialist search
companies were used 1n the process to identify the
additional non-executive directors

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee compnses the seven non-
executive directors including David Tyler who 15 not
considered independent Roger Davis 15 the Chairman of
the Committee The Charman and Chief Executive Officer
are Invited to attend Committee meetings and both
attended all of the Committee meetings 1n the period
since hsting Fabiola Arredondo, Laurence Danon, Roger
Davis, Atan Jebson and Sean FrizPatrick were all appointed
as members of the Committee following their
appointment as directors In the period from iisting to 31
March 2007, the Commrttee met twice The Company
Secretary s the Secretary to the Committee and the
Group HR Drrector and Global Head of Reward usually
attend The apphcation of corperate governance principles
in relation to directors’ remuneration 1s described in the
repoit on directors’ remuneration on pages 47 t0 58

Audit Commuttee

The Auvdit Committee compnses the seven non-executive
directors includmg David Tyter who 1s not considered
independent Alan Jebson is the Chairman of the

Committee Fabiola Arredondo, Laurence Danon, Roger
Dawis, Adan Jebson and Sean FitzPatrick were all appointed
as members of the Commuttee foliowing thewr
appointment as directors Although not strictly in
accordance with the Code, David Tyler's membership of
the Committee provides significant recent and relevant
financial experience and an in-depth knowledge of
Expenan's business, with him having been the Group
Finance Director of GUS plc from February 1997 untit the
demerger The other members of the Committee bring a
wide range of international business experience from
positions at the highest level woridwide (the directors’
biographical details appear on pages 38 and 39) The
Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial
Officer are normally invited to attend Committee meetings
and each attended all of the meetings held in the period
from demerger unul 31 March 2007 The Company
Secretary s the Secretary to the Committee

The mamn role and responsibilities of the Committee are
set out In written terms of reference which are reviewed
annually The Committee’s principal oversight
responsibiities inciude internal control and risk
managemsnt, mternal audr, externat audit {(including
auditor Independence) and financial reporting

The Committee will meet not less than three times a year
In the period from listing until 31 March 2007 1t met
three times The external auditors, the Executive Vice
President, Risk Management and the Head of Global
Internal Audit generally also attend Audit Committee
meetings In addition, the Committee meets the external
auditors and the Head of Global internal Audit without
management present

The Audit Commuttee has a structured programme linkect
to the Group's financal calendar During the period under
review, the Committee undeniook the following actvities

+ Reviewed the Interim Results Announcement and
considered reports from the external auditors
identifying any accounting or judgmental ssues
requiring its attention,

¢ Reviewed and approved audit plans for the external and
internal auditors,

+ Considered quarterly nsk and assurance reposts and
internal audnt reports on the results of internal audit
reviews, significant findings, management audst plans
and timehness of resolution

+ Reviewed reports on the Group’s risk management
process and nsk profile,

* Reviewed, at each scheduled meeting, a report on any
material ligation involving Group companies,

* Reviewed presentauons on nisk and its identification,
management and control 1n Experian with semor
management, and

+ Reviewed arrangements by which Group employees
may, In confidence, raise concerns about possible
improprigties In financial reporting or other matters

One of the primary responsibilinies of the Audit
Commutiee 15 to make recommendations to the Board in
relation to the appointment, re-appoiniment and removal
of the external auditors A number of factors were taken
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into account by the Committee i assessing whether to
recommend the external auditors for re-appointment
These included

* The qualty of repors provided to the Audit Committee
and the Board and the quality of advice given,

The level of understanding demonstrated of the Group's
businesses and its sectors, and

The objectivity af the external auditors’ views on the
controls around the Group and their ability to co-
ordinate a global audit working to tight deadlines

Following the completion of the first year-end audit
process, the Committee will assess the effectiveness of the
external audrt process covering all aspects of the audit
service provided by the Company’s external auditors The
Commitiee will also review a report on the external
audetors” ewn quality control procedures

The Committee recognises that auditor independence 1s
an essential part of the audit framework and the
assurance i provides Non-audit fees paid to the
Company’s audrtors, PnicewaterhouseCoopers LLF, in
respect of the penod under review exceeded the audit fee
and mcluded fees relating to the demerger The
Commuttee has estabhished control processes to safeguard
the objectivity and independence of the external auditors
and to ensure that the independence of the audit work
undertaken by the external auditors ts not compromised

The Committee has established a policy covering the type
of non-audit work that can be assigned to the external
auditors The auditors may only provide such services
provided that such adwice does not confhict wath their
statutory responsibiliies and ethical guidance These
services are

 Further assurance services - where the external auditors’
deep knowledge of the Group's affarrs means that they
may be best placed to carry out such work This may
include, but 1s not restricted 1o, sharehoelder and other
arculars, regulatory reports and work i connection
with acquisiiions and dvestments

« Taxation services - where the external auditors’
knowledge of the Group’s affairs may provide
significant advantages which other parties would not
have Where this s not the case, the work 15 put out to
tender

¢ General - in other arcumsiances, the external auditors
may provide services, provided that proposed
assigniments are put out 1o tender and decisions to
award work are taken on the basis of demeonsirable
competence and cost effectveness However, certain
areas of work are specfically prohibited including work
related to accounting records and financiat statements
that wll uitmately be subject to external audit,
management of, or significant involvement in, internal
audit services, any work that could campromise the
independence of the external auditors, and any other
work that 1s prohibited by UK ethical guidance

The Audit Committee Chairman’s pre-approval 1s required
before the Company uses non-audit services that exceed
financial hmits set outn the policy

The Commitiee recewes half-yearly reports prowiding
details of assignments and related fees carried out by the
external auditors 1n addition to therr normal work Fees n
respect of such assignments carried out in the year under
review are set out in note 5 to the financial statements on
page 81

Corporate Governance Committee

In addtion to the principal Board committees, the Board
has establisheg a number of other committees including a
Corporate Governance Committee with written terms of
reference to assist In its monitoring of corporate
governance issues The Cormmittee’s responsibilities
include keeping under review all legislative, regulatory and
corporate governance developments that might affect the
Company’s operations and making recommendations 10
the Board in refation to them The members of the
Corporate Governance Committee are John Peace
{Charman), Don Robert {Chief Executive Officer), Si Alan
Rudge {the senior independeni director) and Charles
Brown (Company Secretary)

Accountability and Audit

The Board acknowledges that it 1s responsible for the
Group’s system of internal control and for reviewing tis
effectiveness Such a system 15 designed to manage rather
than eliminate the nsk of failure to achieve business
objectives and can provide reasonable, but not absolute,
assurance against matenal misstaternent or toss The
Board reviews annually the effeciiveness of the key
pracedures which have been established to prowde
internal conteol

The Board confirms that there 1s an ongoing process for
udentifying, evaluating and managing the significant risks
faced by the Group, including those nsks relating to
social, environmental and ethical matters This process
was In piace throughout the penod under review and up
1o the date of approval of the Annual Report and meets
the requiremnents of the Code For certain joint
arrangements, the Board places rellance upon the systems
of internal control operating within the partners’
infrastructure and the obligations upon partners’ Boards
relating to the effectiveness of their own systems In the
Board's view, the information 1t received was sufficient 1o
enable it 1o review the effectiveness of the Group’s system
of internal contral m accordance with the ‘internal Control
Revised Guidance for Directors’ contained in the Code
The Audrt Committee has kept under review the
effectiveness of this system of internal control and has
reported regularly to the Board

The key procedures, which operaied throughout the year,
were as foliows

Risk assessment

« The Group set out its objectives clearly as part of its
planning process and organisation design These
objecuves were then incorporated as part of the
planning cycle and supported by the use of both
finanaial and non-finanaiai key performance indicators
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Risks were methodically anticipated, identified, assessed
and apprapriately mitigated as part of an enterprise
wide risk management process operating throughout
the Group on an ongoing basis

Semor management made presentations on risk to the
Audit Committee, which reported reguiarily to the Board
on the nsks facing the Group's business

The Audit Committee has delegated responsibility from
the Board for considering operational, financial and
compliance nsks on a regular basis and received its
annual report on the controis over these rnsks This
included risks ansing fram social, environmental and
ethical matters

Control envircnment and control activities

The Group has established procedures for delegated
authorty which ensure that deasions that are
significant, either because of their value or the inherent
degree of nsk, are taken at an appropriate level

The Group has implemented appropriate strategies to
deal with each significant risk that has been identrfied
These strategies inciude internal controls, insurance and
specialised treasury instruments

The Group sets out principles, pohcies and standards to
be adhered to throughout its business These include
nsk identification, management and reporting
standards, ethical prinCiples and practice, accounting
policies, treasury poiicy, information securty policy and
policy on fraud and whistieblowing

information and communication

* The Group has a comprehensive system of budgetary
control, Includmg monthly performance reviews, for
each major bustness These reviews are at a detailed
level within each region and global business line and at

a high ievel for the Board

On a monthly basis, the achievement of business
objectives, both finanaial and non-financial, was
assessed using a range of performance indicators These
indicators were regularly reviewed ¢ ensure that they
remain relevant and refiabie

The Group had whistleblowing procedures in place for
employees to report suspected improprieties

Monrtoning

¢ A range of procedures were used to monstor the
effective apphcation of internal control i the Group,
including management assurance, through the ongoing
risk management process, and independent assurance,
through internal audit reviews and reviews by specaist
third parties

The internal audit departrnent’s responsibilities include
reporting to the Audit Committee on the effectiveness
of internal control systems, focusing on those areas
considered to be of greatest risk to the Group

Follow-up processes were used 0 ensure there was an
appropriate response 1o changes and developments in
rnsks and the contral ervironment

Relations with shareholders

The Company recogrises the importance of
communicating with ts sharehelders and does this
through 1ts Annual and Interim Reports, at the Annual
General Meeting {"AGM") and through the processes
described below

Alhough most shareholder contact 1s with the Chief
Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer,
supported by management specialising in investor
relations, 1t 1s the responsibility of the Board as a whole to
ensure that a satisfactory diaiogue with shareholders
takes place

At each of its scheduled Board meetings, the Board
reviews a report of all important or relevant 1ssues raised
by shareholders during the course of meetings and
discussions with them Additionally, the Board {and 1n
particular, the non-executive directors) obtains an
independent insight into the views of major shareholders
through research commissioned with a third party adviser
across a balanced sample of Experian’s shareholders The
fatter typically control some 20 to 30 per cent of the
Company's 1ssued share capital The findings of the
research are presented to the Board by the third

party adviser

There 1s a direct line of communication to the Chairman
available to shareholders particularly if there are ssues of
concern, whether about performance, strategy or
governance Sir Alan Rudge, the senior independent
director, 15 also availabie should shareholders have
concerns which contact through the normal channels of
the Chairman, the Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financiat Officer fails to resolve or for which such
contact 1s inappropriate Shareholders are also offered
the opportunity to meet the Company's non-executive
directors

Sharehalders who do not support a particular AGM
resolution do not atways seek engagement wath
companies to explain their actions or request further
information The Company would be keen to understand
their reasons for any lack of support and to have a
dialogue with sharenolders on these 1ssues Its policy,
therefore, insofar as 1 practicable, would be tc seek
engagement with shareholders on such 1ssues \

Drrectors, including the Charrmen of the Audit,
Remuneration and Nomination Committees, will
attend the AGM and will be availlabie to answer
shareholders’ questions

Votng at the AGM will be by way of poll The resuits of
voting at the AGM will be announced and details of the
votes will also be added to the Group’s website,

WWww experiangroup com, as 500n as possible after
the meeting
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Report on directors’ remuneration

1 Remuneration Committee

11 Role

The Remuneration Committee has responsibiity for

o recommending Experian’s policy on the remuneration of Senior Management,

s determining the remuneration level and struciure for executwe directors and approving that of selected executives who report to the
executive directors,

= communicating 1o shareholders on remuneration policy and the Committee’s work on behalf of the Board,

* reviewing and recommending the design of the Group’s share schemes

The remuneration of non-executive direciors and the Chairman 15 a matter reserved for the Board as a whole No director 15 involved in any

discusstons as to his or her own remuneration

The Remuneration Committee has written terms of reference which are avallable on request from the Company Secretary and are also

published on the Group’s websiie www experiangroup com

12 Membership and meetings

Since the date of demerger of GUS plc, the Remuneration Committee has comprised the following non-executive directors

Roger Dawis (Chairman, appointed 1 January 2007}

Fabioia Arredondo (appoinied 1 January 2007}

taurence Danon (appointed 1 January 2007)

Alan Jebson (appointed 1 January 2007)

Sir Alan Rudge (appointed 6 September 2006)

Dawvid Tyler (appointed & July 2006)
Sean FitzPatnck joined the Committee from 3 Apnl 2007, hss date of appointment

in the perod from hsting on 11 October 2006 to 31 March 2007, the Committee has met twice Attendance at these meetings Is set out In
the corporate governance statement on page 43

13 Advisers

In making s decisions, the Committee consults with the Chairman, the Chief Executive Officer, the Group HR Director and the Global
Head of Reward who are iInvited to attend meetings of the Committee as and when appropnate They are not permitted to participate n
discussions or decisions relating to their own remuneration |
The Committee has access to independent consultants to ensure that it recewes independent advice

Towers Pernin, Kepler Associates (Kepler) and Linklaters have been the prinapal advisers 10 the Committee in the penod under review
providing market information and general remuneration adwvice

A full Tist of the advisers who provided data or consulting services to the Committee during the year, together with details of other services
provided by them to the Company, can be found on the Expenan website

2 Remuneration pohicy

The Remuneration Commuttee of GUS plc reviewed the remuneration pelicy for executive directors prior to the demerger of the Company

The Refuneration Cammittee of Experian Group Linuted has determined that the policy remains appropriate for the coming year The

remuneration pohcy will be regularly reviewed by the Committee

The Remuneratien Committee aims to have 1n place a remuneration policy for the Company which Is consistent with 1ts business objectives,

and which can

1 pay market-competitive base salary fevels but no higher than this,

2 provide competitie performance-related compensation which influences petformance, and helps attract and retan executives by
providing the opportunity 1o earn substantial rewards for outstanding performance leading to long-term shareholder value,

3 apply demanding performance conditions to delver sustained profiiable growtn in all our businesses, thereby aligning incentives to
shareholders’ interests,

4 provide a balanced portfalio of incentives - bonus, options and shares which align both short term {one year) and longer term (three
years plus) performance such that sustamable growth and vatue are delivered,

5 provide accountability and transparency and align with the interests of shareholders,

& delver competitive benefits to underpin the other components of the remuneration package

Consistent with the policy, the Committee reviews the elements of the remuneration package relative to other comparable organisations
angd other companies of similar size and scope 1o Experian Performance-related (ncentives are targeted at upper guartile levels for
outstanding performance to produce a highly leveraged package if the Company’s growth objectives are attamed The Company 15
committed to performance-related pay at all levels within the organisation All employees are encouraged 10 participate as shareholders in
the Company
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21 Remuneration of executive directors

The remuneration package Is weighted towards the performance-
related elements of the package In fair value terms, the proportion
of total pay (excluding pensions and benefits) which 1s variable 15
approximately 71 per cent, as illustrated

The Remuneration Commtttee selects performance measures that
align with the Group's strategic goals and that are transparent and
clear to both directors and shareholders Each element in the
reward package Is designed to support the achievernent of
different Company objectives, as illustrated below

Element Purpose Deivery Policy
{a) Base salary - Reflects the competitive market - In cash - Indwidual contribution
salary level for the indwidual - Monthly — Reviewed annuzlly
and therr role — Pensionable
- Takes account of personal
contribution, skill and performance
(b} Annual bonus/ - Rewards the achievement of — Cash/deferred - Profit before tax
Co-investment Plan annua! financial targets shares ts the key measure
- Provides opportunity to re-invest - Annual

bonus in Experan shares
with matching opportunities
- Aligns with shareholder
Interests through delvery in shares

— Non-pensionable

(C} Expenan - Aligns with shareholder interests
Performance through delivery of shares
Share Plan — Rewards sustained growth in

shareholder value and out-performance
compared to peers

- Acts as a retention tool as demerger
awards are released five years after
date of grant

— Shares, subject
to performance
conditions

Relative total
shareholder return
against a tailored
comparator group
measured over a
three-year period,
subject to satisfactory
overall financal
performance

Profit before tax

over a three-year penod

{d) Experian Share — Direct link to growth objectives
Option Plan through EPS growth hurdle and to
value creation through share
price (ncrease
- Aligns with shareholder interests
through defivery of shares
- Acts as a retention tool as options
vest equally on third and fourth
annwersary of date of grant

- Shares under
option, subject to
perfarmance
conditions

EPS growth measured over
3 three year perod

{e) Sharesave - Opportunity to invest In Experian - Shares under ~ Employees must
shares over three or five year savings option bought be in employment on
penod with accumulated quahfying date

savings at the end of 1n order 1o participate
the savings perniod

{f) Pension - To provide market competitive ~ Monthly — Defined benefit scheme
post-renrement benefits contrnbutions - US 401k (defined

contnbution) arrangements
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(a) Base salary and benefits

To ascertam the job's market value, external remuneration consultants annually review and provide data about market salary levels and
advise the Remuneration Committee Execuiive directors' salanes are benchmarked against a mid-market tevel of mam board executive
directors from the comparator compares in the FTSE 100 index and other global comparators which reflect the market in which we recruit
talent Before making a final decision on individual salary awards, the Committee assesses each director’s contribution to the business, to
reflect Indwidual performance and experience

In addrtion to base salary, executive directors receve cerfain benefits in kind mcluding a car or car allowance, prwvate heafth cover and Iife assurance
{p) Annual bonus and Co-investment Plan

Annual bonuses are awarded for achieving profit growth targets We beleve that inking incentives to profit growth helps to reinforce our
growth objectrves Targets are calibrated by Kepler using benchmarks that reflect stretching internal and external expectations Benchmarks
Include broker earnings estmates, earnings estimates for competitors, straight-line profit growth consistent with median/upger quartle
shareholder reiurns over the next three to five years, latest projections for the current year, budget, strateg:c plan, long-term financiat goals

2006/07 bonus

For bonuses paid In respect of the year ended 31 March 2007, execuuive directors were eligible for an annual incentive with a target of 50
per cent of salary and a maximum of 100 per cent of salary for substantially exceeding targets Actual bonuses awarded were midway
between target and maximum level This 1s refleciive of strong performance against targets The executive directors will be entitled to
parucipate in the final cycle of the GUS Co-investment Plan as invitations 1o participate were issued prior to the confirmation of the
demerger Participants In the GUS Co-investment Plan receive a matching award of shares which rises on a shding scale up to 2 1 for
maximum performance The matching awards will vest three years following the date of grant There will be no further awards under the
GUS Co-investment Plan

2007/08 bonus

As disclosed in the demerger shareholder arcular, it was agreed that for annual bonuses paid in respect of the year ending 31 March 2008, the
maximum bonus opportunity for executive directors would increase to 200 per cent of base salary Thus level of annual bonus would only be
paid 1f Experian’s financial performance surpassed stretching financal targets and hence would only be payable If exceptional results were
delivered to shareholders The extension to the bonus opportunity for the executive directors was intended to recognise the global market in
which Experian operates and to place a larger proportion of the executive dwectors’ total remuneration ai nsk and accompanied the reduction
of the matching opportumty under the Experian Co-mvestment Plan to 1 1 {previously 2 1 under the GUS Co-investment Plan) Executive
directors will not participate in the Expenan Co-investment Plan for the 2007/08 fiscal year and any bonus payment will be made in cash

2008/09 bonus

For annual bonus earned in respect of the 2008/09 fiscal year, executive directors will be offered their first opporturity since the demerger
to defer receipt of thewr bonus and invest it in Expenan shares (" invested shares”) under the Experian Co-tnvestment Plan The release of
the 1nvested shares will be deferred for three years Participants will have dividend and voting rights in respect of the invested shares The
number of tvested shares acquired on behalf of the executive will be matched with an additional award of shares (“matching shares”)
The release of these matching shares to participants will be subject to the achievement of a performance condition

The release of these shares will be deferred for three years including the onginal bonus deferral Dividends will be accrued on these awards
if an executive resigns duning the three-year period he/she will forfert the night to the matching shares and the associated dividends

(¢} Experian Performance Share Plan

The Experian Performance Share Plan was approved by GUS shareholders at the EGM on 29 August 2006 An initial award was made to
participants, inciuding the executive directors, on 11 October 2006 There will be no further awards to executive directors under thss plan
uatil June 2009 Performance shares are 'free’ Experian shares for which no exercise price 1s payable The award 15 communicated to
particpants as an allocaton of shares which are subject to a performance condition which 1s measured over a three-year performance
period with a five-year vesting period Dividends will accrue on these awards

For the above demerger awards granted in October 2006, the performance condrtion s tn two separate parts, 50 per cent of the award
will be subject to achievement against a shding scale of growth in profit before tax (PBT) The threshold for vesting will be growth in PBT of
7 per cent per year at which 25 per cent of this part of the award will vest nising, on a straight-line bass, to 100 per cent of this part of the
award vesting at a growth in PBT of 14% per year

The remarning 50 per cent of the award will vest according to the performance of Expenian's total shareholder return (TSR) relative to the
following group of peer companies

Acxiom Fair Isaac Harte-Hanks

Alliance Data Systems Fidelity National Financial 1AC/Interactive Corp
Bisys Group Fimalac Moodys

Capita Group First American Reuters Group
Choicepotnt First Data Thomson

Dun & Bradstieet Fiserv Total System Services
Equifax Glabal Payments
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This bespoke comparator group consists of Experian’s main competitors in the business areas and countries in which the Group operates
This part of the award will not vest if Experian’s total shareholder return (detined as share price movement plus reinvested dividends) is
below the median return for the comparator group Once Expenan achieves median performance, 25 per cent of this portion of the award
may vest nsing on a straight-hne basis to 100 per cent of this part of the award vesting for upper quartile performance or better This ¢an
be summarised as follows

% of performance shares
subject to the TSR

Experian TSR ranking performance condition
In the peer group that will vest
st - 6th 100%

7th 85%

8th 70%

9th 55%

10th 40%

11th 25%

12th - 21st 0

The Committee considers that these are appropnate measures as they align the long-term interest of participants with those of
shareholders and provide both internal {(PBT) and external {TSR) facus for participants

{d) Expenan Share Option Plan

The Expenan Share Option Plan (ESOP) was approved by GUS shareholders at the EGM on 29 August 2006 It 15 tntended to aiign
shareholder and partictpant interests through share pnce growth Options will vest subject to the satisfaction of a stretching EPS target
which will be set prior to options being granted No awards will be made to executive directors under the ptan until June 2009

For each of the long term incentive plans, external consultants will be used to calculate whether ang the extent to which the performance
conditions have been met

(e) Expenan Sharesave

All executive directors and employees of Experian Group and any partcipating subsidiaries are eligible to particpate in Sharesave if they
have been employed by Expenan for a quahfying penod Sharesave provides an opportunity for employees to save a regular monthly
amount which at the end of the savings penod may be used to purchase shares under option

(f)y Pensions

Pensions are offered in line with competitive practice The retirement age for directors 1s 60 under arrangements which broadly provide a
pension of two thirds of final salary, ife assurance and 1ff health and dependants’ pensions Incentive payments (such as annual bonuses)
are not pensionable

The UK Finance Act 2004 made major changes to the taxation and regulation of occupational pension schemes and to the benefits which
occupational pension schemes may provide The Company has had arrangements in place for a number of years which were designed 10
ensure that UK directors who were affected by the 1989 HM Revenue and Customs earmings cap were placed in broadly the same position
as those who were not With the agreement of the trustees of the scheme the Company decided to retain a nouional earnings cap for is
existing and future employees, with the exception of new senior executives who will be pensioned on full basic salary up to the Lifetrme
Allowance

The Company has put security in place for the unfunded pension entitlements of UK executives affected by the earnings cap, by
establishing Secured Unfunded Retirement Benefits Schemes (SURBS) Furtier detalls are provided under the disclosure of the arrangements
for each director

(g} Service contracts

Each executive director has a rolling service contract which can be terminated by the Company giving twelve months’ notice in the event
of termunation of the director’s contract, any compensation payment 15 calculated in accordance wath normal legal panciples, including the
application of mitigation to the extent approprate in the circumstances of the case
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3 Performance graph

The Committee has chosen to illustrate the total shareholder return {'TSR’) for GUS plc until demerger and Expenan Group Limited against
the ETSE 100 tndex for the penod since bsting on 11 October 2006 to 31 March 2007 The FTSE 100 Index 1s the most appropriate index

against which TSR should be measured, as it 15 a widely used and understood index of leading UK companies The performance graph i1s
shown below
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The graph shows that at 31 March 2007 a hypothetical £100 invested in GUS and subsequently, Expenan on 31 March 2002 would have generated a total return of
£174 compared with a gain of £143 1f invested i the FTSE 100 Index

4  Non-executive directors’ remuneration policy

The Board's policy on non-executive directors’ remuneration 1s that

* Fees should reflect indvdual responsibilities and membership of Board Committees

« Remuneration should be 1n line with recognised best practice and sufficient to attract, motwate and retain high calibre non-executives
« Remuneration should be a combination of cash fees {paid quarterly) and Expenan shares (bought annually in the first quarter of the financal year)

» Non-executive directors are obliged to comply with a shareholding requirement explained below Any tax hability connected to these
arrangements 15 the responsibility of the individual director

« Non-gxecutive directors do not receive any benefits In kind with the exception of the Chairman who has the use of a company car and
private healthcare

The fees of non-executive directars were reviewed on therr appointment to the Board and wil next be reviewed 1n 2008 Fees will be
reviewed In the light of market practice :n FTSE 100 companies and anucipated number of days worked, tasks ang responsibilities

Base Fee €106,154
Senior Independent Direcior €19,437
Charr of Remuneration Commnttee €23,922
Chair of Audit Commuttee €31,398

Expenian reguires Its non-executive directors 10 builld up a holding in the Company’s shares equal to one times their annual fee One guarter
of therr annual fee 15 used to purchase shares in the Company each year until they reach this holding They are included in the table of
directors’ interests on page 58 Non-executive directors do not participate in executive share schemes or other employee share scheme
arrangements Non-executives do not have service contracts but each has a letter of appointment No non-executive director's letter of

appointment provides for any termimauon payment Each appointment 1s for a renewable three year term but may be terminated by either
party on one month’s written notice
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The information set out In sections 5 to 10 below has been subject to audrt
5 Annual remuneration

The following table shows an analysis of the emoluments of the indwidual directors for the full year ended 31 March 2007

Salary and Annual Total Total I

Feas bonus Benefits® 2007 2006 :
'000s ‘000s ‘000s '000s '000s

Chairman

John Peace @ £875 £875 £34 £1,784 £1,181

Executive directors

Don Robert @ $1,300 3937 3104 $2 341 $2,393

Paul Brooks # §596 3532 §242 $1,370 $1,068

Non-executive directors

Fabrola Arredondo €27 - 1 €28 -

Laurence Danon © €33 - - €33 -

Roger Dawis ® €39 - - €39 -

Alan jebson ® €40 - €1 €41 -

Sir Alan Rudge © €88 - €1 €89 £68

Dawid Tyler @ £545 £545 £20 £1,110 £735

Former directors

Sir Victor Blank ® £358 - £31 £389 £197

John Coombe ® f64 - - £64 £60

Andy Hornby ® £43 - - £43 £58 ‘

Frank Newman ® £43 - - £43 £58

Oliver Stocken © 64 - - £64 £81

The following shares were purchased for the former non-executive Directors of GUS plc over the two day pencd 20 and 21 July 2006 The
value reported below s included within the remuneration reported 1n the above table

No of Value

shares f
Sir Victor Blank® 18,000 179,252
John Coombe® 4,000 39,835
Andy Hornby® 2,500 24,897
Frank Newman® 2,500 24,897
Oliver Stocken® 4,000 39 835

Hotes

1 Non-executwe directors recewe an addibonal fee of €5 981 per tnp to atiend Board Meetings where such attendance involves inter<ontinental travel from their home locaton For the penad under rewew Fabiola Arredondo did not
recerve thrs aliowance as her ravel to the Board Meeting dic not indude such travel

2 Benetits to executive directors nclude private health care company car and fuel aliowance where applicabie

3 John Peace was appointed Chairman of Expenan Group Lemited on 6 July 2006 Until 11 Decenber 2006 he was aiso Group Chiel Executwve of GUS ple The figures in this table represent his salary benelits and direcior's fees for
the whale of the Imancial year and were pand by Expenan Fisance pic (formerly GUS plc} his emplover In fespect of his employment in thss pencd He did not recerve a separale fee s Chairman ot Expenan Group Limited for the
year ending 31 March 2007 During the year under rewew John Peace served as non-executwe Chaiman of Burberry Group pie He did nol recewe any addibonal remuneration for these services With ettect trom 1 Apnl 2007
Expenan Group Limited will pay hus director’s fees From ths date his fee 15 £450 000 per annum From 1 Apnl 2007 he 5 not ehgible for a performance bonus pension contbutions of turther long term meentve awards but will
fonbnue 10 receve 3 company car benelil and coverage under the Campany s private healihcare arngements

4 Dor Robert and Paul Brooks were appoinied to the Board ol Experan Group Limited on 6 July 2006 Don Robert remains 2 Director of Expenian Frnance plc The tigures in the table repeesent sums paid tor the whole of the financial
veat These sums wete paid by their respective employers Expenan Group Limnted pays directors fees of €106 154 per annum tand pro rata for the vear encing 31 March 2007) in respect of ther senices as directors of Experian
Group Limited Such tees form part of and are not addional 1o the remunerabion set out m the table Dunng the year under review Don Robert served as a non-execulve director of First Advantage Corporation ior which he
recewed a lee of US351 000 Benelit payments to Paul Brooks include payments for housing whilst he was on expatrate asssgnment in the US

5 Fabwola Arredondo Laurence Danon Roger Davs and Alan Jebson were 2ppoinited 10 the Board of Expenan Group Limited on 1 January 2007 The figures in the table represent therr fees and expenses from tnis date As §
permisible under jersey law the Company has met the cast of the lax payment on their taxable travel expenses where applicable

3 Sir Alan Rudge was appointed as the Serior ndependent Direcior on 6 September 2006 Frior 1o thes he was a non-executive drector of GUS plc unid $1 October 2008 The figures In this lable represent b 1ees and expenses lor
the whole ot the Imancial year As 5 permssible under Jersey law the Company has met the cost of the iax payment on his laxable travel expenses where apohcable

7 David Tyler was appainied to the Board of Expenan Group Limied on & tuly 2006 Untl 31 March 2007 he was Group Finance Director of GUS plc The figures 1n this table represent s salary benehis and directars fees tor the
whole of 1he financial year and were paid by Expenan Finance ple {formerly GUS plg hes employer m respect of hs emplovment in this pericd He did not recerve a separaie fee as a dwreclor of £xpenan Group Limited for the year
encng 31 March 2007 Dunng the vear under review Dawid Tvier served a5 non-executve director of Burberry Group pk He did not recenve any addional remuneration for these sennces With eftect from 1 Apnl 2007 David
ceased 10 be an executive director of GUS plc tnow Expenan Finance ple) by reason of redundancy hs contract provides for a notice penod ot 12 months or contractual pay in heu of notice Jor 12 months Contraciual pav on
redundancy mdudes base salary (£545 000) £ar and {uel allowance (£18 200) These payments were made n Aprl 2007 From 1 Apnl 2007 Expenan Group Limited will pay his non-executive directors tee This fee 15 €106 154
#rom 1 Apnl 2007 he 5 ot be eligible for 3 performance benus pension CoNTRBULONS oF turther long term incentve awards

8 Sir Victor Biank resigned as Chaiman of GUS plc on 11 December 2006 John Coombe Andy Hotnby Frank Mewman and Oiver Stocken resigned as directors of GUS plc on 11 Ociater 2006 The figures n this 1abla represent
their iees up 1o this date

Transition arrangements on demerger of GUS plc

The Chairman, the executive directors and one of the non-executive directors have exisung long-term incentive plan awards previously
approved and 1ssued by GUS plc These existing long-term incentive plan awards include share options as described in section €, awards
under the GUS Performance Share Plan as described in section 8 and awards under the GUS Co-investment Plan and Expenan
Reinvestment Plan as described in section 9

Each of these long-term incentive pian awards was subject to transironal arrangements on demerger of GUS plc Each award under the GUS
plans has been adjusted to an equivalent number of Experian awards based on the GUS pic and Expenan Group Limited share price at demerger
Similarly, the share option exercise price of existing GUS awards has been adjusted to the equivalent exercise price for each Expenan share

Sections 6, 8 and 9 of the report on directors’ remuneration detail the opening GUS awards at 1 Apni 2006 and the changes 10 the
original GUS awards on demerger
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6 Share options

Detalls of options granted 1o executive directors, under the Group's executive share option schemes, are set out In the table below

Options Total
Number of granted GUS Options number
options at pre Options Onginal share rolled Options New of opticns
1 Apnl 2006 demerger  exercesed GUS price on  overinto  exercsed Experian at 31
ordateof  (over GUS prior to exercise dateof  Expeman  following exercise Date from which March
appointment  plc shares)  demnerger price exarcise shares  demerger price exercisabie/expiry date 2007
Chairman
John Peace™
11 06 01 195,854 - - 6127p - 348,032 - 344 8p 1106 04-2% 09 07
06 06 02 99,540 - -  6530p - 176,882 - 3675p 06 06 05-29 09 07
19 06 03 99,185 - -  B755p -~ 176,251 - 380 1p 19 06 06—29 09 07
1506 03 4,441 - -  ©755p - 7.600 - 3947p 19 06 06-29 09 07
010604 93,915 - -  B092p - 166,894 - 4554p 01 06 07-29 05 07
310505 G3,768 - - B8585p - 166,625 - 483 1p 31 05 05-29 09 07
02 06 056 - 94,492 - 92600p - 167,912 - 521 1p 02 06 0629 09 G7
1,210,196
Executive directors
Don Robert®
1906 03 145,196 ~ 145,196 6755p 970 1p - - - -
010604 134,890 - - 8092p - 239,699 - 4554p 11 10 06-31 05 11
310505 74,334 - - 8585p - 132,091 - 483 1p 310508-3005 15
02 06 06 - 74,949 -  9260p - 133,184 - 521 1p 02 06 09-01 06 i6
504,574
Paul Brooks
1906 03 31,997 - 31,997 6750p 967 1p - - - -
021203 28,054 - - 7570p - 49,852 - 426 0p 02 12 060112 09
021203 4,418 - - 7570p - 7,851 - 4260p 02 12 06-01 12 13
010604 28,515 - - B09Zp - 50,671 - 4554p 0106 07-3105 14
010604 3,707 - - B092p - 6,344 - 4729 010607-3105 14
310505 33,409 - - 8585p - 59368 - 483 1p 310508-3005 15
02 06 06 - 30,885 - 9260p - 54,883 - 521 1p 02 06 09-01 06 16
228,969
Non-executive directors
David Tyler®
06 06 02 58,192 - - 6530p - 103407 - 3675 06 06 05-05 06 12
190603 57,735 - - 675 5p - 102,595 - 38C1p 1906 06-18 06 13
19 06 03 4,441 - -  6755p - 7,600 - 3947p 1906 06-18 06 13
01 06 04 58,082 - - B0SZp - 103,212 - 4554p 010607-310514
310505 58,241 - - BG5E5p - 103,494 - 483 1p 3105 08-3005 15
02 06 06 - 58,855 - 9260p - 104,585 - 521 1p 02 06 09-01 06 16
524,893
Notes

1 The expiry date on John Peace’s rolled over opbons i subpect 10 kmited extensicn jor reguiatory reasors
2 Options granted to Don Robert pnor 1o fus date of appaintment 1o the Board of GUS 1 Apnl 2005 were granted under the G Narth Amenca Stack Opbon Plan The 2005 and 2006 grants were made under the GUS Execulve

Share Opuen Scheme

3 Dawid Tyler was ebgrble to exchange his oplors and awarts for equwvalent opuons and awards over Experian shares on the same hasts 25 other parxapants o the relevant GUS plans except that he was not ehmble 10 paruapate in
the Expenan Aeuvestment Plan To the extent that his opuons were rolled over the new oplions. will not vest of lapse in connecton with hrs lermination of employment in respect of such opions  Dawic Tyler will be treated as a
good leaver for the purposes of the relevant plan rules i he ceases 1o be a non-executive director of the Company except as a result of voluntary resignaon of actions which would constitute gross misconduct The relevant

pertormance conditaons apply

4 Ho cphons were granted 1o execttive cirectors on demerget
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The GUS exercise prices represent the average of the middle market guctations of a GUS share as derived from the Daily Official List of The
London Stock Exchange for the three immediately preceding dealing days to the date on which optiens were onginally granted Options
granted under the GUS Executive Share Option Schemes which were granted before 2005 were exchanged for equivalent options over
Expenan shares Unvested options granted in 2005 and 2006 (other than options granted under the GUS 1998 Approved Executive Share
Optior: Scheme) were automatically exchanged for equivalent options over Expenan shares The performance condition for options granted
in 2005 and 2006 I1s based on the growth of Experian’s Earnings per Share in excess of the UK Retail Pnice Index from the date of demerger

The market price of Experian Group Limited shares at the end of the financial year was 585 5p, the highest and lowest prices durng the
financial year were 631 5p and 559 5p respectively

SAYE share option scheme
Detalls of awards to directors under the GUS plc SAYE share option scheme are as foliows

Options Total
granted Gus Options number
pre- Cpticns Onginal share rolled Opuons New of options
Number of  demerger  axercised GLUS price on gver into exercised Expenan at 31
options at  {over GUS pror to axercise date of Experian  followang exercise Date from which March
1 April 2006  pic shares)  demerger price exercise shares  demerger price exercisabledexpiry date 2007
Chairman
John Peace 4,394 - 4394 384 0p 1009p - - - 01 05 06-3110 06 -
Executive directors
Paul Brooks 1,454 - - 648 0p - 2,488 - 3786p 1 09 07-29 02 08 2,488
Naon-executive directors
Dawvid Tyler 4,394 - 4,384 384 0p 1035p - - - 010506-311006 -
Former directors
Sir Victor Blank 4,394 - 4,394 384 0p 1035p - - - 010506-31 1006 -
Oliver Stocken 4,394 - 4,394 384 Qp 1035p - - - 105 06-311006 -
Notes

1 Paul Brooks alse paruipated in the US 5 423 plan whilst he was based in the US He currently holds 296 shares under the 2005 plan cytle and 463 shares under the 2006 plan cydie in addition 1o those In the above table
7 Expenan ESOP Trust

As at 31 March 2007, the executive directors were, together with other employees of the Expenan Group, discretionary beneficianes under
the Experian Group Limited Employee Share Trust and, as such, each director 15 deemed to be interested in 13,419,683 ordmnary shares in
Expenan Group Limited held by the trustee of the Trust
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8 GUS Performance Share Plan

In June 2006, executive directors received a share award under the GUS Performance Share Plan (PSP) with a face value of one times salary
On demerger, these awards were automatically rolied over into Expenian shares As approved by GUS shareholders at the EGM, awards
equivalent to two times salary were made 10 executive directors on demerger in Qctober 2006 Both awards are outlined below For awards
granted under the rolled over GUS Performance Share Plan awards the performance condition 1s based on Total Shareholder Return (TSR)
against the comparator group adopted by Expenan {see 2 1¢ above) since the demerger Rolled over awards will not vest If Experian’s total
shareholder return (defined as share price movement plus remnvested dividends) 1s below the median return for the comparator group For
these rolled over awards only, once Expenan achieves median performance, 40 per cent of the award may vest rising on a straight-line basis
to 100 per cent of the award vesting for upper guartile performance or better

Plan GUs Awards Plan Expenan Toual plan
Plan shares shares share Share rolied shares share shares
Plan shares  awarded  relpased  prceon pnceon  overmto  awarded  pace on held at 31
awarded at prior 10 pricr to date of date of Expenan on date of Normal March
1 April 2006  demerger”  demerger award release shares  demerger award vesting date 2007
Chairman
John Peace®
1906 03 103,626 - 103,626 6755p 9288p - - - June 2006
010604 93,919 - 79,831 80%2p 9636p - - - June 2007
310505 93,768 - - 8585p - 166,625 - - May 2008
02 06 06 - 94,492 - 9260p - 167,912 - - June 2009
334,537
Executive directors
Bon Robert
1906 03 26,619 - 26619 6755p 9288p - - - June 2006
0106 04 22,481 - 19,108 8092p 9636p - - - June 2007
310505 74,334 - - B385p - 132,091 - - May 2008
02 06 06 - 74,949 - 9260p -~ 133,184 - -~ June 2009
111006 - - - - - - 246,698 560 Op Oct 2011
511,973
Paul Brooks
190603 16 059 - 16,059 6755p 9288p - - - June 2006
010604 16,111 - 13,694 B092p 9636p - - - June 2007
310505 16,704 - - B585p - 29,683 - - May 2008
02 06 06 - 15,442 - 9260p - 27,440 - - June 2009
111006 - - - - - — 132,837 560 Op Oct 2011
189,960
Non-executive directors
Dawid Tyler®
190603 62,176 - 62,176 6755p 9288p - - - June 2006
01 06 04 58,082 - 49,369 B80%Z2p S636p - - - June 2007
310505 58,241 - - 8585p - 103,494 - - May 2008
02 06 06 - 58,855 - 9260p - 104,585 - - June 2009
208,079
Noles

1 On demerger awards made under the 2004 GUS Performance Share Plan were automatkally ransterrad W parsapants These awands vested at B5 pet cent of the onanal award GUS Performance Share Plan awarcs made in 2005
and 2006 were reptaced with an equivalent award over Expenan shares

2 As john Peace’s employment with Expenan Finance pic llormerty GUS pk) ended on 31 March 2007 under the rules of the Plan aft outstandng awards will vest subject 1o the perfermance condition on the onginal vestng date
speafied in the table and will be tme pro-rated 10 31 March 2007 Disdasures will be made n respedt of vesting 33 the appraprate tme

3 David Trlers awards were rolled over on the bases described m igotnote 3 to the Share Oppons table on page 53

4 ‘Under the Plan rules parbapants are enttled 1o dvidend equivalents on release o awargds under the 2003 GUS Periormance Share Plan a5 tollows John Peace {83 B64 Don Robert 328 760 Faul Brooks 20 618
and Dawnd Fder £35 496
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9 GUS Co-investment Plan and Experian Reinvestment Plan

Awards to directors under the 2004 and 2005 cycles of the GUS Co-investment Plan and North Amenica Co-investment Plan were
reinvested in awards under the Experian Reinvestment Plan and North America Reinvestment Plan at demerger as approved by GUS
shareholders at the EGM Awards under the 2006 cycle were automatcally rolled over into equivalent awards over Experian shares under
the rules of the GUS Co-investment Plan The share price on the date of award was 560p Release of matching shares under the Expenian
Retnvestmnent Plan s subiect 1o the achievement of performance conditions™, the retention of renvested awards and continued
employment No further awards will be made under the Renvestment Plan

For the year ending 31 March 2007, Don Robert and Paul Brooks received a bonus of 72 per cent of base salary and chose to invest the
whole of their bonus under the GUS North America Co-investment plan The invested shares deferred under these arrangements are not
reflected in the table below as this report was published prior to the actual share purchase The related matching shares under these
arrangements are also not shown in the table below They are not released until the expiry of a three-year period and the rnight to the
matching shares s forfeited If a director resigns before then

Invested
onginal Onginal and Awards
GUS GLIS Invested Maiching Matching rolled aver
Invested Matdung shares shares  GUS share Shares Share into Re- Special Expenan Tatal plan
shares At shares At granted aranted price en released prce on Expenan Expenan  nvestment Re-  share pnce shares at
1 Apnl 1 Apnl pr to pnor to date ot prior 1o/on date of plan Matching Matching  wwesiment on date Vesting 31 Match
2006 2006 demerger demerger awiard defnerger release shares shares Aweard awarg”’ of award date 2007
Chairman
John Peace®
200603 49689 195858 - - - 245547 929 Op - - - - June 2006
110604 42178 166256 - - - - - 72394 295436 - 370386 5600p Oa 201
130605 44111 173875 - - - - - 75712 308976 - 387 361 560 Op Cct 2011
12 06 06 - - 22124 33562 918 Op - - 2124 59 640 - - 5600p June 2009
1592 (29
Execulive directors
Don Robert
200603 36 257 56191 - - - 92 448 925 0p - - - - Jure 2006
110604 78512 157024 - - - - - 139516 279032 837096 - 5600p QOct 2011
130605 83109 166219 - - - - - 147685 295371 885112 - 5600p Qct 2011
12 06 06 - -~ 68480 136960 918 Op - - 121689 243378 - - 5600p June 2009
2949 B79
Paul Brooks
200603 17 346 274933 - - - 45 279 829 0p - - - - June 2006
110604 29212 58424 - - - - - 51910 103820 311460 - 5600p QOct 2011
130605 29827 59 654 - - - - - 53003 106005 318016 - 5600p Qct 2011
12 06 06 - - 31072 62 145 918 Op - - 55215 110432 - - 5600p Jure 2009
1109 861
Non—executive directors
David Tyler*
200603 25045 114501 - - - 143550 429 0p - - - - June 2006
170604 25 307 59 754 - - - 125061 984 3p - - - - 5600p Cct 2006
130605 27279 107528 - - - 133 807 984 3p - - - - 5600p Oct 2006
12 06 06 - - 13742 20 846 918 Op - - 13742 37 043 - - 5600p June 2009
50 785
Notes

1 trvested shares tor John Peace and Dawnd Frier were purchased wath the bonus net of tax The matching share awards are made on a gross basis and are taxed at the point of westng vested shares for Don Robert and Paul Brocks
wera purchased wath the bonus gross of tax

2 John Peace was granted & matching award over Expenan shares which will vest 3ftef three years if he continues 1o be Charman of Expenan subtect to the good leaver reasons induded in 1he fules Detads al this awand were
disclosed in the sharehalder arcular dated 26 Juiv 2006

3 The 1irst 50% of 2 maichung award ynder the Expenan Retnvestment Plan will vest subject o satstachion of a periormance condrbon relaive 1o a shding scale of growth In Expenan Groups profil beiore tarx over a three-vear penod
The threshald tor vesung wil be growzh n PET of 7% per annum at which 30% of s part ot the matching award wil vest, mung O 3 sUaghl-ne basss 1o 100% of thes part of the award vestng at arowth in PBT of 14% per
annum The part of the matchena award will vest 1 two egual tranches on the tourth and fitth annwversanes of orant The remaming 50% bt the matcheng award will be Lime-based and wil vest as to 50% of this parl of the
matchng award on the thad annwersary of orant and as 10 25% on each of the tourth and tith annwversanes of grant

a David Tyler's 2004 and 2005 GUS Co-nvestrnent Plan awards vested at the ume of the demetger ang he did not remvest these awards David Tyler's 2006 GLS Co-nvestment Plan awards were rolied over on the basis gescrbed in
tootnote 3 to the Share Cpbons able on page 53

5 Under the Pan rules parapants are enttied 1o dvidend equivaients on release of the matching share awards under the 2003 GUS Co-nvestment Plan as follows John Peace {223 419 Don Aobert §55 095 Payl brooks 526 358
and Dawxd Tver £135 717
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10 Executive directors’ annual pension

Don Robert 15 provided with benefits through a Suppiementary Executive Retirement Pian (SERP) which 15 a defined benefit arrangement in
the US The figures betow are in respect of his SERP entitlement  He also participates in a defined contribution arrangement and the
employer contrnibutions to this arrangement during the year were $9,423

Paul Brooks 15 a member of the registered Experian Pension Scheme (formerly the GUS Pension Scheme) His benefits within the Scheme
are restricted by an earmings cap  However, benefits in excess of this cap are provided for through the Experian Limited SURBS (Secured
Unfunded Retirement Benefits Scheme) The penston figures belaw reflect both his registered and non-registered entitlement

The table below provides the disclosure of the above directors’ pension entitiements in respect of benefits from registered schemes and
non-registered arrangements

Addrtional
Accrued Accrued Change in pension earned to Transfer value
pension at pension at Transfer Transfer transfer value 31 March 2007 of the increase
31 March 2007 31 March 2006 value at 21 value at {less director’s {net of flation) {less director's
Name per annum per annum March 2007 31 March 2006 contnbutions) perannum  contnbutions)
(1 2) (3) (4) (5) &) n
$°000 pa $'000 pa $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 pa $°000
Don Robert 252 204 4,006 3,257 748 a1 645
£°000 pa £'000 pa £°000 £'000 £000 £000 pa £7000
Paul Brooks 74 62 985 784 203 10 130

John Peace 15 a member of the registered Experian Pension Scheme  His benefits are not restricted by an earnings cap, and therefore the
pension figures in the table below reflect his registered Scheme benefits

Dawvid Tyler 15 a member of the registered Experian Pension Scheme  His benefits within the Scheme are restncted by an earnings cap
However, benefits in excess of this cap are provided for through the GUS plc SURBS (although part of this promise will be provided for by a
funded arrangement, which was closed to future contributians on 1 Apnil 2002) The pension figures below reflect both his funded and
unfunded entitlerments and the additiona! year in respect of his leaving service agreement

As Messrs Peace and Tyler took immediate retirement from the registered Experian Pension Scheme with effect from 31 March 2007, the
figures shown in the table below give detalls of their pre-commutation, early retirement benefits payable from 1 Apnl 2007

Six former directors of GUS plc have been receving unfunded pensions from the Company for a number of years At demerger, the
pensions of three of the former directors were transferred to the SURBS that provides secunty for the unfunded penstons of executives
affected by the HMRC earnings cap {see section 2 1(f)) Two of the pensions were transferred into the registered Scheme on 1 October
2006 and a payment of £107,900 (calculated by the Scheme actuary) was made by the Company to the Scheme The total unfunded
pensions paxd to the former directors was £445,646 (2006 £429,596)

Change in Addrtional Transfer value

Pension in Accrued Transfer Transfer transfer value pension accrued to  of the increase

payment at pension at value at value at  (lass director's 31 March 2007 (less director's

Name 7 Apnl 2007 31 March 2006 31 March 2007 31 March 2006 contributions) (net of mflabon)  contributions)

(1) (2) {3} (4} (5) (6} (7}

£000 pa £'000 pa £000 £000 £°000 £000 pa E£'00D

John Peace 487 467 9,645 7,655 1,990 46 SN

Dawvid Tyter 156 142 3,401 1,871 1,514 39 834
Notes

Colums (1).and (2) represent the deterred penuon 10 which the director woulc have been entitled had they left the Group at 31 March 2007 and 2006 respecively excep! in the cases of Messts Feace and Tyler where column (1)
represenits the early retirement pensicn pavable from 1 Apnl 2007

Column (3) & the transter value of the persion m cotume {1) cakutated as a1 31 March 2007 based on faclors supphed by the actuary of the relevant group pension scheme in acordance with UK actuanal gusdance nate GN11
Column (4] 1s the equnalent transfer value buy calculated as at 33 March 2006 on the assumpton that the director lefl sennce at that date
Colsmn (5) o the change m transier value of accfued pension gunng the year nel of contabuions by the director

Cokumn (6) & the Ncrease 0 penson bttt up dunng the year recogneang () the accrual rate for the addiuional sennce based on the peassonable salary in force at the year end and (W where appropriate the eflect of pay changes in reat
{inflabon adusted) ters on the persion already earmed at the s1ar of the year In Messrs Peace and Trlers cases the additional pensson represents the increase wn snmeduate persion with allowance for intlaton

Column (7) represents 1he ransler value of the pension wn column (6}
The dedosures in columas (1) 16 (5) are equrvalent 1o those required by the UX Drreciors Remunerabon Aeporl Regutations ang thase in columss (6} and (7) are thase required by the UK Lisung Authontys Lsting Rules
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Report on directors’ remuneration cont

11 Directors' service contracts

In accordance with Don Robert's service agreement with Experian Services Corporation (ESC) dated 7 August 2008, if his employment 15
terminated by ESC without cause he is entitled to the following severance payments continued payment of monthly salary for 12 months from
the termination date, 12 months’ participation m weifare benefit plans in which he participated during his employment, and an annual bonus
based on a 100% achievernent of objectives pavable In equal monthly instalments for 12 months The same amounts are payable by E5C 1f

Don Robert terminates the contract () following matenial breach by ESC, or () for Good Reason following change of controt of ESC Good Reason
means dunng the six month penod following a change of control, a matenal and substantial adverse reduction or change in Dan Roberts position

Don Robert's service agreement also provides for the following payments o be made If the agreement terminates In the event of Don Robert’s

death (in addrion to payments due but unpaid before death), a pro rata annual bonus for the bonus year to the termination date based on

ESC's performance in that bonus vear, and a lump sum equal to 12 months' base salary to be paid no later than 90 days after the date of

death If the employment 1s terminated due to Don Robert’s disability he 1s entitled to the bonus as described immediately above {in

addition to payments due but unpaid before the tesmunation) Any deferred compensation obligations with respect to Don Robert will be

governed In accordance with the relevant plan rules

ln his service agreement dated 2 April 2007, upon terminatien of employment at the absoiute discretion of Expenan Group Limited,

Paul Brooks may be paid base salary alone, pension contributions and benefits in kind (excluding bonus or Incentive payments unless the

Company In its absolute discretion determines otherwise) 1n lieu of six months’ notice (where notice 1s given by Paul Brooks) or 12 menths’ \
notice (where notice 15 given by Expenan Group Limrted} [

save for the benefits described above, the service cantracts of each of the executive directors do not provide for any benefits on the
terrmination of employment

12 Combined Code

The constitution and operation of the Remuneration Committee are in accordance with the principles of good governance and the
Combined Code on Corporate Gavernance published by the Financial Reporting Council

13 Shareholding guideline

Each of the executive directars meets the Comemittee’s guideline that, as a minimum, the Chief Executive Officer should hold the equwvalent
of two tumes his base salary in Expenian Group Limited shares and other executive directors one times therr base salary, including shares
held under the Co-investment and Reinvestrnent plans

14 Directors’ interests

The beneficial interests of the directars, together with non-beneficial interests, in the Ordinary shares of the Company are shown below
Share options granted to directors, awards under the Performance Share Plan and the contingent interests n matching shares unger the
Co-investment and Reinvestment Plans are shown on pages 53 to 56 The directors have no interests In the debentures of the Company
or In any shares or debentures of the Company's subsidianes

Experian Group Limited GUS shares at
31 March 2007 10 October 2006

Chairman
John Peace 745,943 684,126
Executive directors
Don Robert® 369,943 240,449
Paul Brooks™ 103,709 103,709
Non-executive directors
Fabiola Arredondo - -
Laurence Danon - -
Roger Dawvis 20,000 -
Alan Jebson - -
Sir Alan Rudge 13,585 13,585
David Tyler 590,069 590,069
NOES

1 For reguiatory purposes as a1 22 May 2007 there had been no changes in the above INTETESTS

2 The number ol Expenan Shares ior Don Robert and Paul Brooks reflects shares awarded 10 them under the legacy GAIS North Amenca Co-nvestment Pan in keu af annual borus
Don Robert and Paul Brooks have an uncondsuonal ngnt o recerve Expenan Shares at the end at the rebevant three-vear deiermal penod Prior to receipt they do not have deadend or votng nghts o respect af such shares.

On behalf of the Board Remuneration Committee

Charles Brown
Company Secretary
22 May 2007
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Statement of directors’ responsibilities

The directors are responsible for prepaning the Annual Report and the Group financial statements in accordance with applicable law and
Internationat financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union, and for preparing the Company financial statements
and the Report on Directors” Remuneration in accordance with applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)

The directors are responsible for preparing financial statements for each financiat year which give a true and fair view, in accordance with
IFRSs as adopted for use i the European Union, of the state of affairs of the Group and the profit or loss of the Group and a true and fair
view, In accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, of the profit or loss of the Company for that peniod

The directors consider that in prepanng the financiat statements on pages 60 to 132, appropnate accounting policies have been consistently
applied, supported by reasonable and prudent judgments and estimates, that the Group financial staternents comply with IFRSs as adopted
for use In the European Union and, with regard to the Company's financial statements, that all accounting standards which they consider
apphicable have been followed

The directors are responsible for ensuring that proper accounting records are kept which disclose, with reasonable accuracy at any time, the
financial position of the Group and the Company and which enable them to ensure that the Group financiat statements comply with
applicable law and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation and the Company financial statements and the Report on Directors’ Remuneration comply
with the Companies {Jersey) Law 1991 as appiicable They are aiso responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and the Group
and for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other uregularities

The Company has a website which contains up to date information on Group activities and published financial results The directors are
responsible for the maintenance and integrity of statutory and audited information on the Company's website Jersey legislation, and United
Kingdom regulation, governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements, may differ from requirements in other junsdictions

Relevant audit information

As at 22 May 2007, so far as each director 15 aware, there 15 no relevant audit information, being information needed by the audtors in
connection with preparing their report, of which the auditors are unaware and each director has taken all steps that he/she ought to have
taken as a director in order to make himself/herself aware of any relevant audrt information and to establish that the auditors are aware of
that information

Going concern

After making enquiries, the directors have formed a judgment at the time of approving the financial statements that there 15 a reasonable
expeciation that the Group and the Company have adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future For
this reason, they continue to adopt the going concern basis 1n preparing the financial statements
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Group income statement

for the year ended 31 March 2007

2007 2006
(Represented)
{Note 2)
Notes uUssm usim
Revenue 3 3,481 3,064
Cost of sales {1,681) (1,507}
Gross profit 1,800 1,557
Dustribution costs (301) (272)
Admunistrative expenses {1,026) (699)
Cperating expenses (1,327) 971
Operating profit 473 586
Finance income 103 146
Finance expense {249) (248)
Net financing costs 8 {146) {102)
Share of post-tax profits of associates &7 66
Profit before tax 3 394 550
Group tax expense 9 (68) (92)
Profit after tax for the financial year from continuing aperations 326 458
Profit for the financial year from discontinued operatians 10 137 606
Profit for the finanaal year 463 1,064
Attributable to
Eguity shareholders (in the parent company 462 1,018
NMinority interests 1 a6
Profit for the financial year 463 1,064
Earnings per share 12 cents cents
- Basic 489 107 5
- Diluted 493 1058
Earmings per share from continuing operations 12 cents cents
— Basic 351 a8 4
- Diluted 347 47 6
Non-GAAP measures 2007 2006
Reconcdiation of profit before tax to Benchmark PBT Ussm UStm
Profit before tax 3 394 550
exclude exceptional ttems 7 162 7
exclude amortisation of acgquisitton intangibles 7 76 66
exclude goodwill adjustment 7 14 -
exclude charges in respect of the demerger-related equity incentive plans 7 24 -
exclude financing fair value remeasurements 7 35 2
exclude tax expense on share of profit of associates 3 9 2
Benchmark PBT - continuing operations 3 714 627
Benchmark earnings per share from continuing operations 12 cents cents
- Basic 597 545
— Diluted 591 536
cents cents
Full year dividend per share A 17 0 575
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Group balance sheet

at 31 March 2007

2007 2006
(Represented)
{Note 2)
Notes ussm Usim
Non-current assets
Goodwill 13 2,219 5,342
Other intangible assets 14 804 926
Property, piant and eguipment 15 519 1,670
Investment in associates 16 286 225
Deferred tax assets 27 103 547
Retirement benefit assets 24 B5 ELl
Trade and other recewvables 18 11 85
Other finangial assets 25 74 158
4,101 8,988
Current assets
Inventornes 17 4 1,538
Trade and other recewvables 18 794 1,830
Current tax assets 17 207
Other financial assets 25 53 10
Cash and cash equwvalents 19 907 385
1,775 3,970
Current Labiirties
Trade and other payables 20 (1.031) (2,421)
Loans and barrowings 21 {1,025) (303)
Current tax liabiities (166) (481)
Provistons 23 {9) {153)
Other financial iabihties 25 - (37
{2,231) (2,387)
Net current (habibities)/assets (456) 573
Non-current hiatnlities
Trade and other payables 20 (52) {i44)
Loans and borrowings 21 (1,348) (3,599)
Deferred tax habiltties 27 (68) (350)
Provistons 23 (30) -
Other financial habiities 25 (40} (14)
(1.538} (4 107)
Net assets 2,107 5454
Equity
Share capitat 28 102 88
Share premium 28 1,435 16,256
Retained earnings 28 16,341 5683
QOther reserves 28 (15,773} {16 575)
Toral shareholders” equity 2,105 5452
Minority tnterests in equity 28 2 2
Total equity 28 2,107 5,454

The financial statements on pages 60 1o 119 were approved by the Board of Directors on 22 May 2007 and were signed on its behalf by

John Peace

Drrector
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Group statement of recognised income and expense

for the year ended 31 March 2007

2007 2006
{Represented)
{Note 2)
Ussm ussm
Net income/(expense) recogmised directly in equity
Cash flow hedges (10} (4)
Net investment hedge 84 (16
Reversal of Home Retall Group net investment hedge 4 -
Fair value gains on avaiable for sale financal assets - 4
Actuanal gans in respect of defined benefit pension schemes 65 13
Currengy translation differences 465 {439)
Recycled cumulative exchange loss in respect of divestments - 5
Tax {charge)/credit in respect of items taken directly to equrty )] g
Net income/{expense} recognised directly in equity (note 28) 601 (428)
Profit for the financial year 463 1,064
Total income recognised for the year 1.064 636
Total income recognised for the year attnbutable to
Equity sharehalders in the parent company 1,063 608
Minarity interests 1 27
Total income recognised for the year 1,064 636
Cumulative adjustment for the implementation of 1AS 39 attributable to
Equity shareholders in the parent company - 18
Minosity nterests - a
22

Total -
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Group cash flow statement

for the year ended 31 March 2007

2007 2006
(Represented)
{Note 2)
Notes ussm Ussm
Cash generated from operations 29(a) 942 874
Interest paid 29(h) {133) (179}
Interest received 27 68
Dwidends received from associates 39 A8
Tax pad {121) (32
Net cash inflow from operating activities 754 779
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property plant and equipment (114} (62}
Purchase of other intangible assets {161) (150}
Purchase of other financial assets and investments in associates (42) a1y
Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of cash acquired 29(c) (118) (1 4200
Disposal of subsidianes 29(d) 258 643
Net cash flows used in investing activities (177) (1,030}
Cash flows from finanang activities
Purchase of £SOP shares (75) (65)
Issue of Ordinary shares 1,525 52
Recerpt of share option proceeds and sale of own shares 59 36
New borrowings 29(e) - 647
Repayment of borrowings 29(e) (1,423) (63)
Camital element of finance lease renial payments (4) (2)
Net recespts {rom derivatives held to manage currency profiie 39 i3
Equity dradends paid (401) (508)
Net cash flows (used in)/generated from finanang activities (280) 110
Exchange and other movements 166 (20)
Net increase/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents - continuing operations 463 (i61)
Net increase/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents « discontinued operations
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents - discontinued operations 550 (188}
Cash held by Home Retail Group at demerger (518) -
32 (188}
Net increase/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 495 (349)
Movement in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equwalents at 1 Apnil 139 488
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 495 (349}
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the finanaal year 29(f) 634 139
Non-GAAP measures 2007 2006
Reconaliation of net increase/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents to movement in net debt USSm Ussm
Net debt at 1 Apnl - as reported (3,437) (2,688)
Net increasef(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 495 {349)
Decrease/{Increase) in debt 1427 (658)
Debt held by Home Retall Group at demerger 435 -
Exchange and cther movements (including movements in respect of debt) (328) 258
Net debt at the end of the financia) year (note 22) (1,408) (3,437
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Notes to the Group financial statements

for the year ended 31 March 2007

1 Corporate information

Expenan Group Limited {the Company’), which is the ultimate parert company of the Experian Group, 15 incorporated and registered in Jersey
under the Jersey Comparies Law as a public company Iimited by shares The shares of the Corpany are hsted on the London Stock Exchange's
market for listed secunties { the London Stock Exchange’) Experian 1s 2 business services group

The consolidated financial statements for the Group were approved by the Board on 22 May 2007

2 Basis of preparation and sigmficant accounting policies

Basis of preparation

The Group financial statements are presented m US Doflars as this is the most representative currency of the Group’s operations The financial
statements are rounded to the nearest million They are prepared on the historical cost basis modified for the revaluatton of certain financiat
instruments The principal exchange rates used in prepanng the Group fiancial statements are set out in note 4

In compliance with the requirements for companies whose shares are listed on the London Stock Exchange, the financial statements of Expenan
Group Limited are included within the Group annual report and they are set out on pages 121 to 132 These are presented in Pounds Sterling as
that s the functional currency of that Company In determuning its functional currency, the directors have taken account of the fact that the
assets and labihties and cash flows of Expenian Group Limited are primanily denom:nated In Pounds Sterling The Company has elected 1o prepare
its financial statemenis under UK accounting standards

The consolidated financial statements of Experian Group Limited and its subsidiary underiakings (‘Expertan’) are prepared in accordance with
international Financial Reporting Standards (‘IFRS') as adopted for use in the Europaan Urion (the ‘EU" These are those standards, subsequent
amendments and related interpretations 1ssued and adopted by the International Accounting Standards Board ('IASB’) that have been endorsed
by the European Unton Although Expenan Group Limited 1s incorporated and registered in Jersey unger the Jersey Cornpanies Law, the Group
financial statements incluge disclosures sufficient to comply with those parts of the UK Comparues Act 1985 applicable to companies reperting
under [FRS

On 10 October 2008, the separation of Experian and Home Retall Group was completed by way of demerger As part of the demerger, Expenan
Group Limited became the ultimate holding company of GUS plc and related subsidianies and shares in GUS plc ceased to be Iisted on the
London Stock Exchange on & October 2006 Trading of shares in Expenan Group Limited on the London Stock Exchange commenced on

11 October 2006

The demerger transacuen falls outside the scope of IFRS 3 ‘Business Combinations” Accordingly, following the guidance regarding the selection

of an appropriate accounting policy provided by IAS 8 Accounting poiicies, changes in accounting estimates and errors', the transaction has been

accounted for in these fmancial statements using the principles of merger accounting set out In FRS 6 *Acguisitions ang Mergers’ and UK

Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (UK GAAP} This palicy, which does not confilict with IFRS, reflects the economic substance of the

transacticn The disttbusion to GUS pic sharehoidars of shares in Home Retall Group plc has been accounted for as a dividend in specie In these

financial staiements |

n accordance with the requirements of merger accounting, the comparative informatian in these Group financial statements has been extracted
from the GUS Group's siatutory financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2006 Those financial statements incorporated the results of
GUS plc and its subsidiary undertakings for the financial year then ended with the excepticn of Homebase where the GUS Group included its
results for the financial year ta the end of February This was done 10 facilitate comparabitity to avoid distortions related to the timing of Easter

The statutory financial statements of GUS plc for the year ended 31 March 2006 were reported in Pounds Sterling but, to provide comparability
with the preseptation currency of the Group they are now represented in US Dollars

In addiion this information has been further represented as follows

{a} the results of Home Retall Group have been reciassified as a discontinued operation In the Group Income statement and the Group cash
flow statement as required by IFRS 5 ‘Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations’,

(b) there has been a reallocation of costs between cost of sales and operating expenses in the Group Income siatement to reflect the poligies
adopted in the preparation of the historical financial infermation for the Experian prospectus which provides a more appropriate
classification of such items The effect of this is to mcrease cost of sales and reduce operating expenses for the year ended 31 March 2006
by Us3112m with no effect on reported profit for the iinanoal year, and

(c) there has been a reclassification of deratives In the Group cash flow statement in order to mire fairly state operating cash fiows and 10
reflect the approach adopted in the preparauon of the fstoncal financial information for the Expenan prospectus The effect of this has
been to increase net cash inflow from operating activities by US370m 1o reduce net cash flow generated from finanaing actvitses by
US350m and 1o separately report an outflow for exchange and other movemenis of US$20m The reduction in net cash flow generated
from financing activities comprises a reducuon of US$63m in the cash inflow from new borrowings and a U$$ 13m reclassification to
separately identify net receipts from denivatives held to manage the Group’s currency profile
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2  Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies {continued)

Snificant accounting policies
The pringipal accouniing policies applied 1n the preparation of these financial statements are set out below These policies have been consistently
applied to both years presented, unless otherwise stated

Basis of consohdation

Subsidhanies
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control 15 transferred to the Group They cease to be conschidated from the date that
the Group no longer has control Under the reguirements of IFRS 3 all business combinations are accounted for using the purchase method

Inter-company transactions, balances and unreaiised gains on transactions between group companies are eliminated on consolidation Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transierred

Accounting policies of subsidiaries are consistent with the policies adopted by the Group for the purposes of the Group’s consolidation The
consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiary undertakings for the financial year
ended 31 March 2007

& list of the significant investrnents in subsidianes, ncluding the name, country of incorporation and proportion of ownership nterest 1s given In
note O 1o the parent company financial statements

Associates
Associates are entiies over which the Group has significant nfluence but not control, generally actueved by a shareholding of between 20% and
50% of the voting nghts The equity method 1s used to account for investments in associates and Investments are initially recognised 3t cost

The Group's share of net assets of 1ts associates and loans made to associates are included in the Group balance sheet The Group’s share of its
associates’ post-acquisition after tax profits or losses 15 recognised In the Group sncome statement, and i1s share of post-acquisition mavements 1N
equity 15 recogrised In the Group’s equity The curnulative post-acquisition movements are adjusted against the carrying amount of the
investment The carrying amount of an nvestment in an associate Is tested for impairment by companng its recoverable amount to its carrying
amount whenever there 1s an indication that the investment may be smpaired

Revenue recognition

Revenue represents the far value of the sale of goods and services 1o external customers, net of value added tax and other sales taxes, rebates
and discounts, including the provision and processing of data, subscripuons 10 services, software and database customisation and development
and the sale of software hicences, maintenance and related consulting seriices

Revenue In respect of the provision and processing of data is recognised n the year sn wiich the service 1s provided Subscription revenues, and
revenues In respect of services to be provided by an indeterminate number of acts over a speaiied penod of time, are recognised on 2 swaight
line basis over those periods Customisation, development and consulting revenues are recognised by reference to the stage of compleion of the
work Revenue from software licences 1s recognised upon delivery Revenue from maintenance agreements 1s recognised on a straight hine basis
over the term of the maintenance pencd

Where a single arrangement comprises a number of indwidual elements which are capable of operating independentiy of one another, the total
revenues are allocated amongst the ndwidual elements based an an estimate of the farr value of each element Where the elements are nat
capable of operating independently, or reasanable measures of far value for each etement are not available, 10l revenues are recognised on a
straight ine basis over the Ncontract penod

Foreign currency translation

Presentation currency
The Group’s financial statements are presented mn US Dollars

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded in the functional currency of the relevant Group entity at the exchange rate prevailing on the date
of the transaction At each balance sheet date, monetary assets and hiabilites denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the exchange
rate prevalling at the balance sheet date Translation differences on monetary ierns are taken to net finanging ¢osts In the Group incame
statement except when deferred in equity, as qualifying net investment hedges or cash flow hedges

Transiation difierences on non-monetary available for sale financial instruments are reported as part of the far value gain or loss In equity

Group undertakings

The results and financial pesition of Group undertakings whose functional currencies are not US Dollars are translated into US Dollars as follows
» Asseis and habilites are translated at the closing rate at the balance sheet date,

« income and expenses are transtated at the average exchange rate for the year (unless this average 1s nol a reasonable approximation of the

cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, m which case income and expenses are translated at the rate on the dates of
the transactions), and

« All resulting exchange differences are recognised as a separate component of equity
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Notes to the Group financial statements

for the year ended 31 March 2007

2 Bass of preparation and sigmificant accounting polictes (continued)

On consohdation, exchange differences ansing from the transtation of the net investment in foreign entities, and of berrowings and other currency
instruments, primanly foreign exchange contracts, designated as hedges of such investments, are taken to equity Tax charges and credits
attributabie to those exchange differences are taken directly to equity When a foreign operatian 1s sold, such exchange differences are recognised
In the Group income statement as part of the gain or toss on sale Goodwill and fair value adjustments ansing on the acquisition of a foreign entity
are treated as assets and habiities of the foreign entity and are translated at the closing rate

Share-based payments
IFRS 2 'Share-based Payment’ applies ta equity instruments, such as share options granted since 7 November 2002 The Group alected 1o adopt full
retrospective applicatrion of the standard on all share options and awards granted 1o employees before 7 November 2002 but not vested at the date
of transition to IFRS (1 Apnl 2004)

The Group has a number of equity settled, share-based compensation plans These include awards in respect of shares in Experian Group Limited
made at or after demerger together with awards previously made in respect of shares in GUS plc which wese ralied over into awards in respect of
shares in Expenan Group Limited at demerger The fair value of options and shares granted 1s recognised as an expense In the Income statement on
a straight ine basis over the vesting peniod after taking mnto account the Group’s best estmate of the number of awards expecied to vest The
Group revises the vasting esbmate at each balance sheet date Non-market performance conditions are included in the vesting estumates Expenses
are incurred over the vesting penod Fair value 1s measured at the date of grant using whichever of the Black-Scholes, Monte Carlo model and
clesing market price 1s most appropriate to the award Market based performance conditions are included in the fair value measurement on grant
date and are not revised for actual performance

Goodwill

Goodwill 15 the excess of the fair value of the consideration payable for an acquisition over the farr value of the Group's share of identfiable net
assets of a subsidiary or associate acquired ai the date of acquisitton Fair values are attnibuted to the wentifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabiities that existed at the date of acguisition, reflecting their condition at that date Adjustments are made where necessary to bring the
accounting policies of acquired businesses into alkgnment with those of the Group

Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries 1s separately recognised in the balance sheet Goodwill on acquisitions of associates 1s included in the
carrying amount of the investment Goodwill is stated at cost less any impairment Goodwall 1s not amortised but 1s tested annually for imparment
Animpairment charge 1s recognised for any amount by which the carrying value of goodwill exceeds its recoverable amount

Goodwill 15 allocated to cash generating units { CGUs ) and monitored for internal management purposes by geographical segment The allocation
15 made to those CGUs or groups of CGUs that are expected to benefit from the business combination in which the goodwill arose Where the
recoverable amount of the CGU 15 less than 1ts carrying amount, including goodwill, an impairment loss 1s recogntsed 1n the Group income
statement

Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of goodwi!l relating to the entity sold, allocated where necessary on the
basis of relative farr value

QOther intangibie assets

Intangible assets acquired as part of an acquisition of a business are Capitalised separately from goodwill, If those assets are identifiabie, separable
or ansing from legal nghts and their farr value can be measured reliably Intangible assets acquired separately from the acquisiion of a business are
capitatised at cost Certain costs ncurred m the deveiopmental phase of an internal project are capitahsed as intangible assets provided that a
number of critena are satisfied These inciude the technical feasibility of completing the asset so that 1t 1s available for use or sale, the avalability of
adequate resources to complete the development and 1o use or sell the asset and how the asset will generate probable future economic benefit

The cost of other mtangible assets with finite useful economic or contractual lives i1s amortised over those ives The carrying values of mtangible
assets are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying values may not be recoverable If impawed
the carrying values are wntten down 1o the tigher of fair value less costs to sell, and vatue-in-use Value-in-use 1s determined by reference 1o
projected future ncome streams using assumptions In respect of profitability and growth

Research expenditure ss charged in the Group income statement in the year in which 1t 1s incurred

Databases and computer software

Databases

Caprtahised databases compnse the farr value of databases acquired as part of a business combination or the data purchase and data capture costs
of internally developed databases

Databases are held at cost and are amertised on a straight ine basis over three 10 seven years

Computer software
Acquired compuser software iicences are capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring into use the speafic software Computer
software licences are held at cost and are amortised on a straight line basis over three to five years

Costs that are directly associated with the production of identifiable and unique software products controlied by the Group, and that will generate
economic benefits beyond one year are racogrised as intangible assets Computer software development costs recognised as assets are amortised
on a stratght ne basis over three to five years Other costs assaciated with developing or maintaining computer software programmes are
recognsed as an expense as incurred
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2 Basis of preparation and significant accounting pohaes {continued)

Acqusitron intangibles

Trade marks and licences
Trade marks and licences are carned at cost and are amortised on a straight ling basis over ther contractual lives, up 1o a masmuin penod of 20 years

Trade names
tegally protected or otherwse separable trade names acquired as part of a business combinatton are capitalised at fair value on acguisiion and
amortised on a straight ine basis over three to eight years based on management’s expeciations 1o retain trade names within the business

Customer relationships
Contractual and non-contractual custorner relationships acquired as part of a business combination are caprtaiised at fair value on acquisiion and
amortised an a straight line basis over three to eight years based on management's estimates of the average lives of customer relationships

Completed technology
The fair value of completed technology acquired as part of a business combination 1s capitahsed as an intangible asset Completed technology s
held at fatr value on acquisiion and amorused on a straight ine basis over three to eight years based on the expected life of the asset

Property. plant and equipment
Property, ptant and equipment 1s held at cost fess accumulated depreciation and any impairment in value

Land 1s not depreciated
Equipment on hire or lease 1s depreciaied over the lower of the useful ife and penod of the lease

Depreciation is provided on other property, plant and equipment at rates calculated to depreciate the cost, fess estimated residual valwe based on
prices prevailing at the batance sheet date of each asset evenly over its expecied usefut Iife as follows

* Freehold properties are depreciated over 50 years,
» Loasehold premises with lease terms of SO years or less are depreciated over the remaning penod of the lease, and
 Plant, vehicles and equipment are depreciated over two to ten years according to the estimated Iife of the asset

Contingent consideration

Where part or all of the amount of purchase constderation Is contingent on future events, the cost of the acquisition imitially recorded includes a
reasonable estimate of the farr vaiue of the contingent amounts expected to be payabie in the future The cost of the acquisition 15 adjusted when
revised estimates are made, with corresponding adjustments made to goodwill until the ultimate outcome 15 known

Where pari or all of the amount of disposal consideration 1s contingent on future events, the disposal proceeds miuially recorded indude a
reasonable estimate of the farr value of the contingent amounts expected 1o be recewabte in the future The proceeds are adjusted when revised
estmates are made, with corresponding adjustmenits made to debtors, and prodit and less en disposal, unul the ultimate outcome 15 known

Trade recevables
Trade receivables are ntially recagnised at fair value and carned at the lower of fair value (oniginal (nvorce amount) and recoverable amount Where
the tme value of money 1s material, recewvables are carried at amortised cost

A provision for mpairment of trade recevables 1s established when there 15 abjective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all amaunts
due according to the onginal terms of recewables Any charge or credit in respect of such provisions s recogrised i the Group mcome staiement
The cost of any irrecoverable trade recewables 1s recognised i the Group income statement immediately

Available for sale assets

Avallable for sale assets are non-denvative financial assets that are erther designated to this category or not classified n any of the other financial
asset categones Available for sale assets are carried at far value and are induded in non-current assets unless management intends to dispose of
the assets within 12 months of the balance sheet date Unrealised gams and lasses on available for sale assets are recogmsed derectly in eguity On
disposal or impairment of the assets, the gains and fosses th equity are recycled through the mncome statement At each balance sheet date, the
Group assesses whether there 15 objective evidence to suggest that available for saie assets are impawed |n the case of equity secunties, a significant
or prolonged deciine in the {air value of the security below tts cost 1s considered 1n deterrmining whether the secunty 1s impaired If any such
evidence exists, the cumutative loss 15 removed from equity and recognised in the Group Income statement impairment losses recogaised in the
Group Income statement on equity mnstruments are not subsequently reversed through the Group income statement

Borrowings and borrowing costs

Borrowings are recogmised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred Borrowings are subsequently stated ai amortised cost unless they
are part of 3 far value hedge accounting relauonship tniual differences between the proceeds of fixed rate borrowngs and the redemption values
are recogmised m the tncome statement over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest rate meihod Borrowangs that are subject o a
fair value hedge accounting relaenship are measured ai amortised cost adjusted for the change in fair value attributable to hedged nisks

Borrowings are classified as non-current 1o the extent that the Group has an unconditional nght to defer settiement of the hahility for at least 12
months after the balance sheet date

Incrementat borrawing costs which are directly attributable to the 1ssue of debt are capitalised and amortised over the expected life of the
borrowing using the effective interest rate method All other borrowing costs are expensed In the year in which they are incurred

.
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2 Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies (continued)

Accounting for dervative financial instruments and hedging actvilies

The Group uses denvauve financial Instruments to manage (ks exposures to fluctuations in foreign exchange rates, nterest rates and social
secunity obligations in respect of share-based payments Defvative mstruments utilised by the Group include interest rate swaps, Cross currendy
swaps, forward foreign exchange contracts and equity swaps

Dervatives are recogmised at cost, being the fair value at the date a contract 1 entered nto and are subsequently remeasured at their fair value

Amounts payable or receivabte in respect of interest rate swaps are recognised as adjustments to net financing costs over the period of the
contract The interest differential reflected in forward foreign exchange contracts is taken to net financing costs

Dervative assets and habilities are classified as non-current unless they mature within 12 months after the balance sheet date

The method of recognising the resulting gain or loss dapends on whether the dervative Is designated as a hedging instrument, and 1f so, the
nature of the hedge relationship The Group designates certain derivatives as

* Fair value hedges - hedges of the fair value of recognised assets or liabihties or a firm commitment, or
« Cash flow hetges - hedges of highly probable forecast transacuons, or
« Net investment hedges — hedges of net investments in foreign operations

The Group documents the relationship between hedging instruments and hedged items at the hedge inception, as well as 1is nsk ranagement
objectve and strategy for undertaking vanous hedge transactions The Group also documents 11s assessment, both at hedge inception and on an
ongong basts, of whether the derivatives that are used in hedging transactions are highly effective In offsetting changes i fair values of hedged
ttems This efiectiveness testing 1s performed at every reporting date throughout the life of the hedge to confirm that the hedge has rematned
and will continue to remain ighly effective Movemnents on the hedging reserve in equity are shown 1n the Group statement of recogrised
Income and expense

Hedge accounting 1s discontinued when the hedging instrument expires or 1s sold, terminated or exercised or no jonger quahfies for hedge
accounting

Fair value hedges

Changes In the farr value of denwatives that are designated and qualify as far value hedging instruments are recarded in the Group income
statement, together wath any changes in the farr value of the hedged asset or lability that are attributable to the hedged nsk The ineffective
portton of 8 fair value hedge 15 recognised in net finanang costs i the Group Income statement

Cash flow hedges

The efiective portion of changes n the fair vaiue of denvatives that are designated and quahfy as cash flow hedges are recogrised in equity The
gan or loss relating to the ineffective portion 1s recognised immediately within cost of sales or operating expenses, as appropriate, In the Group
income statement

Amounts accumutated in equity are recycled in the Group income statement in the penod when the hedged tem wall affect the income
statement However, when the forecast transaction that 1s hedged results in the recognition of a non-financial asset or hiatuhity, the gains and
losses previously deferred in equity are transferred from equity and included in the wrutial measurement of the cost of the asset or liability When a
hedging instrument expires or s sold, or when a hedge no langer meets the critena for hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or loss existing In
equity at that tme remamns 1N equity and 15 recogrised when the forecast fransaction 15 ulumately recognised in the Group Income staiement
When a forecast transaction ts no onger expected 1o occur, the cumulative gan or 1oss that was reported in equity 1s transferred wmmediately o
the Group income statement

Net mnvestment hedges

Any gain of loss on the hedging instrument retating to the effective portion of the hedge of a net investment In a foreign aperation ts recognised
i equity, the gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion 15 recognised immediately in net finanaing costs in the Group income statement
Gans and losses accumulated in equity are included in the Group Income statement when the foreign operation 15 disposed of

Non-hedging dervatives

Changes in the fair value of any denvative instrument that does not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised Immediately in the Group
Income siatement Costs n respect of dervatives entered into i connection with Natonal Insurance habiliues on emptoyee share incenive
schemes are charged as an employment cost, other changes are charged within financing farr value remeasurements in the Group income
statement

Dernvatives embedded i other financial mstruments or other host contracis are treated as separate dervatives when therr nsks and charactensucs
are not closely related to those of host cantracts and the host contracts are not carnied at fair value with unreahsed gains or losses reported in
the Group income statement

Fair value estirnation

The fair value of financial instruments traded 1n organised active financial markets 1s based on quoted market prices at the close of business on
the balance sheet date The appropriate quoted market price for financial labiliwes 1s the current offer price and for finanaal assets the current
bid price
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2 Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies {continued)

The fair vaiue of financial instruments for which there 1s no quoted market price 1s determined by a variety of methods incorporating assumpitons
that are based on market conditions existing at each balance sheet date Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments are used for
long-term debt Other techniques such as estimated discounted cash flows, are used to determine fair value for the remaining financial
nstruments

The farr vatue of nterest rate swaps 15 calculated as the present value of the estmated future cash flows The fair value of forward foreign exchange
contracts 1s determined using forward fareign exchange market rates ai the balance sheet date The normunal vaiue less estimated credit adjustments
of short-term trade recevables and payables are assumed to approximate to then far values The farr value of financial habilities s estmated by
discounting the future contractual cash flows at the current market mterest rate that 1s available to the Group for similar financial instruments

financial nsk management

The Group's activities expose it to a vanety of financial nsks market nsk including currency risk and interest rate nsk, credit nsk and lquidity nsk
The Group's overall nsk managemeni programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minirruse potential adverse
effects an the Group’s financial performance The Group uses dervative financial instruments to hedge certan nsk exposures

The Group's Treasury function seeks 1o reduce the Group's exposure 1o foreign exchange, interest rate and other financial nsks 1t also ensures
surplus funds are managed and controlied In a prudent manner which will protect capital sums invested and ensure adequate short-term iquidity,
whilst maximising returns It does not operate as a profit centre and transacts only in relation to underlying business requirements it operates
policies and procedures which are penodically reviewed and approved by the directors and are subject to regular Group Internal Audit reviews

Up to and including the year ended 31 March 2006, the Group transacted pnmarnly in Pounds Sterling The hedging and nsk management
strategies pursued for the years then ended refiected this Policies adopted since demerger reflect the significance of its US Dollar operations

Market risk

Foreign exchange risk
The Group operates internationally and 15 exposed to foreign exchange nsk prmarily with respect 10 Pounds Sterling and the Eurc Foreign
exchange risk anses from recognised assets and liabilities and net investments in foreign operations

The Group has investments in foreign operavons, whose net assets are exposed to foreign currency translavon nsk Currency exposure ansing from
the nei asseis of the Group's foreign operasons 1s managed primarily through borrowings denominated in the relevant foreign currencies and the
use of forward foreign exchange contracts

interest rate risk

The Group has a policy of normally maintaining between 30% and 70% of net debt at rates that are fixed for more than one year The Group s
Interest rate exposure 15 managed by the use of fixed and floating rate borrowings and by the use of Interest rate swaps to adjust the balance of
fixed and floating rate habiities tt also mixes the duration of its borrowings to smooth the impact of interest rate fluctuations

Credrt risk

In the case of deposits and denvative financial instruments, the Group I1s exposed 10 a credit nisk, which results from the non-performance of
contractual agreements on the part of the contract party This credit nisk 1s mimimised by a policy under which the Group only enters into such
contracts with banks and financial mstitutions with strong credit raungs, within muts set for each orgamisation Dealing activity 1s closely controlled
and counterparty positions are monitored regularly The general credit nsk on derivative financial instruments utibsed by the Group is therefore not
considered to be sigrificant There 15 no significant concentration of credit nsk with respect to trade and other recewvables as the Group has a large
number of customers, internationally dispersed, with no concentrauon on particular industries or markets The Group has imptemented policies that
reguire appropniate credit checks on potential customers before granting credit The maximum credit nsk of financial assets 1s represented hy the
carrying value of the asset net of any applicable prowision for impairment

Ligquichity risk
The Group maintains long-term commutted faclities that are managed 1o ensure it has sufiicent available funds for operations and planned
£XpansIons

imparrment of non-financial assets

Assets that are not subject to amorusation are tested annually for impairment Assets that are subject to amortisauion are reviewed for inpairment
whenever events or changes in arcumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable An imparment loss 1s recogmised for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount The recoverable amount 15 the higher of an assets {air value less costs
to sell, and value-in-use For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable
cash flows {CGUs)

Cash and cash eguivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, term and call deposits held with banks and other shori-term highly iqued investments with oniginal
maturittes of three months or less Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings m current liabiliies on the Group balance sheet For the purposes
of the Group cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents are as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts
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Deferred tax

Deferred tax 15 provided n full on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and habiliwes and therr carrying amounts in the
Group financial siatements However, if the deferred tax anses from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the tme of the transacuion affects neither accounting ror taxable profit or loss, 1t 1s not accounted for Deferred tax assets and
nabilitres are calcutated at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset 1s realised or the habihity 15 settled, based on the tax
rates and laws that have been enacied or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date

Deferred tax assets are recogrised 1o the extent that it s probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the temporary
difierences can be utilised

Deferred tax 1s provided on temporary differences ansing on investments 1 subsidiaries and associates, except where the timing of the reversal of
the temporary difference 15 controlled by the Group and 1t 15 probable that the temporary difference will not reverse n the foreseeable future

Provisions
Provisions are recognised when

» The Group has a present legal or constructive obhgation as a result of past events,
s It 15 more likely than not that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obhgaton, and
e The amount has been reliably estimated

Provisions are not recogmised for future operating losses Where there are a number of similar obhigations, the likehhood that an outilow will be
required In settlement 15 determined by considerng the class of obhgations as a whole A provision 15 recognised even If the likelihood of an outfiow
with respect to any one item included In the same ciass of obligation may be smali

If the effect of the time value of maney 1s matenal, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and, where appropnate, the nisks specific to the labiity Where discounting 15 used
the increase in the provssion due to the passage of time 1s recogrised as an interest expense

Where the Group expects a provision o be reimbursed, the reimbursement 1s recognised as a separate asset when the reimburserment 1s certain

Leases

Finance leases

Leases of property, plant and equipment where the Group has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance teases
Finance leases are capitalised at the lease’s nception at the lower of the fair value of the teased property and the present value of the mimmum
lease payments Each lease payment is aliocated between the liabiity and finance charges so as to achieve a constant rate on the finance balance
outstanding The corresponding rental obligations, net of finance charges are ncluded In other payables The interest element of the finance cost 1s
charged in the Group income statement over the lease penod so as to produce a constant peniod:c rate of interest an the remaiming balance of the
liabily for each pencd

Operating leases
Leases in which a sigrificans portion of the nisks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating ieases

Payments made under operating leases are charged in the Group income statement on a straight line basis over the period of the lease Incentives
from lessors are recogrised as a systematic reduction of the charge over the penod of the lease

Employee benefits

Defined benefit pension arrangements

The pension hability recognised in the Group balance sheet, in respect of such arrangements, 1s the present value of the defined benefit obligation
at the balance sheet date less the fair value of plan assets together with adjusiments for past service cosis The defined benefit obligation is
calculated annually by independent guahified actuanes using the projected unit credit method

The present value aof the defined benefit obligation 1s determined by discounting the estmated future cash outflows using market yrelds available at
the assessment date on high-guality corporate bonds that are denominated in the currency in which the penafits will be paid and that have terms
to matunity consistent with the esumated average term of the related pension hability

Actuanal gains and losses arising from expenience adjustments and changes in actuaria) assumptions are recognised immediately in the Group
statement of recognised income and expense

Past service costs are recognised immediately in the Group ncome statement, unless the changes to the pension plan are conditional on the
employees remaining in service for a specified penod of tme (the vesting pentod) In this case, the past service costs are amortised on a straight ling
basis over the vesting penod

The pension cost recognised in the Group income statement comprises the cost of benefis accrued plus interesi on the defined benefit cbligation
less expected return on the plan assets over the year

Defined contribution pension arrangements
The assets of defined contribution schemes are held separately from those of the Group In independently administered funds The pension cost
recognised 1 the Group income siatement represents the contributions pad by the Group to these funds over the year
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2 Basis of preparation and significant accounting pohcies {rontinued)

Other post-employment obligations ~ Post-retirement healthcare costs

The Group operates schemes which provide post-retirement healthcare benefits to certain retired employees and their dependent relatives The
principal scheme relates 1o former emplayees in the UK and, under this scherme, the Group has undertaken to meet the cost of post-retirement
nealthcare insurance for all eligible former employees and their dependants who retired prior to 1 Apnl 1994

The expected cost of these benefits 1s calculated using an actuaral mathodology similar to that for defined benefit pension arrangerments Actuanal
gains and losses anging from expenence adjustments, and changes In actuanial assumptions, are recognised 1n the Group statement of recognised
income and expense The cbligations are valued annually by tndependent qualified actuarnes

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

in prepanng the Group financial statements, management 1 required to make esumates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of
revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent hiabilities The resutting accounting esumates, which are based on
management's best judgment at the date of the Group financial statements, wil, by defintion, seldom equal the related actual results The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant nsk of causing a matenal adjustment to the carryng amounts of assets and liabilites within the
next financial year are discussed below

Taxes

The Group Is subject to taxes in numerous junsdictions  Significant Jjudgment 15 reguired in determining the worldwide provision for income {axes as
there are many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination s uncertain during the ordinary course ¢f business The
Group recogrises labilies based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due Where the final tax outcome of these matters 15 different
from the amounts that were initialiy recorded, such differences will empact on the results for the year and the respective income tex and deferred
tax provisions in the year i which such determination 1s made

Pension benefits

The present value of the defined benefit obligations depends on a number of factors that are determined an an actuarial basis using a number of
assumptions The assumptions used in determining the defined benefit cbligations and net pension costs inciude the expacted jong-term rate of
return on the relevant plan assets and the discount rate Any changes in these assumptions may impact on the amounts disdased in the Group’s
palance sheet and income statement

The expected return on plan assets 1s calculated by reference to the plan investments at the batance sheet date and 15 3 weighted average of the
expected returns on each main asset type (based an market yields available on these asset types at the balance sheet date)

The Group has determined the appropriate discount rate at the enc of each year This is the interest rate used to determine the present value of
estmated future cash outflows expected to be required to settle the defined benefit obligations In determining the apprapriate discount rate, the
Group has considered the market yields of high-quality corporate honds that are denomimated in the currency tn which the benefits will be pad,
and that have terms to matunty consistent with the estimated average term of the related pension liability

Other key assumptions for defmed benefit obiigations and pension costs are based In part on market condrtions at the relevant balance sheet dates
and addibona! infermation 1s disclosed in note 24

Fair value of dervatives or other financial instruments

The farr value of financial Instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, over-the-counter dervatives) 15 determined by using
valuation techniques The Group uses 1is judgement to select a variety of methods and makes assumptions that are mainly based on market
conditions exisung at each balance sheet date

Goodwill
Goodwill 1s allocated to CGUs and monitored for internal management purposes by gecgraphucal segment The allocation 1s made to those CGUs or
groups of CGUs that are expected 1o beneht from the business combination in which the goodwll arose

The Group tests goodwill for imparment annually or more frequently If events or changes In circumstances indicate that the goodwill may be
impared The recoverable amount of each CGU s determined based on value-in-use calcutations

These calculations require the use of cash flow projectians based on financial budgets approved by management, looking forward up to five years
Cash flows are extrapolated using estmated growth rates beyond a five year period The growth rates used ¢o not exceed the long-term average
growth rate for the businesses in which the segmant operates

Key assumptions usad for value-n-use calcutations for all CGUs are

* Budgeted gross margin,

+ Weighted average real growth rate of 2 25% used to extrapolate cash flows beyond the budget peniod, and
o Pro-tax discount rate of 11 4% applied to the pre-tax cash flow projections

Management determines budgeted gross margin based on past perfiarmance and its expectations for the markes development The weighted
average growth rates used are consistent with the {arecasts included in industry reports The discount rates used reflect the Group's post-tax
weighted average cost of capial of 8%
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Share-based payments

The Group has a number of equity setiled share-based payment arrangements in existence The assumptions used n determining the amounts
charged in the Group income staternent inciude judgements 1n respect of performance condrtions and length of service together with future
share prices, dividend and interest yieids and exercise patterns

Crrtical judgemernits

Management has made certain jJudgements in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies set out above that have 8 significant effect
on the amounts recognised In the Group financal statements These include the classfication of transactions between the Group income
statement and the Group balance sheet These accounting policy descriptions indicate where judgement needs exercising

The most significant of these judgements 1s in respect of intangible assets where certain costs incurred in the developmental phase of an internal
project are capitalised if a number of critena are met Management has made certain Judgements and assumpticns when assessing whether a
project meets these critena, and on measuring the costs and the economic life attributed to such projects On acquisition, specfic intangible
assets are identrfied and recognised separatety from goodwill and then amortised over their esumated useful ives These mnclude such items as
brand names and customer lists, to which value 15 first attributed at the time of acquisiton The capitalisation of these assets and the related
amortisation charges are based on uncertain judgements about the value and economic Iife of such items The economic lives for intangible
assets are estimated at between 3 and 7 years for internal projects, which include databases internal use software and internally generated
software, and 2 and 10 years for acquisition intangibles

Recent accounting developments
The faollowing accounting standards, amendments and interpretations 1ssued by the 1ASB and the International Financial Reporting Interpretations
Committee ('IFRIC’) are effective for the Group’s accounting perniods beginning an or after 1 Apnl 2067

* [FRS 7 'Financial Instruments Disclosures and amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements - Capstal Disclosures’,

* IFRS 8 'Operating segmems'(‘),

* JAS 23 *Amendment to |AS 23 ‘Barrowing Costs’,
* JFRIC B 'Scope of IFRS 2',

» iFRIC O ‘Re-assessment of embedded derivatives',

* JFRIC 10 ‘intenm financial reporting and |mpa|rment"'),

* IFRIC 11 °IFRS 2 - Group and Treasury Share Transactions”™,

* |FRIC 12 “Service Concassion Arrangements'(')

{*) These standards are stifl subject to adoption by the EU

These changes are not expected to have a matenal effect on the results and net assets of Experian A number of the developments will lead to
additional disclosures

Use of non-GAAP measures

The Group has identified certain measures that 1t believes will assist understanding of the performance of the business The measures are not
defined under IFRS and they may not be directly comparable with other compamies’ adjusted measures The non-GAAP measures are not
intended to be 2 substitute for, or supenor 1o, any IFRS measures of performance but management has included them as they consider them 1o
be important comparables and key measures used withmn the business for assessing performance

The following are the key non-GAAP measures igentified by the Group

Benchrark Profit before Tax ("Benchmark PBT'}

Benchmark PBT is defined as profit before amortisation of acquisition intangibles  gooowill impairments, charges in respect of the demerger-
reiaied equity incentive plans, exceptional items, finanaing fair value remeasurernents and taxation 1t inciudes the Group s share of associates
pre-tax profit

Earrungs before interest and Tax (‘EBIT')
£BIT 15 defined as profit before amortisation of acquisiton intangibles, goodwill impairments, charges in respect of the demerger-related equity
Inceniive plans excepional riems, net financing costs and taxation 1t includes the Group's share of associates’ pre-tax profit

Benchmark Earmings per Share {'Benchmark EPS')
Benchmark EPS represents Benchmark PBT less attributable taxation and minonty interests dwmded by the weighted average number of shares in
1ssue, and 15 disclosed to indicate the underlying profitabiity of the Group

Exceptional items

The separate reporting of non-recurnng exceptional items gives an indication of the Group’s underlying performance Excepticnal items are those
ansing from the profit or loss on disposal of businesses ar dosure costs of matenal business uruts Al other restructuning costs are charged
aganst EBIT in the segments i which they are incurred

Net debt
Net debt 15 calcuiated as total debt less cash and cash equivalents Total debt includes loans and borrowings (and the fair value of derivatives
hedging toans and borrowings), overdrafts and oblhgations under finance leases Interest payable on borrowings 1s excluded from net debt
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3 Segmental information

A business segment 1s a group of assets and operatons engaged 1n prowding progucts or services that are subject 1o nisks and returns thai are
different from those of other business segments A geographical segment 1s engaged in prowding products or services within a particular
economuic enviconment and 1s subject 1o nisks and returns that are different from those of segments operating i other eCONOMIC environments

inter-segment transactions are entered into under the normal commercial terms and conditigns that would also be available to unretated third
parties There 15 no material iImpact from inter-segment transactions on the Group's results

Segment assets cansist primarily of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets Including goodwaill, inventones, denvatves designatec as
hedges of future commercial transactions, and receivables They exclude tax assets, cash, investments and dernvaives designated as hedges of
borrowings which are included within Central activities

Segment habilities comprise operating hatiites iIncluding derwatves designated as hedges of future commercial transactions) They exclude items
such as tax barrowings and refated hedgeng denvatives which are included within Central activities

Capital expenditure compnses additions to property, plant and equipment and intangible assets, excluding addimons resulting from acquisitions
through business combinations

The pmary and secondary segmental reporting formats for Expenan are outlined befow In addition the segmentai information includes
discontinued operations These comprise the businesses of Home Retall Group, Burberry and Lewis whuch were all indvidual segrments for GUS
plc but were exther demerged from or soid by GUS plc prior to the flotation of Expenan

Additional information 1n respect of discontinued operations 1s shown 1 note 10

Primary reporting format for Expernian — geographical segments
At 31 March 2007 Expenian 1s organised on a wortdwade basis into three core geographies

* Amencas (North Amenca and South Amernca),
* UK & lreland, and
« Europe, Middle East and Africa (EMEAYAsia Pacific

in addition unallocated corporate head office costs, which include costs ansing from finance, treasury and other global functions, are reported as
Central activities

secondary reporting format for Experian - business segments
Experian operates across four key business segments

s Credit Services,
« Decision Analytics,
* Markeung Solutions, and

* Interactive
In addrion unallocated corporate head office costs, which include costs ansing from finance, treasury and other global functions, are reported as
Central actviiies

Credit Services acquires, processes and manages large and complex databases containing the credit histones of consumers and bustnesses and
also operates business processing outsourcing services, mainly in France helping banks and other clrents with back office funcuons

Decision Analytics builds on the Credit Services database information and helps chents by applying analyucal tools and software to converi data
held nternally and other data into usable business informauon

Marketing Selutions helps cients to acquire new customers and to manage therr relationships with existing customers By appending hundreds of
charactenstics 10 the credit and marketing data held in databases, Marketing Solutions provides clients with infermation designed to assist them
In matching the nght offer or product 1o the relevant customer using the most appropriate commumcation channels

Interactive helps cusiomers to understand and ranage ther own financial iInformation and assets as well as to make more nformed purchase
decisions in areas such as financial services, shopping and education and to connect them with companies over the Internet
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3 Segmental information (continued)
Geographical segments
(a) Income statement

Year ended 31 March 2007
Continuing operations

Amencas UK & EMEA/ Ceniral Total Discontinued Total
Ireland Asia Pacific activines continuing  operations3? Group
UsSim Usm UsStm USim UsEm ussm USSm

Revenue?!
Total revenue 1,994 907 561 - 3,492 5,468 8.960
Inter-segment revenue? - nn - - (1) - (11)
Revenue from external customers 1994 896 591 - 3,481 5,468 8,948

Profit

Operating profit/(loss) 432 176 68 (203} 473 212 685
Net financing ncome/(costs) - - - {146} (146) 16 (130)
Share of post-tax profits of associates 67 - - - 67 - 67
Profit/{loss) before tax 499 176 68 {349) 394 228 622
Group tax expense (68) (91) {159)
Profit for the financial year 326 137 463

Reconahatton from EBIT to Profit/(loss)
before tax - continuing operations

EBIT 562 236 74 {47) 825

Net interest - - - (1n {111}

Benchmark PBT 562 236 74 (158} 714

Exceptional items {note 7) 15 (26) - (151} {162)

Amortsation of acquisition intangibles (45) (27) [:)] - {76) ‘

Goodwill adjustment (14) - - - (14) |

Charges in respect of the demerger- ‘
related equity Incentive plans (10) (7) (2 (5) (24)

Ainanaing fair vaiue remeasurerments - - - (35) {35)

Tax expense on share of profit of associates  (9) - - - [£:)]

Profit/{loss) before tax 499 i76 68 (349) 394

1 Revenue from contnuing operations arose principally from the provision of services Revenue from discontinued operations arase principally
from the sale of goods Revenue within the UK & Ireland geographical segment includes US$11m of inter-segment revanue with discontinued
operations

2 Inter-segment revenue represents the provision of services between Expenan and discontinued operations

3 Additionat infarmation on discontinuec operations, which comprnise Home Retall Group, together with a tax charge in respect of disposals, 15
shown in note 10 The results of discontinued operations are In respect of businesses operating within the UK & treland geographical segment
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3 Segmental information (continued)

{b) Balance sheet at 31 March 2007

Continuing operations

Americas UK & EMEA/ Central Total

Ireland Asia Pacific acuvities Group

Ustm US$m UStm usim Ussm

Total segment assets 2,776 1,092 614 364 4,846
Less segment hatnlties {535) (318) {195) {169) (1.217)
Segment net assets 2,241 774 419 195 3,629
Net debt (1,408)
Tax (114}
Group net assets 2,107

Segment net assets for Central actiwties represents corporate head office balances including retirement benefil assets and denvauve assets

and liabilities
(¢} Other Continuing operations
Amerncas UK & EMEA/ Central Total Discontinued Total
treland Asia Pacific activites continuing operations Group
ussm Usim Usim Ustm Ussm ussm ussm
Benchmark PBT s stated after
charging
Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment {note 15) 36 29 i2 2 79 134 213
Amortisation of iniangtble assets
(note 14) 147 59 20 - 226 1 237
Benchmark PBT includes
Share of profit of associates 61 - - - 61 - 61
Segment net assets ncludes
Goodwill 1,376 524 319 - 2,219 - 2,219
Investment in associates 277 - 9 - 286 - 286
Capital expenditure 168 67 40 - 275 173 448
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3 Segmental information (continued)
Geographical segments

(a) Income statement

Year ended 31 March 2006 Continung aperations

Americas UK & EMEA/S Central Total Discontinued Total

Ireland Asia Pacrfic actiities continuing operations? Group
UsSIm Usim ussm Ussm Ussm us$m ussm

Revenue!
Total revenue 1,804 758 522 - 3,084 11,086 14,170
inter-segment revenue2 - (20 - - (20) - (20)
Revenue from external customers 1,804 738 522 - 3,064 11,086 14,150
Profit
Operating profit/(loss} 365 197 62 (38) 586 835 1,424
Net financing ncome/{costs) - - - {102) (102) 33 {69)
Share of post-tax profits of associates 66 - - - 66 - 66
Profit/(loss) before tax 431 197 62 (140) 550 868 1,418
Group tax expense (92) (262) (354)
Profit for the finanaal year 458 606 1,064

Reconahation from EBIT to Profit/(loss)
before tax — continuing operations

EBIT 479 215 64 (31) 727
Net mnterest - - - {100) {100)
Benchmark PBT 479 215 64 {131} 627
Exceptional items (note 7} - - - (7} N
Amortisation of acquisition intangibles (46} {18} (2) - {66)
Financing far value remeasurements - - - {2) (2}
Tax expense on share of profit of assoaates  (2) - - - (2)
Profit/(loss) before tax 431 197 62 (140) 550

1 Revenue from conttnuing operations arose principally from the provision of services Revenue from discontinued operations arose principally
from the sale of goods Revenue within the UK & Ireland geographical segment Includes US320m of inter-segment revenue with
discontinued operaticns

2 Inter-segment revanue represents the prowision of services between Experian and discontinued operations

3 Discontinued operations compnse the businesses Home Retail Group, Burberry and Lewss The most significant of these segiments Home Retail
Group, pnnapally operated in the UK & Ireland gecgraphical segment Discontinued operations include the results of Homebase for the year
ended 28 February 2006 Additional information on discontinued aperations i1s shown in note 10
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3  Segmental information (continued)

{b) Balance sheet at 31 March 2006 Continuing operations
Amernicas LUK & EMEA/ Central Total Discontinued Total
ireland Asia Pacific actviues continuing operations Group
usim Ussm usim usim ussm ussm ussm
Total segment assets 2,727 906 501 408 4,542 7.196 11,738
Less segment habihues {503} (251) {162} (119) (1,035} (1.735) (2,770)
Segment net assets 2,224 655 339 285 3,507 5461 8,968
Net debt (3.437)
Tax on
Group net assets 5,454

Segment: net assets for Central actvites represents corporaie head office balances including retirement benefit assets and denvative assets
and liabihties

{c) Other Continuing operations
Amencas UK & EMEAS Central Total Discontinued Total
Ireland Asia Pacific acuvities continuing operations Group
Usim ussm ussm Us3Im US$m us$m Ussm

Benchmark PBT is stated after

charging
Depreciation of property, plant and

equipment (note 15) 36 20 11 3 70 243 313
Amortisation of intangible assets

(note 14) 143 41 16 - 200 32 232
Benchmark PBT includes
Share of profit of associates 68 - - - 68 - 68
Segment net assets includes
Goodwill 1,356 441 273 - 2,070 3,272 5,342
Investment In associates 225 - - - 225 - 225
Capital expenditure 129 43 32 8 212 494 706
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3  Segmental information (continued)

Business segments

(a) Income statement
Year ended 31 March 2007

Continuing operations

Credit Decision Marketing Central Total Discontinued Total
Services Analytics Solutions Interactive activires  continuing operations? Group
Ustm ussm ussm us$m USsm USsSm UsS$m us$m
Revenuel
Total revenue 1,584 392 728 788 - 3,492 5468 8,960
Inter-segment revenue (11 - - - - {11} - (mn
Revenue from external customers 1,573 392 728 788 - 3.481 5,468 8,949
Profrt
Operating profit/(loss) 402 130 28 135 (222} 473 212 685
Net financing income/(costs) - - - - (146) (146) 16 {130)
Share of post-tax profits of
associates 67 - - - - 67 - 67
Profit/(loss) before tax 469 130 28 135 {368) 394 228 622
Group tax expense (68) (91} (159}
Profit for the financial year 326 137 463
Reconciiation from EBIT to
Profit/(loss) before tax -
continuing operations
EBIT 505 136 64 167 {47) 825
Net interest - - - - {111) {111)
Benchmark PBT 505 136 64 167 (158) 714
Exceptional items {note 7) an - - - (151) (162}
Amortisation of acguisition
intangibles {16} n 27} (32) - {76)
Goodwill adjustment - {5 (S} - - (14)
Charges in respect of the demerger-
related eguity incentive plans4 - - - - {24) {24)
Financing farr value
remeasurements - - - - (35} (35)
Tax expense on share of profit of
associates (9 - - - - {9)
Profit/(loss) before tax 469 130 28 135 (368) 394

1 Revenue from continuing operations arose principally from the prowision af services Revenue from discontinued operatiens arose prncipally
from the sate of goods Revenue from Credit Services included US$11m of inter-segment revenue with discontinued operations

2 Inter-segment revenue represents the prowsion of services between Expenan and discontinued operations

3 Discontinued operations comprise Home Retall Group Addittonal information on discontinued operations (s given in note 10

4 No allocation by business segment 1s made for charges in respect of the demerger-related equity incentive plans as the underlying data 1s
mamntained only to prowvide an allocation by geographical segment
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3 Segmenta! information {continued}

Year ended 31 March 2006

Contnuing operations

Credit Decision Marketing Central Total Discontinued Total
Services Analytics Selutions Interactive actwvities continuing operations? Group
Ussm Us$m UsSim Ussm Ussm ussm ussm Ussm

Revenue?
Total revenue 1,504 325 627 628 - 3,084 11,086 14,170
Inter-segment revenue? (20) - - - - (20) - (20)
Revenue from external customers 1,484 325 627 628 - 3,064 11,086 14,150
Profit
Operaung profit/(loss) 395 102 41 86 (38) 586 835 1,421
Net financing income/(costs) - - - - {102} {102) 33 (69)
Share of post-tax profits of associates 66 - - - - 66 - 66
Profit/(loss) before tax 461 102 M 86 {140) 550 868 1418
Group tax expense {92) {262) {354)
Profit for the finanaial year 458 606 1,064
Reconciiation from EBIT
to Profit/(ioss) before tax —
continuing operations
EBIT 477 102 57 122 (31 727
Net interest - - - - {100} (100)
Benchmark PBT 477 102 57 122 (131 627
Exceptional tems (note 7) - - - - 7 0]
Amorusation of acguisition

intangibies (14) - (16} (36) - (66}
Financing fair value

remeasuraments - - - - (2) (2)
Tax expense on share of profit

of assaciaies (2) - - - - 2}
Profit/(loss) before tax 461 102 4 86 {140 550

1 Revenue from contsnuing operations arose principally from the provision of services Revenue from discantinued operations arase principally
from the sate of goods Revenue from Credit Services includes US$20m of inter-segment revenue with discontinued operations

2 Inter-segment revenue represents the provision of services between Expenan and discontinued operations

3 Discontinued operations comprise the businesses Home Retall Group, Burberry and Lewis which were all ndwidual segments Drscontinued
operations include the results of Homebase for the year ended 28 February 2006 Addruonal information on discontinued operations s given in

note 10
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3  Segmental information (continued}

Year ended 31 March 2006

Continuing operations

Credit Decisian Marreting Central Total Discontinued Total
Services Analytics Salyhons Interactive activities  continumng operatiohs? Group
ussm Ussm Usim USim Usim ussm ussm Us$m

Revenue?
Total revenue 1504 325 627 628 - 3,084 11,086 14,170
inter-segment revenue? (20) - - - - (20) - (20)
Revenue from external customers 1,484 325 627 628 - 3,064 11,086 14,150
Profit
Operating profit/{ioss) 385 102 41 26 {38} 586 835 1,421
Net financing income/(costs) - - - - (102) (102} 33 (69)
Share of post-tax profits of associates 66 - - - - 66 - 66
Profit/{loss) before tax 467 102 41 86 {140) 550 868 1,418
Group tax expense {92) (262) (354)
Profit for the financial year 458 606 1,064
Reconaliation from EBIT
to Profit/{loss) before tax —
continuing operations
EBIT 477 102 57 122 (31) 727
Net interest - - - - (100} (100)
Benchmark PBT 477 102 57 122 {131) 627
Exceptianal items {note 7} - - - - % 7))
Amortsation of acguisition

intangibtes (14) - (16) (36) - (66)
Financing farr value

remeasuements - - - - (2) 2}
Tax expense on share of profit

of associates (2 - - - - (2)
Profit/{loss) before tax 461 102 41 86 (140) 550

1 Revenue from continuing operations arose principally from the provision of services Revenue from discontinued operations arase principally
from the sale of goods Revenue from Credit Services includes US320m of inter-segment revenue with discontinued operations

2 Intersegment revenue represents the prowsion of sennices between Experian and discontinued operations

3 Discontinued operations comprise the businesses Home Retail Group, Burberry and Lewis which were all ingmdual segments Disconunued
operations Include the results of Homebase for the vear ended 28 February 2006 Addinonal information pn discontinues operations 1s given In

note 10
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3 Segmental information (continued)

2007 2006
{b) Total segment assets ussm Us$m
Conunuing operatons
Credit Serices 1,871 1,652
Decision Analylics 293 242
Marketing Solutions 993 893
Interactive 1,131 1,174
Central actmties 558 581
Total continuing operations 4,846 4,542
Disconttnued operations - 7,196
Total 4,846 11,738

Total segment assets for Central acinvties at 31 March 2007 represents corporate head office balances including retrement beneirt and dervative
assets In addition 1o those assets reflected in the geographical analysis, all Group properties are included within Central activities as they are not
allocated by business segment

2007 2006
(c) Caprtal expenditure ussm uUssm
Continuing operations
Credit Services 182 132
Deaision Analytics 9 11
Marketing Solutions 64 48
Interactive 20 13
Central actmaties _ 8
Jotal continuing operations 275 212
Discontnued operations 173 494
Total 448 706
4 Foreign currency
The principal exchange rates used were as follows

Average Closing
2007 2006 2007 2006 2005

Sterling to US Dollar 189 179 196 174 188
Euro to US Dollar 129 122 133 122 130

Assets and habilities of undertakings whose functional currency 1s not the US Dollar are translated into US Dollars at the rates of exchange ruling at
the balance sheet date and the income statement 15 translated into US Dollars at average rates of exchange (unless this average I1s not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulatve effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case income and expenses are translated ai the
rates on the dates of the transactions)
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5 Expenses

2007 2006
Us$m USsm
(a) Expenses by nature
Profit before tax is stated after charging
Net operating lease rental expense 102 a1
Depreciation of property, plant and eguipment 79 70
Arnortsation of iniangible assets 226 200
Wiite down on disposal of property, ptant and equipment and intangibles 10 -
Employee benefit costs {(note 6) 1,327 1,128
Research expenditure 5 5

Amortisation of intangtble assats 1s charged to administration expenses, except for the amortisation of databases which 1s charged 1o cost of sales

{b) Fees payable to the Company’s auditor

Fees payable to the Company's auditor for the audn of the parent company and

Group financial statements

Audit of the finanoal statements of the Group's UK and overseas subsidiarigs, pursuant to tegislation 2 1
Other assurance services, pursuant to iegislation, including fees for the review
of the Group’s intenm statement 2 3
Taxation services 4 5
Servicas in respect of the demerger 19 -
All other services, mcluding regulatory, comphiance and treasury related services 2 2
Total fees payable to the Company's auditor and Its associates for ather services 29 1
The guidehnes covering the use of the Company's auditor for non-audit services are set aut in the corporate governance statement on page 45
6 Employee benefit costs and employee numbers
(a) The aggregate employee costs for the continuing operations of the Group comprise
2007 2006
Notes ussm USsm
Wages and salanes 1,025 891
Social secusnity Costs 161 148
Share-based payments kA 91 36
Pension costs — defined benefit plans 24 17 26
Pension costs — defined contnibution plans 24 33 27
Total continuing operations 1,327 1128
(b} The average number of employees {including executive directors) in the continuing operations of the Group comprise
2007 2006
Full time Full uime
Full time Part ttme equivalent Full ttme Part ume equivalent
Americas 5,230 201 5.330 4,796 167 4,879
UK & Irefand 3,745 189 3,840 3452 201 3553
EMEA/ASIA Pacific 3,248 226 3,361 3,253 229 3,367
Central actvties 95 4 97 74 - 74
Total continuing operations 12,318 620 12,628 11,575 597 11873

included in the Central activities headcount in 2007 are 25 full tme employees, performing group finance and adrinistration tasks who had

previously been reported within the UK & Ireland segment
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6 Employee benefit costs and employee numbers {continued)

{c) Remuneration of key management personnel

2007 2006

ussm ussim

Salanes and short-term employee benefits 16 13

Retirement benefits 4 2
Other long-term benefits -

Share-based payments 28 11

Total continuing operations 48 28

Key management personnel comprises the board of directors, shown on pages 38 and 39, and certain senior management The amount mcluded in
respect of share-based payments includes operating and exceptional costs for previous GUS awards and the one—off demerger awards

further detalls of the remuneration of directors are given in the audttable part of the report on directors’ remuneration on pages 52 to 57

information on transactions with related parties 1s set out In note 35

7 Exceptional and other non-GAAP measures

2007 2006
ussm Ussm

Exceptional stems
Continuing operations
Charge on early vesting and modification of share awards at demerger of Expenan and Home Retall Group 23 -
Other costs incurred relating 1o the demerger of Expenan and Home Retail Group 126
Costs incurred in the closure of UK Account Processing 26 -
Loss on disposal of businesses 2 -
Gan ansing In associate on the partial disposal of its subsidiary (15} -
Total exceptional items 162 7
Other non-GAAP measures
Continuing operations
Amortisation of acguisiion intangibles 76 66
Goodwill adjustment 1 -
Charges in respect of the demerger-related equity incentive plans 24
Financing fatr value remeasurements (note 8) 35 2
Total other non-GAAP measures 149 68

Exceptional items
Other costs of US$126m (2006 US$7m) incurred relating 1o the demerger of Expenian and Home Retail Group compnse legal and proiessional fees
in respect of the transaction, together with costs i connection with the cessation of the corporate functions of GUS plec in 2007

In Apnil 2006 Experian announced the phased withdrawal from large scale credit card and loan account processing in the UK The full cost of
withdrawal of US$26m has been charged m the year, and 1s made up of a cost i cash of US528m less the benefit of a Us$2m pension curtalment
credit The loss on the disposal of businesses primarily related to the sale of a minonity stake in Experian’s South African business

First Amencan Real Estate Solutions LLC (‘FARES’) recogrised a gan of US$77m on the partial disposal of 1is Real Estate Solutions divsion as part of
the consideration for the acqussitton of 82% of Corelogic Solutions, Inc Expenan recogrised US$15m, 11s 20% share of the gain A deferred tax
charge of US$6m has been included in the FARES result in respect of this gain

QOther non-GAAP measures

IFRS requires that, on acquisiion, specific intangible assets are wdentified and recogrised separately from goodwilt and then amorused over their
usefu! economic lives These include 1tems such as brand names and customer lists, to which value 15 furst attnbuted at the time of acquisiion The
Group has excluded amortisaton of these acquisition intangibles from s definiton of Benchmark PBT because such a charge 1s based on uncertain
judgements about therr value and economic hife

A goodwall adjustment of US$14m arose under IFRS3 "Business combinations’ on the recogrition of prewiously unrecognised tax losses on prior
years’ acquisitions The carresponding tax benefi reduces the tax charge in the year by Ussidm

Charges in respect of the demerger-related equity Incentive pians relate 1o one-off grants made to sermor management and at all staff fevels at the
ume of the demerger, under a number of equity incentive plans The cost of these one-oft grants will be charged to the Group income siatement
over the five years following flotation but excluded from the defimtion of Benchmark PBT The cost of all other grants will be charged to the Group
income statement and will be included 1n the definition of Benchmark PBT

An element of the Group's denvatives 1s neligible for hedge accounung under IFRS Gains or losses on these dervatives arising from market movements
are credited or charged to finanaing fair value remeasurements within Finance income and Finance expense in the Group ncome statement
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8 Net finanang costs

2007 2006
Usim UStm
{a) Net financing costs comprise
Interest income
Bank deposits 10 5
Loan notes (note 18) 1 14
Interest differentials on dernvatives 17 45
Expected return on penston scheme assets 68 54
Interest income 96 118
Financing fair value gains
Far value gains on non-hedging denvatives 7 23
Ineffective portion of net investment hedges - 5
financing fair value gans 7 28
Finance income 103 146
Interest expense
Bank loans and overdrafts a1 64
Eurgbonds and notes 112 107
Commitment and facility utiisation fees 2 2
Interest expense on pension scheme habiiities 52 45
Interest expense 207 218
Financing fair vatue losses
Ineffective poruion of farr value hedges of borrowings 5 5
Fair value losses on non-hedging derivatives 26 -
Foreign exchange transaction losses " 25
Financing fair value losses 42 30
Finance expense 249 248
Net financing costs 146 102
{b) Net interest expense included 1n Benchmark PBT compnses
Net finanaing costs 146 102
Less financing fair value remeasurements (35} {2)
Net interest expense included in Benchmark PBT 11 100
{c) Financing fair value remeasurements included in net financng costs compnse
Financing far value gains 7 28
Financing farr value losses (42} 30)
Charge in respect of finanang farr value remeasurements (35) 2)
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9 Tax expense

2007 2006
Ussm ussm
(a) Analysis of expense recognised in the Group Income statement
Current taxation
UK Corporation tax on incame for the year (13) 45
Adjustments in respect of prior years (1) (4
(14 41
Non-UK taxation
Overseas tax on income for the year 39 17
Adjustments in respect of prior years (6) ]
Jotal current tax charge for the year 19 51
Deferred tax
Ongination and reversal of temporary differences 53 54
Adjustments in respect of prior years (4) {13}
Total deferred tax charge for the year 49 4
Total tax expense (n the Group mcome statement 68 92
The tax expense comprises
UK taxation {45) 36
Overseas taxation 113 56
Total tax expense in the Group income statement 68 92
{b) Tax reconaliation
Profit before tax 394 550
Plus tax on share of profits of associates 9 2
Adjusted profit befere tax a03 552
Adjyusted profit before tax muluplied by the standard rate of Corporation iax in the UK of 30% (2006 30%) 121 166
effects of
Adjustments to 1ax charge In respect of prior years (11) (24}
income not taxable {10} n
Expenses not deductible 39 45
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses (16) (2)
Tax on share of profits of associates (9} (2)
Differences in tax rates (34) (54}
QOther adjustments (9) (28)
Disposal of businessas (3} 2
Total tax expense in the Group income statement 68 92

The effective tax rate for the year of 17 3% {2006 1& 7%), after adjusting for the net ncome from associates, 15 lower than the standard rate of
corporation iax in the Unuted Kingdom (30%) The differences are explained above

{¢) The effective rate of tax on Benchmark PBT
The effective rate of tax based on Benchmark PBT of US$714m (2006 US3627m) 15 22 4% (2006 17 5%)

{(d) Tax on 1items charged to equity

In addition ¢ the amount charged to the Group income staternent tax amounting 1o US37m (2006 US$9m credit) has been charged directly to
equity, relating mainly to share schemes actuanal gams and losses on retirement benefit obhigations and foreign exchange This includes a credit of
US$11m (2006 USSmil} in respect of current taxation and a charge of US$18m (2006 credit of US$9m) in respect of deferred taxauon

{e) Factors that may affect future tax charges
In the foreseeable future, the Group's 1ax charge will continue to be influenced by the profiie of profits earned in the different countries in which
the Group’s businesses operate and could be affected by changes in tax law
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10 Discontinued operations

The results for discontinued operations were as foliows

2007 2006

Ussm ussm
Revenue
Home Retall Group {including Wehkamp) 5.468 10,206
Burberry - 844
Lewrs Group - 36
Total revenue 5,468 11 086
Operating profit
Hore Retall Group {including Wehkamp) 212 619
Burbetry - 168
Lewis Group - 9
Total operating profit 212 796
Net financing income 16 33
Profit before tax of discontinued operations 228 826
Tax charge {74) (262)
Profit after tax of discontinued operations 154 567
GainsAlosses) on disposal of discontinued operations
Profit on disposal of Lews Group - 64
Loss on disposal of Wehkamp - {34)
Profit on disposal of shares in Burberry - 18
Costs incurred relating to the demerger of Burberry - )]
Gains on disposals - 39
Tax charge in respect of disposals {17) -
{Loss)/profit after tax on disposals (17) 39
Prafit for the financiai year from discontinued cperations 137 606

in May 2005, the Group announced the sale of 1ts remaining 50% interest i Lewis Group Limited and in Decenber 2005 divested its remaining
£5% interest in Burberry Group pl¢ in January 20086, the Group sold Wehkamp, the leading home shopping brand in the Netherlands These
operations were classified as discontinued in the financal statements of GUS plc for the year ended 31 March 2006 In Cctober 2006, the net assets
of Home Retall Group were tistnbuted by way of a dividend in specie As a result, these operations have been reclassified as discantinued

The tax charge in respect of disposals related to taxation assets no longer recoverabie following earlier disposals
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10 Discontinued operations (continued)

Earrungs before interest and taxation of discantinued businesses are stated after charging

2007 2006
Ussm Usim
Cost of sales 3.589 7,034
Qperating expenses
Distnibution costs 1,361 2,335
Adrmunistrative expenses 306 921
Qperating expenses 1,667 3,256
The cash fiows attnbutable to discontinued operations comprise
From operating activiues 705 539
From nvesting activities (163) (711)
From finanoing actvives 3) N
Exchange and other movements 16 (8}
Less cash held by Home Retail Group at demerger {note 30{(b}} {518) -
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents in discontinued operations 32 (188)
11 Dmvidend
2007 2007 2006 2006
cents cents
per share Ussm per share usIm
Amounts recognised and paid as distnbutions & equity holders dunng the year
Interim 55 55 172 147
Final 403 346 366 361
Ordinary dividends paid on equity shares 458 401 538 508
Dividend n specie relating to the demerger of Home Retasl Group (note 30(b) 5,627 -
Dwidend n specie relating to the demerger af Burberry Group ple - 513
Full year dividend for the year ended 31 March 2007 170

A cividend of 11 5 cents per Qrdinary share will be paid on 27 july 2007 to shareholders on the register at the close of business on 29 June 2007
and 15 not Included as a liability in these financial statements

Unless shareholders elect by 29 June 2007 to recewe US Dolfars, ther dividends wili be paid in Sterling at a rate per share calculated on the basis of
the exchange rate from US Dollars to Sterling on 6 July 2007

Pursuant to the Income Access Share arrangements put in place as part of the demerger, shareholders i Experian Group Limited are able 10 elect 10
recewve therr dividends from a UK source (the *IAS election’) Sharehoiders who held 50,000 or fewer Experian shares () on the date of admssion of
the Company's shares to the London Stock Exchange and (i} 10 the case of shareholders who did not own sheres at that vme, on the first dwidend
record date aiter they became shareholders in the Company, unless they elect otherwise, will be deemed to have elected to recewe therr dwidends
under the IAS arrangements Shareholders who hold more than 50,000 shares and who wish to recewe therr dividends from a UK source must
make an IAS election Al elections remain in force indefinitely unless revoked

The Expenian Group Limvted Exployee Share Trust and the GUS ESOP Trust have waived their entitiement to dwidends i the amount of US$am
(2006 US$7m) The GUS ESOP Trust did not wawve its entitlement o the dividend in specie

The dividends In respect of the year ended 31 March 2006 were received by sharehglders of GUS plc The final divdend pard in August 2006 and
the diidend In specie relating to the demerger of Home Retall Group were received by shareholders of GUS plc
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12 Basic and diluted earnings per share

The catculation of basic earnings per share 15 calculated by dwiding the earnings attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by a weighted
average number of Qrdinary shares in issue during the year (excluding own shares held in Treasury in the period prior to the demerger and own shares
held in ESOP trusts, which are treated as cancelled}

The calculation of diluted earrings per share reflects the potential dilutive effect of employee share incentive schemes The earrungs figures used 1n
the calculations are unchanged for diluted earrings per share

The weighted average number of Ordinary shares in 1ssue dunng the year ended 31 March 2007 includes Ordinary shares of GUS plc in issue to the
date of the demerger and the Ordinary shares of the Company in 1ssue thereafter The weighted average number of Ordinary shares in 1ssue durning
the year ended 31 March 2006 comprnises Ordinary shares of GUS plc in 1ssue and reflects the effect of the share consolidation that took place at
the date of the Burberry demerger in December 2005

2007 2006
Basic earnings per share cents cents
Continuing and discontinued operations 499 075
Excluge discontinued operations (14 8) {50 1)
Continuing operations 351 48 4
Add back of exceptional and other non-GAAP measures, net of tax 246 61
Benchmark earmings per share from continuing operations — nen-GAAP measure 597 545
Diluted earmings per share
Continuing and discontinued operations 49 3 105 8
Exclude discontinued operatiens (14 6} (58 2)
Continuing operations 347 47 6
Add back of exceptional and other non-GAAP measures, net of tax 244 60
Benchmark diluted earmings per share from continuing operations — non-GAAP measure 591 536
2007 2006
Earnings ussm ussm
Continuing and discontinued operations 462 1,018
Exciude discontinued operations (137) {560)
Continuing operations 325 458
Add back of exceptional and other non-GAAP measures, net of tax 229 58
Benchmark earnings - non-GAAP measure 554 516
2007 2006
m m
Weighted average number of Ordinary shares in 1ssue during the year 9273 846 7
Dilutive effect of share incentive awards 949 150
Diluted weighted average number of Ordinary shares in 1ssue during the year 937 2 9617
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13 Goodwill
Home Retail
Expenan Group Total
Usim Ussm ussm

At 1 Apnl 2006 2,070 3,272 5,342

Differences on exchange 93 286 379

Addimons through business combmations {note 30 (a) ral - n

Reducuon in goodwill relating to tax losses {14) - (14)
Demerger of Home Retail Group {note 30(h)} - (3,558) {3,558)
Disposals (1) - (1)
At 31 March 2007 2,219 - 2,219

In accordance with IFRS 3 the goodwill balance has been reduced by US$14m on the recognition of tax Josses on prior year acguisiions A goodwill
adjustment of US$14m has been charged to offset the recogmition of a credit in the 1ax charge for the year The goodwill adjustment has been

excluded from Benchmark PBT

Home Retail

Experian Group Other Total

Ussm UsStm uUssm ussm

At 1 Apnit 2005 1,012 3,455 215 4,682
Differences on exchange (48) {183 {11) (242)
Additions through business combmations 1,124 - 9 1,133
Disposals - - (213) (213)
Transfer 1o acquisition intangibles {18} - - (18)
At 31 March 2006 2,070 3,272 - 5.342

Expenan goodwill at the balance sheet date has been allocated to CGUs as follows Americas US51 376m (2006 US$1,356m), UK and treland
US$524m (2006 US$441m) and EMEA/Asia Pacific US$319m (2006 US3273m) Further detarls of the principles used w determining the bass of

aliocation and annual impairment testing are given in note 2

14 Other intangible assets

Internally
internal use generated Acquisition
Databases software sottware intangibles* Total
ussm Usim Ussm Usim ussm
Cost
At 1 April 2006 585 355 165 529 1,634
Differences on exchange 24 26 16 24 90
Additons through business combinations {note 30 (a)) P - - 18 20
QOther additions 102 75 42 - 219
Demerger of Home Retail Group {note 30 (b)) - {308) - - (308)
Disposals (47 (11) (5} - (63}
At 31 March 2007 666 137 218 571 1,592
Amortisation and imparment losses
At 1 Apnl 2006 353 180 S0 85 708
Differences on exchange 20 i6 9 5 50
Charge for the year 92 45 24 76 237
bemerger of Home Retall Group (note 30(b)) - (150) - - {150}
Disposals an ) 9} - (5N
At 31 March 2007 418 82 i22 166 788
Net Book Value at 31 March 2006 232 i75 75 444 926
Net Book Value at 31 March 2007 248 55 9% 405 804

* Acquisition intangibles represents rade marks and hcences, trade names, customer relationshups and completed technology
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14 Other intangible assets {continued}

internally
Internal use generated Acguisitton
Databases software software intangibles* Total
UsSim ussm ussm USsm ussm
Cost
At 1 Aprii 2005 516 370 145 130 1,161
Differences on exchange (14) (20) (9} (13} (56)
Additions through business combinations 2 - - 392 394
Other additions g5 70 34 2 201
Transier between assets - - - 18 18
Disposal of subsidiaries - (27) - - (27)
Disposals (14) (38 (5) - (57
At 31 March 2006 585 355 165 528 1,634
Amortisation ang imparment losses
At 1 Apnl 2005 290 184 76 20 570
Drfferences on exchange {12) (19 (5) (n (28)
Charge for the year 88 57 21 66 232
Disposal of subsidianes - (13) - - {13)
Disposals (13) {38) (2} - (53)
At 31 March 2006 353 180 90 85 708
Net Bock Value at 31 March 2005 226 186 69 110 591
Net Book Value at 31 March 2006 232 175 75 444 926
* Acquisition intangibles represents trade marks and licences, trade names, customer relationships and completed technology
15 Property, plant and equipment Leasehold properties Assets
Freehold Long Short Plant & in course of
properties leasehold leasehold equipment  construction Total
JSEm usim Ussm Us$m Ussm us$m
Cost
At 1 Apnl 2006 397 13 684 2,159 54 3.307
Dsfferences on exchange 34 1 51 175 4 265
Addiuons through business combinations (note 30 (a)) 3 - - 1 - 4
Additions 13 3 32 181 - 229
Transfers between assets - - 22 - (22) -
Demerger of Home Retalt Group (note 30 (b)) (160) a7n (666) (1,907) (36) (2,786}
Disposals - - 8 (48) - (54)
At 31 March 2007 287 - 115 563 - 965
Depreciation
At 1 April 2006 60 4 318 1,255 - 1,637
Differences on exchange 3 - 29 100 - 132
Charge for year 8 i 26 178 - 213
Dernerger of Home Retall Group (note 30 (b)) {16) (5) (347) (1,119) - {1.487)
Disposals - - )] (42) - (49)
At 31 March 2007 55 - 19 372 - 446
Net Book Value at 33 March 2006 337 9 366 904 54 1,670
Net Book Value at 31 March 2007 232 - 96 191 - 519
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15 Property. plant and equipment {continued)

Leasehold properties Assets
Freehold Long Shart Plant & n course of
properties leasehold leasehold equipment  construction Total
Us$m Usim USssm usim Ussm ussm

Cost

At 1 Aprit 2005 564 3 778 2,467 62 3,874
Differences on exchange (25) - {44) (160} (3) (234)
Additions through business combinations - - - 14 - 14
Addrtions 55 5 93 331 23 505
Transfers between assets - 5 (16} T 24 (21}
Dispasal of subsidiaries {193) - (118) (295) (5) 611)
Disposals 4 - N {209) - {220)
At 31 March 2006 397 13 684 2,158 54 3,307
Depreciation

At 1 Apnl 2005 109 - 347 1,458 - 1,914
Differences on exchange (5) - (25) (95} - (125)
Transfers between assets - A ) - - (3
Charge for the year 13 - 34 266 - 313
Impairments - - 2 21 - 23
Disposal of subsidiaries (55} - (29) (193) - (277)
Disposals {2) - (4 (202) - {208}
At 31 March 2006 60 4 318 1,255 - 1,637
Net Book Value at 31 March 2005 455 3 431 1,008 62 1,960
Net Book Value at 31 March 2006 337 9 366 904 54 1,670

The Group leases plant and equipment under a number of finance lease agreements At the end of each of the leases the Group has the gption 10
purchase the equipment at a beneficial price The net book value of assets held under finance leases and capitalised n plant and equipment 1s
US$nil (2006 USE7m)

16 Investments In associates

2007 2006
uUssm usim

Cost
At 1 Apni 225 208
Additions 33 12
impasrment of trade or other recevabies - N
Share of profit after tax including a pre-tax exceptional gain of US$ t5m {note 7) 67 66
Dividends received 39} (50
Disposals - (4)
At 31 March 286 225

tnvestments In assaciates at 31 March 2007 include goodwall of US$219m (2006 US$186m) The Group’s share of cumulative reiained profus of
associated undertakings at 31 March 2007 15 US$127m (2006 US$99m)

The Group s principal interest in associated undertakings 1s & 20% holding of First Amencan Real Estate Solutions LLC {'FARES") a US partnership
There are no other material interests in associated underakings At 31 March 2007, the Group’s share of the assets of FARES amounted to
US$477m {2006 US$374m), and its share of labilities 15 US$200m (2006 US$155m) The Group's share of revenue for the year ended 31 March
2007 15 US$249m (2006 US$254m), and its share of profit after 1ax US$67m (2006 USIBEM)

First Amencan Corporation, which halds the balance of the capital of FARES, has the right to acquire from Expernan its (nterest in FARES, at a
purchase price pursuant to a specified formula based on the after tax earnings of FARES First American may only exerase this nght after Novernber
2008 Expenan can elect to delay completion of the transaction for a maximum period of 24 months following First Amenican Corporation giving
notice

The imparment of trade or other recevables of USS7m in the year ended 31 March 2006 related to A& GUS Financial Services NV an associated
undertaking of Home Retall Group
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17 Inventories

2007 2006

ussm Usim

Work In progress 2 P
Fished goods 2 1,536
4 1,538

Inventonies at 31 March 2007 are stated net of impairment provisions of US$nil (2006 US$197m} The impairment provision at 31 March 2006
related to inventories held by Home Retail Group

18 Trade and other receivables

Current Non-current Current Non-current
2007 2007 2006 2006
ussm USSm Ussm Ustm

Trade recelvables
Instalment recewvables - - 618 58
Other trade recewvables 574 - 641 7
Total trade recevables 574 - 1,259 65
Amounts owed by associates 3 - 2 -
VAT recoverable 1 - 17 -
Deferred consideration recevable - - 244 -
Other prepayments and accrued Income 216 1 308 24
794 11 1,830 89

Current trade recevables are stated net of provisions of US$30m {2006 US$187m, of which US$162m related to Home Retad Group) Non-Current
trade recewvables are stated net of provistons of USSnil (2006 US$9m, which wholly related to Home Retail Group)

Instalment recewables at 31 March 2006 were n respect of Home Retail Group and 1the effective interest rate thereon for that year was 7 7%

The deferred consideration sn respect of the disposal of the home shopping and Reality busmesses was recewed in full in Apnl 2006 from March UK
umited Interest tncome of US$1m (2006 US$14m) arose in the year in respect of this consideration

The analysts of the maturity prafile for financial assets included within non-current 1tems Is given in note 26

19 Cash and cash equivalents

2007 2006
ussm Ussim
Cash at bank and in hand 364 233
Short-term [nvestrments 543 152
907 385

The effective interest rate for cash and cash equivalents at 31 March 2007 15 4 4% (2006 2 7%)

20 Trade and other payables

Current Non-current Current Non-current
2007 2007 2006 2006
Ussm USSm Ussm Ussm
Trade creditors 183 - 80° -
VAT and other taxes payable 42 - 125 -
Social secunty ¢osts 75 - 75 -
Accruals 653 17 1,156 64
Other creditors 68 35 256 80
1,031 52 2,421 144

The analysis of the matusity profile for financial habibiies ncluded within non-current 1tems 1S given I Note 26
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21 Loans and borrowings

Current  Non-turrent Current  Non-current

2007 2007 2006 2006

Ussm ussm ussm Ussm

€548m 4 125% Euronotes 2067 751 - - 688
£350m 6 375% Eurobonds 2009 - 721 - 620
£334m 5 625% Euronotes 2013 - 627 - 595
Perpetual Securities {issued by Hame Retail Group) - - - 386
Bank loans - - 50 1,308
Overdrafis 273 - 245 -
1,024 1,348 295 3597

Prasent value of obligations under finance leases 1 - 8 2
1,025 1,348 303 3599

Durning the year ended 31 March 2007, 4 125% Euronotes 2007 with a national value of €20m and 5 625% Euronotes 2013 wath a notional value
of £16m were redeemed

The effective Interest rate of Euronotes and Evrobonds approximates to the nomina! rate indicated above The effectve interest rate of the Perpetual
Secunities 15 4 6% (2006 4 6%) The effective interest rate for overdrafts at 31 March 2007 1s 4 3% (2006 4 9%) and for bank loans at 31 March
2006 was 3 9%

All the borrowings of the Group shown above are unsecured Finance lease obhgations are effeciively secured as the rights to the leased assets
revert 10 the jessor in the event of default

The analysis of the matunity profile for non-current iiems 15 given in note 26

2007 2006
The mimimum lease payments payable under finance leases comprise UsSsm ussm
Not later than one year 1 8
Later than one year and not later than five years - 2
Total mimimum lease payments 1 10
Future finance charges on finance leases - -
Present value of finance leases {as shown above) 1 10
The present vatue of finance ieases consists of
Not later than one year 1 8
Later than one year and not later than five years - pd
Total present value 1 10

On 12 july 2006, GUS pic entered into a 5-year mult-currency revolving credit facility of U5$2,450m On 17 November 2006, Expenian Group Limited
acceded to this faciity as a borrower and a guarantor At the balance sheet date there were no drawings made under this facility

At 31 March 2007, the Group had undrawn cormitted borrowing facilities of U$$2,450m (2006 Us$923m) of which US$nil {2006 US$174m)
expires within one year of the balance sheet date and US32,450m (2006 1US$749m) expires more than two years after the balance sheet date These
facilities are 1n place for general corporate purposes inciuding the financing of acquisiions

22 Analysis of net debt - non-GAAP measure

2007 2006
ussm Ustm
Cash and cash equivalents (net of overdrafts} 634 139
Dernvatives hedging loans and borrowings (6) 81
Debt due within one year (729) {49)
Finance leases m (10)
Debt due after more than one year {1.306) (3 598}
Net debt at the end of the financal year (1,408) (3,437)
Continuing operauons (1.408) (3,277)
Discontinued operations - (160)
Net debt at the end of the financial year {1,408} (3.437)
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23 Provisions

Home Retail

Restructuring Group
provision provisions Total
Ustm Ussm ussm
At 1 Apnl 2006 - 155 155
Differences on exchange 2 12 14
Amount charged in the year 37 12 49
Utlised - (7 7
Impact of discount rate movement - 2 2
Dernerger of Home Retail Group {note 30 (b)) - (174) (174)
At 31 March 2007 39 - 39
Disclosed within MNon-current liabilives 30 - 30
Disclosed wathin Current habilities 9 - 9
At 31 March 2007 39 - 39

Home Retall

Group
provisions Total
UsS$m usS$m
At 1 Apni 2005 167 167
Differences an exchange (14) (18}
Amount charged n the year 24 24
Utised {24) (24)
impact of discount rate movement 2 2
At 31 March 2006 155 155
Disclosed wathin Non-current liabilities - -
Disclosed within Current liabilities 155 155
At 31 March 2006 155 155

The restructuring prowision at 31 March 2007, disclosed within current tabiliies, included the full cast of the restructuning cost of UK Marketng
solutions, which 15 expected 1o be utilised 1n the year ended 31 March 2008 The restruciunng provision at 31 March 2007 of US$30m disciosed
within non-current hiabiliies comprised the anticipated future costs of the withdrawat by Expenan from large scale credit card and loan account
processing In the UK, in respect of which there was a charge of US$28m in the year This provision comprises the estimated costs of redundancy
and certain contractual obligations in respect of this business and has been determined by reference to projections of the timing of withdrawal It 15
antiopated that this portion of the provision will be uulised n the periad from 1 Apnl 2008 to 31 March 201G There was no restructuning provision
at 31 March 2006 and no movements thereon 1n the year then ended

Fair values of provisions do not matenally differ from the recognised book values

24 Retirement benefit assets/obhgations

{a) Defined Benefit Schemes
The Group operates pensicn plans in a number of countries around the world and provides post-retirement healthcare insurance benefits to certain
former employees

The Group has both defined benefit and defined contnbution plans A defined benefit plan 1s a pension plan that defines an amount of pensicn
benefit that an employee will receive on retrement, usually dependent on one or more factors such as age, years of service and compensation A
defined contnbution plan 1s 2 pension plan that defines the amount of contributions that are paid by the Group into an independently
administered fund

Pension arrangements for the Group's UK employees are pperated prinapally through the Experian Pension Scheme {formerly the "GUS Pension
Scheme') which 1s a defined benefit scheme and the Expenian Money purchase Pension Plan (formerly the ‘GUS Maoney Purchase Pension Plan’)
which 1s a defined contrbution scheme In North Amernica benefits are determined in accordance with Yocal practice and regulations and funding
provided accordingly There are no other material pension arrangements
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24 Retirement benefit assets/obligations (conttnued}

(@} Defined Benefit S5chemes {continued)
The Expenian Penston Scheme has ules which specify the benefits to be paid and 15 financed accordingly with assets being held i independently
administered funds A full actuanal funding valuation of thrs scheme 15 carried out every three years wath interim reviews in the intervening years

The latest full actuarial funding valuation of the scheme was carned out as at 31 March 2004 by independent, qualiied actuanes, Watson Wyatt
Limited, vsing the projecied unit credit method  Under this method of valuation the current service cost will increase as members approach
retrement due to the ageing active membership of the scheme

Following the demerger of Home Retail Group the Argos Pension Scheme, which 1s a defined benefit scheme for Home Retall Group employees,
continued 10 be operated by that business On demerger the pension nghts of certain Home Retall Group employees who had been members of
the then GUS Pension Scheme were transferred to the Argos Pension Scheme Certain Home Retall Group employees who had been members of
the then GUS Money Purchase Plan will be transferred to the Home Retall Group Stakeholder Pension Plan in due course

Following changes intraduced by the Finance Act 2004 which took effect from 6 April 2006 {A-Day), the Expenan Pension Scheme, being the
principal defined benefit pension scheme, implemented revised terms for members exchanging pension at retirement date for a tax-free lump sum
The impact of the consequent update tn assumptions reduced the charge to the Group Income siatement far the year ended 31 March 2007 by
US$2m and Increased the actual gain recognised in the Group siatement of recognised INCome ar expense by US36m

Assets and liabiliies of overseas schemes have been transierred through the purchase of annurtigs for all habilities of the plans

{) The amounts recognised in the Group balance sheet are determined as follows

UK Overseas Total

2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006

UsSm Usim USsm Ussm UsSsSm Usim
Market value of schemes assets 1,069 1,952 - 68 1,069 2,020
Present value of funded schemes’ liabibes (928) {1,852) - (68) (928) (1,920
Surplus in the funded schemes "1 100 - - 141 100
Present value of unfunded pension arrangements 37 (42) - {6) (37} 48
Liabulity for post-retirernent healthcare (19) (19) - (2) {19) (21)
Retirement benefit asset/(iability) recogmsed n the

Group balance sheet 85 39 - 8 85 3

Dunng the year ended 31 March 2006 the Group put m place arrangements to secure unfunded pensicn benefit arrangements atready 1n piace for
certan directors and senior managers by granting charges to an ndependent trustee over independently managed portfolios of marketable
secunties owned by the Group The amount of assets charged in this way will be adjusted annually to keep the rauo of assets charged to the
discounted value of the accrued benefits secured in this way as close as possible to the corresponding ratio In the Group’s registered pension
schemes The total value of the assets charged in this way at 31 March 2007 was US529m (2006 US$28m) Further details of the unfunded
pension arrangements for directors appear in the repart on directors’ remuneration on page 57

(1) The amounts recogrused 1 the Group profit and loss account reserve were as follows

Qverseas Total
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
us$m ussm Ussm ussim ussm UsSsim

Current service cost s3 65 - 5 53 70
Curtatlment gatn (6) - - - {6} -
interest on schemes’ liatnlities 78 88 - 3 78 g1
Expected return on schemes’ assets {107) {100) - (3 (107) {103}
Total charge to Group income statement 18 53 - 5 18 58
Actuanal {gamMloss recognised 0 the Group statement

of recogmsed income and expense (65) (a4} - 31 65 (i3)
Other charge 1o profit and loss account reserve in respect

of the Argos Pension Scheme 41 - - - 41 -
Total {credit¥charge to Group profit and loss account reserve  (6) 9 - 36 (6) 45

The charge to Group iIncome statement includes US$17m (2006 US341m) in respect of discontinued operauons The charge to profit and foss account

reserve In respect of the Argos Pension Scheme forms part of the dividend in specie on the d

emerger of Home Retall Group

The curtalment gam anses from the restructunng of the UK Account Processing and the UK Marketing Solutions busiresses, as well as the cessation of

certain corpofate funcuons in GUS plc
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24 Retirement benefit assets/obligations {continued)

(a) Defined Benefit Schemes (continued)

{n) The movements curing the year in the retirement benefit asset recogrused in the Group balance sheet were as faliows

Overseas Total
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
ussm UsSm ussm Ussm Ussm US3m
At 1 Apnil 39 (130} (8) (2n N {211
Reclassification of obhigation (8) - 8 - - -
Cther charge to profit and loss account reserve
in respect of the Argos Penstan Scheme 41) - - - (41) -
Liabilites disposed with the sale of overseas businesses - - - 45 - 45
Differences on exchange 10 2} - 1 10 10
Tetal amounts recegnised in the Group income statement
- as disclosed above (18) (53) - (5) {18) (58)
Actuanial gainv(toss) recognised in the Group statement of
recogmsed tncome and expense 65 a4 - (31) 65 13
Contnizutions patd by the Group 38 228 - 3 38 232
At 31 March -1 39 - 8 85 3
(v} The expense 15 recognised in the following line items in the Group income statement
2007 2006
USsm USsm
Administrative costs (after exceptional income of US$4m (2006 US$nul)} 17 26
Net financing income (16) )]
Continuing operations 1 17
Discontinued operations 17 41
Total charge to Group income statement 18 58
(v) Actuanal gains and losses recognised in the Group statement of recogrised income and expense are as follows
2007 2006
Ussm Uussm
Gainflloss) on habitities 75 (80)
{Lossygain on assets (3) 109
Continuing operations 72 29
Discontinued operations (7) (16)
Total gain inciuded 1n Group statement of recognised Income and expense 1n yaar 65 13
Cumulatve actuanal gainflioss) included in Group statement of recogmised income and expense comprises
2007 2006
Ussm Ussm
Continuing operations 127 55
Discontinued operations (81) (74)
Total cumulauive actuanal gain/loss) induded m Group statement of recognised income and expense 46 {19)
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24 Retirement benefit assets/obligations (continued)

{a} Defined Benefit Schemes (continued)
{w) Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows

2007 2006

UsSSm Ussm
Openmg defined benefit cbligation 1,989 2,026
Demerger of Home Retall Group (1.100) -
Pensicn lability disposed with the sale of overseas businesses - (240
Current service cost 53 70
Interest cost 78 91
Settlement or curtailment 9) (@)
Contributions paid by employees 14 16
Contributions paid from outside the Group 2 -
Actuanal {gain)loss on habihiuies (118) 228
Benefits paid (123) (48)
Exchange differences 198 {150)
Closing defined benefit obligatien 984 1,885
The total defined benefit obiigation of US$884m (2006 US$1,989m) Includes US$528m (2006 US$1,920m) in respect of the Group’s funded
arrangements and US$56m (2006 US$69m) in respect of the Group’s unfunded arrangements
(v} Changes in the market value of the plan assets are as follows

2007 2006

uUssm Usim
Opening market value of plan assets 2,020 1,814
Demerger of Home Retail Group (1.1a1) -
Pension assets disposed with the sale of overseas businesses - {195)
Expected return 107 105
Settlement or curtalment (3) &)
Actuanial (lossygamn on assets {53) 241
Contributions paid by the Group 38 232
Contributions paid by employees 14 16
Contributions paid from outside the Group 2 -
Benefits paid (123} 48}
Exchange differences 208 (141}
Closing market value of plan assets 1,069 2,020

The actual return on plan assets was US$54m (2006 US$346m;)

Contnbutions in the year ended 31 March 2006 included a special contribution of US$179m paid nto the Argos Pension Scheme in March 2006

The esurnated amount of contributions expected to be paid to the Expenan pension schemes during the next financial year 1s US$19m by the Group

andd US57m by employees
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24 Retirement benefit assets/obligations (continued)

(3) Defined Benefit Schemes (continued)

{vi) The valuations used for IAS 19 have been based on the mast recent actuarial funding valuations and have been updated by Watson Wyatt
Limited to take account of the requirements of 1AS 19 1n order to assess the habihities of the scheme at 31 March 2007 The prinaipal actuanal
assumptions used to calculate the present value of the defined benefit obligations were as follows

UK schemes 2007 2006
% %

Rate of inflation 31 29
Rate of increase for salaries 49 47
Rate of increase for pensions in payment and deferred pensions 31 29
Rate of increase for medical costs 65 65
Discount rate 54 49
Qverseas schemes 2006
%

Rate of inflation 27
Rate af increase for salares n/a
Rate of Increase far pensions in payment and deferred pensions -
Rate of increase for medical costs 115
Discount rate 51

The main financial assumption is the real discount rate, 1 e the excess of the discaunt rate over the rate of inflation If this assumption
increased/decreased by 0 1%, the UK defined benefit obhgation would decreasefincrease by approximately US$17m and the annua! UK current
service cost would decrease/increase by approximately US$1m The discount rate 1s based on the market yields on figh quahty corporate bonds of
eguivalent currency and term to the defined benefit oblgations

The IAS 19 valuation assumes that mortality will be mn line with current standard tables for males and femaies as used at the last actuanal valuation
An allowance 15 also made for anticpated future improvernents in ife expectancy, by assuming that the probabiiity of death occurning at each age

will decrease by 0 25% each year If this assumption decreased by a further G 25% per annum then the defined benefit obligation would increase

by US$40m and the annual UK current service cost would increase by approximately US$3m

Overall, the average expectation of life on retrement in normal health s assurned to be
— 19 1 years at age 65 for a male currently aged 65

- 22 2 years at age 65 for a female currently aged 65

— 19 8 years at age 65 for a male currently aged 50

- 231 years at age 65 for a female currently aged 50

The assumptions in respect of discount rate, salary increases and mortality all have a significant effect on the 1AS 18 accounting valuatian Changes
10 these assumptions in the light of prevailing conditions may have a significant impact on future vaiuations

The IAS 19 valuation, In respect of post-retirement healthcare insurance benefits provided to certain former Group employees, additicnally assurmes
a rate of increase for medical costs If thus assumption increased/decreased by 1 0% per annum then the obhgation would inCrease/decrease by
US$2m and the annual UK current service cost would remam unchanged
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24 Retirement benefit assets/obhigations {continued)

{a) Defined Benefit Schemes (continued)

() The assets of the Group's defined benefit schemes and the expected rates of return are summarised as follows

UK QOverseas UK Qverseas
Expected Expected Expected Expected
{ong-term long-term long-term long-term
rate of rate of rate of rate of
Fair value return Fair value return Fair value return Fair value return
2007 2007 2007 2007 2006 2006 2006 2006
usSm %pa Ussm %p a Ussm %p a Ussm %p a
Market value of schemes’ assets
Equities 733 81 - nfa 1,351 79 - n‘a
Fixed interest secuntes 336 54 - n/a 578 45 - n/a
Other - n/a - n/a 23 37 68 50
1,069 73 - nfa 1,952 68 68 50

The expected return on plan assets has been determined by considenng the mix of returns anticipated on the assets held In accordance with the
cusrent investment poiicy Expected yields on fixed interest investments and securities are based on gross redemption yields as at the balance sheet
date Expected returns on equity and other investments reflect the long-term real rates of return expenenced in the respective markets

(x} Hstory of experience gains and losses

2007 2006 2005
ussm Ussm usim
Present value of defined benefit cbhigation (934) {1,989) {2,025)
Fair value of scheme assets 1,069 2,020 1814
Net pension asset/obligation) 85 3 (211)
2007 2006 2005

Experience adjustment arising an defined benefit obligation
Amount — (Gainyloss (US$m} (119} 228 33
Percentage of the present value of defined benefit obiigation 125% i12% 17%

Expenence adjustment anising on scheme assets

Amount - Lossf(gain} (US$m} 53 (241) -
Percentage of scheme assets 51% 11 6% -

(b} Defined Contribution Schemes

The pension cost Tepresents contnbutions payable by the Group 0 such schemes and amounted to US$33m (2006 US327m)
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25 Other financal assets and habilities

Current  Non-current Current Non-current
2007 2007 2006 2006
Other financial assets ussm UsSm usim UStm
Denvative finanaal instruments
Cash flow hedge — foreign exchange contracts - - 3 -
Fair value hedge of borrowings — mterest rate swaps - 20 - 38
Fair value hedge of borrowings — cross currency swaps 29 - - 47
Non-hetdging dernvatives — equity swaps - - 4 3
Non-hedging dervatives — interest rate swaps 3 16 3 33
Non-hedging dervatives — foreign exchange contracts 21 - - -
53 36 10 124
Available for sale assets
Listed - 38 - 37
Total other financial assets 53 74 10 158
Current Non-current Current Non-current
2007 2007 2006 2006
Other financial habilities ussm ussm Us$m Ussm
Denvative financial instruments
Fair value hedge of borrowings — interest rate swaps - 40 - 12
Net investment hedge — foreign exchange contracts - - 23 -
Non-hedging denvatives — foreign exchange contracts - - 10 -
Non-hedging derwatives — interest rate swaps - - 4 2
Total other finanaal habilities - 40 37 14

The cash flow hedges refated to the hedging of foreign currency exposures of fusure purchases of inventory by Home Retall Group The hedged
cash fiows were expected 1o occur up 1o one year in the future and were transferred to the Group income staternent or inventory carrying values

as applicable

The farr value of foreign currency contracts 1s based on a comparison of the contractual and year end exchange rates The fair values of other
dervative financal instruments are estimated by discounting the future cash flows 1o net present values using appropriate market rates prevaling at

the year end
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26 Fmnancal instruments

{a) Fair values of financial assets and habilities
Set out below 1s a companson of carrying values and fair values of the Group's fimancial instruments

Carrying Fair Carrying Far

value value value value

2007 2007 2006 2006

ussm UsSm Usim LSSm

Trade and other recenables! 660 660 1,611 1,611

Qther financal assets 127 127 168 168

Cash and cash equivalents €07 907 385 385

Finanaal assets 1,694 1,694 2,164 2,164
Loans and Borrowings

€548m 4 125% Euronotes 2007 751 751 688 690

£350m 6 375% Eurcbonds 2009 721 722 620 622

£334m 5 625% Euronotes 2013 627 630 595 589

Perpetual Secunties - - 386 390

Bank loans - - 1,358 1,358

Overdrafts 273 273 245 245

2,372 2,376 3,892 3,804

Other financial liabilities 40 40 51 51

Trade and other payables? 766 766 2,134 2,134

Financial habilrties 3,178 3,182 6,077 6,089

1 VAT recoverable of US§1m {2006 US$17m} and prepayments of US$144m (2006 U$$291m) are excluded from this analysis

2 VAT and other tax payable of US342m (2006 US$125m), social security costs of US575m (2006 US$75m) and accruals of US§200m

{2006 US$231m} are excluded from this analysis
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26 Finanaal instruments (continued)

{b) Additional information on financial assets
The matunty profiles of financial assets are as follows

Less than 1-2 2-3 3-4 4-5 Over 5
1 year years years years years years Total
At 31 March 2007 Usim Usim UStm Ussm ussm Uss$m Ussm
Trade and other recevables? 660 - - - - - 660
Other financial assets 53 g 23 - 38 127
Cash and cash equivalents 907 - - - - - 907
1,620 9 23 4 - 38 1,694
Less than 1-2 2-3 3-4 4-5 Over 5

1 year years years years years years Total
At 31 March 2006 US$m Usim ustm ussm Ussm ussm us$m
Trade and other recevablest 1,546 40 19 5 - 1 1.611
Other financial assets 10 57 14 42 g 36 168
Cash and cash equivalents 385 - - - - - 385
1,941 97 33 47 9 37 2,164

1 VAT recoverable of US$1m (2006 US$17m) and prepayments of US$144m (2006 US3291m) are excluded from this analysis
Analysed by currency 2007 2006
ussm ussm
Steriing 955 1,415
US Dollar 331 315
Euro 364 362
Other 44 42
1,694 2,164
Analysed by interest rate profile 2007 2006
ussm Ussm
Fioating 775 387
Fixed 221 517
Nor-interest bearing 698 1,260
1,694 2164
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26 Finanaal instruments (continued)

(¢} Additional information on financial habilities
(1) The contractual repncing dates of habilities exposed to interest rate nisk are as follows

Less than 1-2 2-3 3-4 4-5 Over 5
1 year years years years years years Total
At 31 March 2007 ussm ustm Usim UStm Ussm USim ussm
Loans and Borrowings
€548m 4 125% Euronotes 2007 751 - - - - - 751
£350m 6 375% Eurobonds 2009 - - 721 - - - 21
£334m 5 625% Euronotes 2013 - - - - - 627 627
Overdrafts 273 - - - - - 273
Effect of interest rate swaps? 130 408 (272) 390 - {656} -
Other finanaal habihities 40 - - - - - 40
Trade and other payables! 714 46 3 1 1 1 766
1,908 454 452 391 1 (28) 3,178
Less than 1-2 2-3 3-4 4-5 Over 5
1 year years years years years years Total
At 31 March 2006 uSsm Ussm usim USSm Usim Ussm ussm
Loans and Borrowings
€568m 4 125% Euronotes 2007 - 688 - - - - 688
£350m 6 375% Eurobonds 2009 - - - 620 - - 620
£350m 5 625% Eurcnotes 2013 - - - - - 595 595
Perpetual Securities - 386 - - - - 386
Bank loans 1,358 - - - - - 1,358
Overdrafts 245 - - - - - 245
Effect of interest rate swaps? 825 (762} 485 (240) Pzl (609) -
Other financial labilities 37 2 - - - i2 g1
Trade and other payables’ 2,038 55 30 - 3 8 2,134
4,503 369 525 380 294 6 6,077

1 VAT and other tax payable of US$42m (2006 US$125m), social secunty ¢osts of US$75m (2006 US$75m) and accruals of US$200m
(2006 US$231m) are excluded from this analysis

2 These represent the gross notional values of interest rate swaps
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26 Finanaal instruments (continued)

{0 Additional information on financial habilities {continued)}
() Analysis of financial iiabiities by currency

Sterling Us Dollar Eurc Other Total
At 31 March 2007 uUssm ussm Usgm Usim Ussm
Loans and Borrowings
€548m 4 125% Euronotes 2007 - - 751 - 751
£350m 6 375% Eurcbonds 2009 721 - - - 721
£334m 5 625% Euronotes 2013 627 - - - 627
Cverdrafts 4 - 269 - 273
Effect of forward foreign exchange contracts and cross currency swaps? {1,065) 1,513 (516} 68 -
Cther financial iiabtlities 40 - - - a0
Trade and other payables! 207 409 120 30 766
534 1,922 624 98 3,178
Sterling UsS Dollar Euro QOther Total
At 31 March 2006 USim Ussm ustm UStm ussm
Loans and Borrowings
€568m 4 125% Euronotes 2007 - - 688 - 688
£350m 6 375% Eurobonds 2009 620 - - - 620
£350m 5 625% Euronotes 2013 595 - - - 595
Perpetual Securities 386 - - - 386
Bank loans 696 662 - - 1,358
QOverdrafts - - 245 - 245
Effect of cross currency swaps? (947) 755 122 70 -
Other financial labilities 51 - - - 51
Trade and other payables! 1,552 454 108 20 2,134
2,953 1,871 1,163 S0 6,077
1 VAT and other tax payable of US$42m (2006 US$125m), social secunty costs of US$75m {2006 J5$75m) and accruals of US$200m
{2006 US$231m) are excluded from this analysis
2 These represent the gross notional values of cross currency swaps and foreign exchange contracts if applicable
) Analysis of financial habiiities by interest rate profile
Nen-interest
Floating Fixed bearing Total
At 31 March 2007 Ussm ussm US$m UJSSm
Loans and borrowings 1,024 1,348 - 2,372
Effect of interest rate swaps! 130 (130} - -
Other 40 - 766 806
1,194 1,218 766 3,178
Non-interest
Floating Fixed beanng Total
At 31 March 2006 usim Ussm Usgm uUssm
Loans and borrowings 1,603 2,288 - 3,892
Effect of interest rate swaps? 825 {825) - -
Other 13 122 2 050 2,185
2,441 1,586 2 050 6,077
1 These represent the gross nouonal vaiue of interest rate swaps
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26 Finanaal instruments (continued)

{0 Additional information on finanaal Lakilities {continued}
(v} Analysis of financial habtlises by matunty profile

Less than 1-2 2-13 3-4 4-5 Over 5

1 year years years years years years Total
At 31 March 2007 Ussm ussm Usim Ussm UsS$m usim ussm
Loans and Borrowings 1,024 - 721 - - 627 2,372
Other financial habiities - - - - - 40 40
Trade and other payables! 4 46 3 1 i 1 766

1,738 a6 724 i i 668 3,178

Less than 1-2 2-3 3-4 4-5 Qver 5

1 year years years years years years Total
At 31 March 2006 ussm ussm usim usim UStm ussm ussm
Loans and Borrowings 295 1,736 646 620 - 595 3,892
Other financial habkhyes 37 2 - - - 12 51
Trade and other payables! 2,038 55 30 - 3 8 2,134

2,370 1,793 676 620 3 615 6,077
1 VAT and other tax payabte of US$42m (2006 US3125m), social secunty Costs of U5$75m (2006 US$75m} and accruals of US$200m

{2006 US3231m) are excluded from this analysis
27 Deferred tax
2007 2006
ussm ussm

The movements on the net deferred tax account are a5 follows
Net deferred tax assets at 1 April 197 335
Differences on exchange - 22
Income Statement charge {note 9) {including US$5m (2006 US368m) relating 1o discontinued operations) {54) (109)
Acquisitton of subsidiaries (2) (39)
Demerger of Home Retall Group (note 30(b)} (89) -
Disposal of subsidiaries - (7}
Tax (charged)/credited (o equity {18} g
Transiers 1 25
QOther movements - 5
Net deferred tax assets at 31 March 35 197
The net deferred tax asset has been presented in the Group balance sheet as follows
Deferred tax asset 103 547
Deferred tax habilities {68} (350)
Net deferred tax assets at 31 March 35 197
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27 Deferred tax (continued)

The movement in gross deferred tax assets and habilities during the year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of balances within the

same tax Junisdiction is as follows

(a) Deferred tax assets

Share option Other
Acceierated and award Asset temgporary
deprecation  Intangibles schemes provisions Tax losses  differences Total
Ussm Ussm ussm usim Ussm Usim ussm
At 1 Apnl 2006 6 164 42 S0 33 212 547
Differences on exchange - - 4 9 1 12 26
Income staternent charge (1 (36) {6) 8 (31) 24 {42)
Acquisition of subsidianes - - ~ - 5 - 5
Demerger of Home Retail Group (note 30(b)) (2) - (17) (79} - {113) 211}
Transfers - - - - - (24) (24)
Tax credited/(charged) to equity - - 3) - - 6 3
Other movements - - - 2) - 2 -
At 31 March 2007 3 128 20 26 8 119 304
{b} Deferred tax habilities
Share opten Other
Property  Accelerated and award Asset temporary
valuattons depreciation  Intangibles schemes provisions Tax iosses  differences Total
ussm Usim US$m USsm ussm USsm Ussm Ussm
At 1 April 2006 52 64 62 1 - 6 165 350
Differences on exchange 5 4 8 - - 1 8 26
Income statement charge - 2 {6} - - (2) 18 12
Acquisition of subsidianies - 7 - - - - 7
Demerger of Home Retail Group
(note 30(b)) {52) (36) {1 - - - (33 (122}
Transfers - - - - - - (25} (25)
Tax charged to equity - - - - - - 21 21
At 31 March 2007 5 34 70 1 - 5 154 269

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax lass carry-forwards and other temporary differences to the extent that the realisation of the related tax
benefit through future taxable profits 1s probable

The Group did not recogrise deferred tax assets of US319m (2006 US$9m including US33m relating to discontinued operations) in respect of losses
that can be carned forward against future taxable iIncome In addition the Group did not recognise deferred tax assets of U5$22m (2006 US$78m
including US$55m relating to discontinued operations) in respect of capital losses that can be carried forward against future taxable gains These

losses are available indefinitely

Deferred tax habiities of US32 187m (2006 US32,034m inciuding US$10m relating to discontinued operations) have nat been recognised for the
withholding tax and other taxes that would be payable on the unremitted earmings of certain subsichanes As the earnings are cantinually reinvested
by the Group no tax s expected to be payable on them in the foreseeable future

At the balance sheet date there were deferred tax assets recoverable within the next twelve months of US$120m (2006 ©53110m) and deferred
tax liabiities payable within the next twelve months of US$10m (2006 US$7m)
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28 Reconciliation of movements in equity

On 10 October 2006, the separation of Experian and Home Retail Group was completed by way of demerger As part of the demerger, Experian
Group Limited became the ultimate holding company of GUS plc and ralated subsidianies and shares in GUS plc ceased ta be listed on the Landon
Stock Exchange on 6 October 2006 Trading of shares in Experian on the London Stack Exchange cormmenced on 11 October 2006

As indicated in note 2, this transaction has been accounted for in these financial statements using the principles of merger accounting The
distribution to GUS ple shareholders of shares ;n Home Retasl Group plc has been accounted for as a dwidend In specie In these financial
statements In accordance with the requirements of merger accounting, the norminal values of the 1ssued share capital at 1 Apni 2005 and
subsequent movements to the date of demerger have been amended o reflect the capital structure of Expenan Group bimited These movements
include the recogmition of a share premium balance 1n Expenan Group Limiteti on a reorgamsation prior to the demerger and the subsequent
reduction of share capital and the transfer of the associated share prermium account to retained earnings

on 11 October 2006, the Group raised U5$1,441m, net of US$43m expenses, by way of a share offer The asscciated share premium account 1s not
avallable for distnbution

Full detatls refating 10 the authorised and 1ssued share capnal of Experian Group Limited are contamed in note J to the parent company financial
statements Share capital has been translated at the fistonc exchange rate on the date of the transaction Since the balance sheet date, 29,605
Ordinary shares in the Company have Deen 1ssued 1n connectson with the exercise of share oplions

The dividend In specie of US$S,627m in the year ended 3% March 2007 refating to the demerger of Home Retall Group represents the net assets
of Home Retall Group as at the date of the demerger and an analysis of the net assets 1s given in note 30(b) The dividend in specie in the year
ended 31 March 2006 related to the demerger of Burberry and represented the GUS plc Group's share of its net assets

In connection with the demerger of Burberry and at an Extraordinary General Meeting on 13 December 2005, the shareholders of GUS plc approved
a consolidation of GUS shares, replacing 1,023m Ordinary shares of 25p each with 880m Ordinary shares of 29 3/43p each The share consolidation
was designed to keep the GUS share price at approximately the same level, subject to normal market movements, before and after the demerger of
the Group's remaining interest in Burberry Group plc For every 1,000 Ordinary shares of 25p each held immediately pnor 1o the demerger,
sharehiolders received 305 Ordinary shares of D D5p each in Burberry Group plc and 860 Crdinary shares of 29 3/43p each in GUS plc The
associated reduction in the number of sharas in GUS pl¢ has been shown as a deduction from the number at 1 April 2005 in the following tables

There are no significant statutory, contractual or exchange controt restnctions on distributions by Group undertakings

Attributable Equity
Number Share Share Retained Other to equrty minority Total
of shares capnal premiusm earnings reserves holders interests equity
Year ended 31 March 2007 m yssm Us$m UsSsm Usim ussm Ussm Ussm
Balance at 1 Apnl 2006 8792 88 16,256 5,683 (16,575) 5,452 2 5,454
Profit for the financial year - - - 462 ~ 462 1 463
Net income recognised directly
in equity for the financial year - - - 132 469 601 - 601
Share 15sues pre demerger of
Home Retait Group 71 1 75 - ~ 76 - 76
Canceliation of treasury shares
pre demerger of Home Retall Group (89) (1} {178) - 179 - - -
Capital reduction - - (16,153} 16,153 - - - -
Share 1ssues by way of Global Offer 1429 14 1,427 - - 1,421 - 1,441
Employee share option schemes
— value of employee servces - - - 109 - 109 - 109
— praceeds from shares 1ssued 20 - 8 - - 8 - 8
Exeraise of share opuons - - - {70 129 59 - 59
Purchase of ESOP shares - - - - {75) (75) - (75)
Rehnguishment of Home Retail Group
shares to employees and
Home Retall Group - - - {100} 106 - - -
Equity dividends paid dunng
the year (note 117) - - - {401) - (401) - (401)
Dividend 1n specie relating 1o
the demerger of Home Retail Group
(note 11) - - - (5,627) - {5.627) - (5,627)
Dmwdends paid to minority
sharehotders - - - - - - (M {n
Balance at 31 March 2007 1,0223 102 1,435 16,241 (15,773} 2,105 2 2,107
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28 Reconcliatron of movements in equity {(continued)

Attnbutable Equity
Number Share Share Retained COther to equity mMINority Total
of shares capital premium earnings reserves holders Interests equity
Year ended 31 March 2006 m Usim Usim usim US3m ussm Uss$m USSm
Balances in GUS plc Group at
1 April 2005 8744 478 130 5,610 (445) 5,773 486 6,259
Merger accounting adjustments
to refiect new company structure
Elimination of GUS plc capital - {478) (130) - - (608) - (608)
GUS plc shares shown at
Expenian Group Limited
nominal value - B7 16,203 - (15,682) 608 - 608
Balances in Expenan Group
Limited at 1 Apnl 2005 8744 87 16,203 5,610 (16,127} 5773 486 6,259
profit for the financial year - - - 1018 - 1,018 a6 1,064
Net income/(expense) recogrused directly
n equrty for the financial year - - - 10 (419) (409) (19) (428)
Employee share option schemes
- value of employee services - - - 63 - 63 - 63
- proceeds from shares 1ssued 48 1 53 - - 54 - 54
Decrease in minority interests
arising due to corporate
transacticns - - - - - - (495) (495)
Purchase of ESOP shares - - - - {29) {29) - {29)
Equity dwvidends paid during the
year (note 11) - - - (508) - (508) - (508)
Dividend 1n specie relating to the
demerger of Burberry Group pic (note 11} - - - {513) - (513) - (513)
Dividends paid to minority shareholders - - - - - - (13) {13)
Other movements - - - 3 - 3 (3) -
Balance at 31 March 2006 8792 88 16,256 5,683 {16,575) 5,452 2 5,454
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28 Retonciliation of movements in equity (continued}

IThe anatysis of other reserves 15 as follows

Treasury Total
and ESOP Merger Hedging Translation other
shares reserve reserve reserve reserves
Year ended 31 March 2007 us$m Usim Usim Ussm ussm
At 1 Apnl 2006 (496) {15.682) 14 (411) {16,575}
Cancellation of treasury shares pre demerger of Home Retail Group 179 - - - 179
Exercise of share options 129 - - - 129
Purchase of ESOP shares (75} - - - (75)
Relinquishment of Home Retail Group shares 1o employees
and Home Retall Group 100 - - - 100
Net income recognised directly in equity for the financial year - - 4 465 469
Balance at 31 March 2007 (163} (15.682) 18 54 {15,773)
Year ended 31 March 2006
Balances i GUS plc Group at 1 Apni 2005 (467) - 18 4 {445}
Creation of merger reserve - (15,682) - - (15,682)
Balances in Expenian Group Limited at 1 April 2005 467) {15,682) 18 4 {16,127}
Purchase of ESOP shares (29) - - - (29)
Net expense recognisad deectly in equity for the financial year - - (4) (415) {419)
Balance at 31 March 2006 (496) {15,682) 14 (411) (16,575}

At 31 March 2007, the balance on the Treasury and ESOP shares reserve represents the cost of shares in the Company purchased by the GUS ESOP
Trust, the Expenan Group Limited Employee Share Trust and the Expenan UK Approved All-Employee Plan Trust to satisfy certam of the Group’s
obligations under 1ts share incentive plans During the year these trusts purchased 7,775,076 shares at a cost of US$75m

The merger reserve arose on the demerger m October 2006 and represents the difference between the share capital and share premium of GUS plc,
and the nominal valye of the share capnal of the Company before the global offer and subsequent share issues

Movements on the hedging reserve and the position at the balance sheet date reflect hedging transactions which are not charged ar credited to the
Group Income statement, net of related taxation

Mavements on the translation reserve and the position at the balance sheet date reflect foreign currency transiations since 1 Aprit 2004 which are
not charged or credited 10 the Group Income statement, net of related taxation
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29 Notes to the Group cash flow statement

2007 2006
ussm UsSsm
(a} Cash generated from operations
Profit after tax 326 458
Adjustments for
Tax expense 68 92
Share of post tax profits of associates [(74] (66)
Net financing costs 146 102
Operating profrt 473 586
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment 10 -
Depreciation and amortisation 303 270
Goodwill adjustment 14 -
Charge in respect of share incentive schemes 91 30
Exceptronal items included in working capital 46 7
Increase m inventories {1} -
Increase I recevables {(72) (36)
Increase 1n payables 82 12
Difference between pension contributions paid and amounts recogrised m the Group income statement {4) 5
Cash generated from operatiens 942 874
(b} Interest paid
interest paid on bonds, bank loans and overdrafts 133 179
Total interest paid 133 179
(&) Acquisition of subsidiaries
Purchase of subsidiary undertakings (note 30(a}) (82) (1,384)
Net cash acquired with subsidiary undertakings (note 30(a)) 3 -
Deferred consideration settled on acquisitions made In previous perods (a4) (36)
Net cash outflow for acauisition of subsidiaries {118) (1,420)
{d) Disposal of subsidianes
Proceeds of disposal of shares in Burberry - 9
Proceeds of disposal of Wehkamp - 384
Proceeds of disposal of shares in Lewis - 250
Receipt of deferred consideration 1n respect of home shopping and Reality 258 -
Cash inflow from disposal of subsidiaries 258 643
{e) Financing
Debt due within one year
Repayment of borrowings (42) (63)
Debt due after more than one year
Repayment of borrowings (1.381) -
New borrowings - 647
Net cash fiow from debt financing {1,423) 584
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29 Notes to the Group cash flow statement (continued)

2007 2006
ussm Usim
(i Analysis of cash and cash equivalents
Cash at bank and in hand 798 293
Short-term investments 109 92
Cash and cash equivalents per Group balance sheet 907 385
QOverdrafts (273) {246)
Cash and cash equivalents per Group cash flow statement 634 139
Analysed as
Cash and cash equivalents — continuing operatons 634 (89)
Cash and cash equivalents — discontinued operations - 228
Cash and cash equivalents per Group cash flow statement 634 i39

{g) Major non-cash transactions
The Group did not enter into any new finance lease arrangements during the year (2006 USS$nif)

30 Acquisitions and demerger of Home Retail Group

(a) Acquisitions for the year ended 31 March 2007
Dunng the year ended 31 March 2007, the Group made several acquisitions, nane of which are considered indwidually materiat to the Greup,
including Eiger Systems a leading provider of bank validatior/payment software in the UK and lreland

In aggregate, the acquired businesses contributed revenues of US$20m and profit after tax of US$3m to the Group for the perods from thew
respective acquisition dates to 31 March 2007 If these acquisitions had been completed on 1 Apnl 2006 further revenues of US$12m would have
been reported Due 1o the acquired entittes using different accounting policies preor to acquisiuon, previously reporting to different perod ends and
n certan cases, prepanng finangial information on a cash basts prior 10 acquisition, 1t has been impracucable 1o estimate the impact on Group
profit had they been owned from 1 Apnl 2006

Details of the net assets acquired and the provisional goodwill are as follows

Book value Fair value

ussm Ussm

Intangible assets - 20
Property, plant and equipment 4 4
Deferred tax assets - 5
Trade and other recevables 5 5
Cash, net of overdrafts 8 8
Trade and other payables (12} (15}
Deferred tax habilites - 2]
Net assets acquired 5 20
Goodwill 71
91

Satsfied by

Cash 80
AcCquisItion expenses 2
Deierred consideration ]
91

The fair values set out above contain certain provisional amounts which will be finalised ne later than one year after the date of acquisition Fair
value adjustrnents in respect of acquisitions made dunng the year resulied n an increase to book value of US$15m and arose pnncipally in respect
of acquisiion intangibles Goodwill represents the synergies assembled workiorce and future growth potenual of the businesses acquired

Deferred consideration 1s primarily payable in cash up 1o three years after the date of acquisition and i some cases 15 contingent on the businesses
acquired achieving revenue and profit targets The deferred consideration setiled dunng the year an acquisitions made i previous years was
Ussaam
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30 Acquisttions and demerger of Home Retail Group (contmued)

{b) Demerger of Home Retail Group
As Indicated in note 2, the distribution of shares in Home Retall Group plc to shareholders in GUS pic at the date of demerger has been accounted
for as a dmdend in specie This represents the Group's share of the net assets of Home Retall Group at the date of demerger which comprised

USSm
Intangible assets 3,716
Property, pfant and equipment 1,299
Deferred tax assets 21
Retirement benefit assets 41
Inventores 1,765
Trade and other receivables 1,036
Cash and cash eguivalents 518
Trade and cther payables (2,156)
Current tax payable (72)
Loans and borrowings (435)
Deferred tax labilities (122)
Provisions (174)
Group’s share of net assets of Home Retall Group on demerger 5.627

31 Share-based payment arrangements

Pnior to the demerger, Experian employees participated in share-based incentive plans in respect of the Ordinary shares in GUS plc On demerger,
certain GUS awards vested early and Expenan incurred an exceptional charge of US$15m on the acceleration of these awards

On demerger, the majonty of Experian participants’ outstanding GUS share and option awards rolied-over into Expenian equivelent awards A hmited
number of share and share option awards remained as GUS awards and participants had entitlernent to one Home Retail Group share and one
Expenian share in heu of each GUS share allocated Experian rolled-over awards are share-based incentive plans in respect of the Crdinary shares in
Expenian Group Limited The quantity and exerase price of grants were modified to adjust for the difference between the GUS and Experian share
prices The roll-over resulted in an incremental change in fair value of US$8m, which was incurred as an exceptional rtem The incremental fair value
was primarily as a result of an assumption in respect of the higher volatiity of the Expenan share price

Early vesting and modrfication changes have been recorded as an exceptional item {note 7)
Option and share prices are disclosed in Sterling reflecting the currency 1in which the Ordinary shares of GUS plc and Experian Group Limited are
guoted

{a) Options in respect of Ordinary shares
() Summary of arrangements
Experian demerger plan — Expertan Share Optron Plan

The Expenan Share Option Plan includes awards made at and after demerger together with awards rolled-over from former GUS plans and
arrangements were as follows

Nature Grant of options

Vesting conditions

- Service penod 3 and 4 years

— Performance/Other n/a

Expected outcome of meeting performance critena {at grant date) n/a

Maximum term 10 years

Method of settlement Share distribution

Expected departures (at grant date) 5%

Cption exercise price caiculatton? Market pnice over the 3 dealing days preceding the grant

1 Three day averages are calculated by taking middle market quotations of an Expenan Group Limited share from the London Stock Exchange
daily ofticial hst
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31 Share-based payment arrangements (contmued)

Expertan Roll-over plans (formerly GUS plans)

The arrangements in respect of former GUS plans which were in p

date of demerger were as follows

Arrangements

The 1998 Approved and
Non-Approved Executive
Share Option Schemes

The North Amenca Stock
Option Plan

lace In the year ended 31 March 2006 and m the penod irom 1 April 2006 to the

Savings related share
option schemes

Nature
Vesung conditions

- Service period
- Performance/Other

Expected outcome of meeting performance
criteria {at grant date)

Maximurn tenm

Method of settlement

Expected departures (at grant date)

Option exercise price calculation?

Grant of options

3 years

EPS growth pericrmance
condition!

Conditton 15 satisfied

10 years

Share distnibution

5%

Market price over the
3 deaiing days preceding
the grant

Grant of options

1, 2 and 3 years
n/a

n/a

6 years

Share distribution
1year - 0%

2 years - 15%
3years —20%
Market price over the

3 dealing days preceding
the grant

‘Save as you earn’ scheme

3 or 5 years

Saving obligation over the
vasting period

na

350r55 years

Share distribution

3 years? - 30%

5 yearsZ — 50%

20% discount to market price
over the 3 dealing days
preceding the grant

1 The performance condiion for The 1998 Approved and Non-Approved Executive Share Option Schemes required average Benchmark EPS

growth to exceed the average growth in the general index of retail prices by at leasi 4% pa overa 3 ye

ar peniod  The period of assessment

commenced at the beginning of the financial year of grant This is not 2 market based performance condmion as defined by IFRS 2

2 The stated values for expected departures include participants who did not meet the savings requirernent of the scheme

3 Three day averages were calculated by taking middle market quotations of a GUS pic share from the London Stack Exchange daily official list

(i) Weighted average share price

2007 2006

£ £

Weighted average share price of Experian Group Limited? 590 n/a
GUS ple share price at demerger 990 n/a
Weighted average share price of GUS pkc? 982 g32

1 Expenan’s weighted average share price for 2007 1s for the penod from the hsting date, 11 October 2006, to 31 March 2007

2 Weghted average share price for 2007 15 1n respect of the period up to demerger

Options In respect of the Ordinary shares of Experian Group Limited and GUS plc were exercised on a regular basis throughout the periods that the

respeciive shares were in 1ssug

@) Information refating to option valuation techniques

For the Expertan demerger plans and the former GUS plans the Black-Scholes model 15 used io determine an appropniate value of the opuon grants
Inputs nio the model are calculated as follows

Expected volatiity Experian demerger plans — As shares in Expenian Group Limited were newly listed dunng the year, there 1s nsufficient share
price bustory in order to calculate ustoncal volatlity Accordingly 1o arrive at a reasonable volatility assumption an analysis of the share price volatiity
of comparable companies was performed

Expected volatility former GUS plans — Calculated as an average over the expected life with an assurnpnon made for volatility in each year of
the expected life Volatility in the first year was assumed to be the same as implied volatility on grant date Volatlity for year 4 and beyond was
assurned to remain at the long run (10 year observed) historic volatiity Lingar interpolation was assumed for years 2 and 3

Expected dividend yrefd - Yields are based on the current consensus analyst forecast figures at the tme of grant The mnputs utiksed are an
average of the forecast over the next three financial years
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31 Share-based payment arrangements {continued)

Risk-free rate - Rates are obtamed from the UK Government Debt Management Office website which details historical prices and yields for qilt
strps

Expected option Iife to exercise Experian Share Option Plans — The Expenan Share Cphion Plans vest 50% after 3 years and 50% after 4
years The expected hfe 1s 4 years for the 50% that vest after 3 years and 4 85 years for the 50% that vest after 4 years

Expected option life to exercise former GUS plans - The 1998 Approved and Non-Approved Executive Share Option Schemes had expected
Iives of 4 years, the North American Stock Option Plan had an expected hfe of 3 75 years and the Savings related share option schemes had
expected lives of erther 3 or 5 years

Share price on grant date Experian Share Option Plans — The majority of the grants were made on 11 October 2006 As this was Expenan’s
first trading day, the weighted average price of trades was used For subsequent grants, the closing price on the day of grant was used

Share price an grant date former GUS plans — The closing price on the day the options were granted
Option exercise price — Exerase price as stated n the term of each award

The weighted average estimated fair values and the inputs into the Black-Scholes modets, for the Experian Share Option Plans, are as follows

Waeighted

average

2007

Fair value (£) 126
Share price on grant date () 563
Exercise price (£) 561
Expected volatity 28 0%
Expected dividend yield 33%
Risk-free rate 49%
Expected option life to exercise 4 43 years

The weighted average estimated fair values and the inputs mto the Black-Scholes models, for the former GUS plans, are as follows

The 1998 Approved and

Non-Approved Executive The North Amenca Stock Savings related share
Arrangements Share Option Schemes QOption Plan option schemes

Weighted Weighted Weighted Weighted Weighted Weighted
average average average average average average
2007 2006 20071 2006 2007 2006
Fair value (£) 206 160 200 152 n/a 2 46
Share price on grant date (£} 935 853 935 848 n/a 896
Exercise price (£} 926 861 926 8 50 n/a & 87
Expected volathty 294% 27 8% 29 1% 27 4% n/a 25 5%
Expecied dividend yeld 35% 4 0% 35% 4 0% n/a 38%
Risk-free rate 4 7% 43% 47% 43% n/a 41%
Expected option life to exercise 4 years 4 years 375 years 3 75 years n/a 3 56 years

1 Waeighted average for the period up to demerger
Opuons over GUS plc shares granted in the penod from 1 Apnl 2006 to demerger had a weighted average farr value of £2 03 (2006 £1 82)
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31 Share-based payment arrangements (continued)

(V) Reconciation of movement in the number of share options

Weighted

Number of average

options  exercise price

m £

2006 2006

Options 0 Tespect of shares 1N GUS plc outstanding at the beginning of the year 278 634

New grants 813 812

Forfertures! 19 653

Exercised options (59} 608

Expired opuons (05) 660

Options 1n respect of shares n GUS plc outstanding at the end of the year 282 650

Options n respect of GUS ple shares exercisable at the end of the year 59 6 41

1 For the Savings related share opuion schemes, this includes non-leavers who have faled the sawvings requirement

Weghted

Number of average

options exercse price

m £

2007 2007

Options 1 respect of shares 1 GUS plc outstanding at the beginning of the year 282 6 90

New granis 77 926

Forfeitures (0 8) 762

Exercised options (7 1) LA

Options 1n respect of shares in GUS plc at demerger 28.0 783

Less options rolled-over into Home Retall Group share plans (10 3) 750

Less GUS awards forfeited post demmerger {03) 721

Less GUS awards exercised post demerger (0 6} 729

GUS options solled-over nto Experian equivaleni awards 168 806
Conversion 10 Expenan Group Limiuted awards at an average rali-over ratio of 176 128

Expesnian equivalent roll-over awards 296 456

Opuons In respect of shares in Expenan Group Limited granted on or after demerger 42 561

Forfertures (0 8) 509

Exercises (18) 372

Options (n respect of shares 1n Expenan Group Limited outstanding at the end of the year 314 473

Options In respect of Expenan Group Limited shares exerasable at the end of the year B0 389

(v} Optons outstanding at the end of the year

Opuions tn respect of Expenian Group Limited shares outstanding at the end of the year had the following exercise prices and remaining contractual

fives
At 37 March 2007

Range of Number Weighted Weighted average remaming hves

exeruase of average
prices options exerase

price? Expected Contractual

£ m £ years years

2-3 02 274 11 23

3-4 71 ain 02 36

4-5 04 467 17 60

5-6 138 533 33 77

1 To the extent that options have been rolled-over nto Expenan demerger plans, the 2007 inputs for share price at grant date and exercise pnce
have been rebased to be comparable wath the Expenian Group Limited share price at demerger and reflect the consequent changes to option

1erms
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31 Share-based payment arrangements (continued)

Options in respect of GUS plc shares outstanding at 31 March 2006 had the foliowing exercise prices and remaining contractual iives

Al 31 March 2006

Weighted Weighted average remaining hves

Range of Number average
exercise of exercise

prices options price Expected Contractual

f m £ years years

0-6 52 456 07 14

6-7 124 & 61 12 48

7-8 01 757 16 66

89 105 838 39 60

{b) Share awards in respect of Ordinary shares
(i) Summary of arrangements

Experian demerger share plans

The fallowing arrangements include awards made at and after demerger together with awards rolled over from former GUS plans

Arrangements

Experian Reinvestment
Flan

Experian
Performance Share
Plan

Experian Free Shares Plan
and the Experian

UK Approved All-
Employee Plan

Nature of arrangement

vesting conditions
- Service penod

— Performance

Expected outcome of meeting
performance criteria (at grant date)

Maximum term

Method of settlement

Expected departures (at grant date)

Grant of shares

3 1o 5 years

50% - Benchmark profit
performance of Group
assessed against specified
targets '

50% —n/a

n/a
5 years
Share distnbution

5%

Grant of shares

5 years

50% ~ Benchmark profit
performance of Group
assessed against specified
targets!

50% - Distribution percentage
determined by ranking ‘Total

Shareholder Return’ relative
to a comparator group 2

52 3%

5 years

Share distnbution
5%

Grant of shares

3 years

nfa

n/a

3 5 years

Share distnbution
15%

1 The Benchmark profit performance condiuon for the Expenan Reinvestment Plan
tax growth to at least exceed 10— 14%
grant This 1s not a ‘Market-based performance con

2 The Experian Performance Share Plan
been valued using a Monte Carlo simulation with hustonc vola

over a 3 year period The penod of asses:

period preceding valuation and an impled volaulity for Experian Group Limite

weighted average share price for Expenian Group Limited's first d
of the awarded shares

and Experian Performance Share Plan requires profit before
<ment commences at the beginning of the financial year of
dition as defined by IFRS 2 The condition 15 appited to half of the awarded shares

Total Sharehoider Return’ 1 considered a ‘Market-based’ performance condition under IFRS 2 It has
tilties and correlations for comparator companies measured over the three year
d The farr value of awards was calculated as 52 3% of the

ay of trading an the London $tock Exchange The condrtion 1s apphed to hatf
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31 Share-based payment arrangements {continued)

Former GUIS share plans
The arrangements in respect of former GUS plans which were in place in the year ended 31 March 2006 and in the penod from 1 Apnl 2006 to the
date of demerger were as follows

Arrangements Co-Investment Plan - Matching Shares Performance Share Plan

Nature of arrangement Grani of shares! Grant of shares

Vesting conditions

- Service pericd 4 years 3 years

- Performance Benchmark profit performance of Group/Dmsion Distribution percentage determined by ranking "Totas
assessed against specified targets Shareholder Return’ relative 1o a8 comparator group

Expected outcomne of meeung
performance cnteria {at grant date) Participants meet target performance 50 6% for June 2006 grant
60 0% for June 2005 grant

Maxirnum term 4 years 3 years
Method of settlement Share distnbution Share distribution
Expected departures (at grant date} 7% 5%

The Matching Shares are a nil consideration option and have been dassifled as an award of shares because the nature of the award 15 the same

2 The Performance Share Plan performance condiuion 1s considered a "Market-based” pertormance condition under IFRS 2 it was valued using a
Monte Carlo smulation with histone valatiiies and correlations measured over the three year penod preceding valuation On conversion to
IFRS, the fawr value of awards was calculated as 60% of the share pnce at date of grant This valuation has apphed to all grants up to 31 March
2006 !t was deemed necessary to re-run the Mante Carlo simulation for the year ended 3% March 2007 as Group activity made the calculation
on converston to IFRS inappropriate The fair value of awards granted m June 2006 was calculated as 50 6% of the share price at datg of grant

The grant date for the Expenan Co-Investment plan and the former GUS Co-Investment plan 1s the start of the fmancial year in which performance
s assassed This 1s before the quantity of the shares award is determined The underlying value of the award 1s known at the grant date, subject 10
the outcome of the performance condion The value of awarded shares reflects the performance oulcome ar the date of 1ssue to pariapants

(in Information relating to share grant valuation techmiques

The majonty of the grants were made on Expenian Group Limited shares® first day of trading on the London Stock Exchange and trading was
particularly volatile on this day The weighted average share price for that day's trading 1s being used to determine the value of Experian demerger
share awards For the former GUS plans the value of awards 1s deterrined as the observed market closing rate on the date awarded grants are
issued to participants For the Expenan Co-investment plan and the former GUS Co-nvestment plan, thas occurs after the first year of performance
15 assessed The Experian demerger and former GUS Performance Share plans' market-based performance conditions are included 1n the fair value
measurement on grant date and are not revised for actual performance

Under the share awards, paruicipanis have an enatiement to divdend dsstnbuuons from the 1ssue date until point of vesung The observed market
rate on the day of valuation 15 considered inclusive of future dwidend distnbutions No modsfications are made for dwidend distnbutions or other
factors

(i) Reconcihiation of share awards outstanding

Number of
opuons
m
2006
Share awards tn respect of shares in GUS plc outsianding at the beginning of the year 49
New grants 20
Forfertures {13)
Vesting {0 6)
Share awards 1n respect of shares in GUS pic outstanding at the end of the year 50
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31 Share-based payment arrangements (continued)

Number of

options

m

2007

Share awards in respect of shares in GUS plc outstanding at the beginning of the year 50
New grants 28
Vesting 42)
Awards in respect of shares i GUS plc at demerger 36
Less awards rolled-over nto Home Retall Group share plans 07
GUS share awards to Experian parucipants at demerger 29
Conversion to Expenan Group awards at an average roll-over ratio of 178 23
Expenan equivalent roll-over awards 52
Share awards in respact of Expenan Group Limited on or after demerger 198
Forfeitures (0 4)
Share awards in Experian Group Limited outstanding at the end of the year 246

For Expenan demerger plans there were 19,022 982 shares granted in 2007, with a weighted average award far value of £5 20 For former GUS
plans there were 2,814,465 shares granted in 2007 (2006 2,635,145), with a weighted average award fair value of £6 74 {2006 £7 69)

{c}) Modification of GUS awards to Experian participants

1) Details of modification

Prior ta demerger, Expenan participants held share incentve grants with entitlement to GUS share distributions On demnerger, the majonty of

outstanding awards were rolled-over into plans with entitiement to Expenan Group Limited share distributions  The guantity and exercise

price of

2wards were modified to mamntain an equwvalent compersation as the onginal GUS grants The incremental far value of the modification was US$8m

(iy) Information relating to modified options

In total, 16 9m GUS options were rolled-over into 30 Om Expenan Group Limsted options A Black-Scholes model was used 1o determine the fair
value of GUS and Expenan Group Limited awards for modified grants The weighted average estmated farr values and the inputs Into the Black-

Scholes maodel are as follows

Weighted average

GUS Experian

awards awards

Fair value (£} 271 164
Share pnce on modification date {£) 990 562
Exercise price (£) 808 457
Expected volatility 25 6% 27 6%
Expected dvidend yeld 3 7% 37%
Risk-free rate 49% 4 9%
Expected option Iife to exercise 3 48 years 3 48 years

(i) information relating to madifred share awards

Weighted average

GUSs Expenan

awards awards

Quantity modified (milhons) 49 B7
Weighted average fair vatue (£) 214 467

{d) Other share awards

During the year Expenan Group Limited 1ssued put options to a small number of employees who own an equity interest in a subsichary These
cptions vest on 31 March 2008 assurning the employees remain with the Group and they will be exercisable from that date onwards These options
are accounted for under IFRS 2 as performance condiions are linked to empioyment with the subsidiary The options will be exercisable at a value
based on 20% of the prevailing market valye of the subsichary for which these empioyees work and this value 1s capped at US$50m The option will
be settled In Expenan Group Limited shares The expected number of shares 1s 122,000 The option was purchased for US30 7m by the employees
at fair value as calculated by thurd party valuation speciahists This valuation 15 based on the forecast revenue model of the subsidiary No cost will

arise over the vesting penod as the purchase price of the option was its market value
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31 Share-based payment arrangements {continued)

(e) Summary of the total cost of share-based compensation in respect of Ordinary shares

2007 2006
ussSm uUssm
Share option awards 30 23
Share grant awards 72 28
Total expense recognised (all equity settled) 102 51
Associated National Insurance costs 4
Total expense recognised 106 53
The expense 15 reported as follows
Employee cost included in Benchmark PET 35 34
Charge in respect of demerger-related equity incentive pians {excluded from Benchmark PBT) 23 -
Discontinued operations 15 17
Exceptional item — charge on early vesting and modification of share awards at
demerger of Experian ang Home Retall Group 23 -
Exceplional item — other costs incurred relating to the demerger of
Experan and Home Retail Group 7 -
Total expense recognised {afl equity settled) 102 51
Assoctated National Insurance COsts
Included in Benchmark PBT 3 2
Excluded from Benchmark PBT ! 1 -
Total expense recognised 106 53
32 Operating lease commitments — mimimum Jease payments
2007 2006
ussm ustm
Commitmenis under non-canceliable operating leases expinng in
Less than one year 65 590
Between one and five years 150 2,153
More than five years 64 4,431
279 7.174

The Group leases offices and technology under non-cancellable operating lease agreements These leases have varying terms, escalation clauses and

renewal rights

33 Camtal commitments

2007 2006
ussm Ussm

Capital expenditure for which contracts have been placed
Property, plant and equipment 11 94
Intangible assets - 2
1 96

34 Contingencies

in the United States, there are a number of pending and threatened litigation claims involving Expenan which are being vigorously defended The
directors do not believe that the outcome of any such pending o7 threatened liigaton will have a matenal adverse efiect on the Group's financial
posiion However, as 15 Inherent in legal proceedings, there 15 a risk of outcomes uniavourable to the Group In the case of unfavourable outcomes

the Group would benefit irom apphcable insurance recovenes
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35 Related parties

The uttimate parent company of the Group s Experian Group Limited which 15 incorporated in Jersey The principal subsidiary and associate
undertakings at 31 March 2007 are shown in note O to the financial statements of the ulumate parent company

The following transactions were carned out with related parties of Expenan

Associates

Dunng the year the Group made net sales and recharges, under normal commercial terms and conditions that woulgd be avallable to third parties, to
First Amerncan Regl Estate Solutions LLC ('FARES') and rts associate First Advantage Corporation, of US$29m {2006 US321m) Amounts recewvable
from FARES are shown within note 18 These amounts outstanding are unsecured and will be settled in cash No guarantees have been given or
receved In the year No provisions have been made for doubtful debts i respect of the amounts owed by related parties

Subsidiaries
Transactions between the ultimate parent company and its subsidiaries, and between subsidiaries, have been eliminated on conschidation

Home Retall Group

Under the terms of the demerger agreement entered Into in August 2006, the Group has contracted to provide ceriam services to Home Retatl
Group on a transittonal basis for a penod of not more than two years after the date of the demerger The fees payable for these services are
determined on an arm’s length basis Snce the demerger, the Group has charged US$0 3m to Home Retall Group in respect of these services

Since the date of demerger Experiars has made sales of US$10m to Home Retall Group companies on normal commercial terms

Key management personnel
Remuneration of key management personnel is disclosed in note 6(¢) Dunng the year there were no material transactions or balances between the
Group and s key management personnel or members of their close families .

Other related parties
There were no other matenal related party transactions Services are usually negotiated wath refated parties on a2 cost-plus basis Goods are bought
on the basis of the price ists in force with non-related parties
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Report of the auditors: Group financial statements

independent auditors’ report to the members of Expenan Group Limited

We have audited the Group finanaal statements of Expenan Group Limited for the year ended 31 March 2007 which compnise the Group income
statement, the Group batance sheet, the Group cash flow statement, the Group statement of recogmised income and expense and the related
notes These Group financial staternents have been prepared under the accounting policies set out therein

We have reported separately on the parent company f:inanciat statements of Experian Group Limited for the penod ended 31 March 2007

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

The directors’ responsibiiies for prepanng the annual report and the Group finanaial statements 1n accordance with apphicable law and
International Finanaal Reporting Standards {IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union are set out in the statement of directors’ responsibilities

Our responsibility 1s to audit the Group financial statements in accordance with relevant legal and regulatory requirements and International
Standards on Auditing (UK and treland) Thus report, ingluding the opmion, has been prepared for and only for the Company’s members as a body in
accordance with Arucle 110 of the Companies (Jersey) Law 1991 and for no pther purpose We do not, in giving this apimion, accept oF assume
responsibihity for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report 1s shown or Inte whose hands 1t may come save where expressly
agreed by our prior conseni in writing

We report 1o you our opinion as 1o whether the Group financial statements give a true and fatr view and whether the Group financal statements
have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies {Jersey) Law 1991 and Article 4 of the 1AS Regulation We also report to you
whether in our opinion the information given in the directors’ report 1s cansistent with the Group fmancial statements The information given n the
directors' report includes that specific nformation presented n the busness review that 1s cross referred from the directors report

in addition we report 1o you if, 10 our opimion, we have not received all the wnformation and explanations we require for our audit

We review whether the corporate governance statement reflects the Company's comphiance with the nine provisions of the Combined Code (2003}
specified for our review by the Listing Rules of the Urited Kingdom Financial $ervices Authonty, and we report if 1t does not We are not required 10
consider whether the board's statements on internal controls cover all risks and contrals, or form an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
corporate governance procedures or Its nisk and control procedures

We read other infarmation contamned 1n the annual report and consider whether it 1s consistent with the audited Group financal statements The
other information comprises only the Group fimancial mghhights, the directors’ report, the chairman’s statement, the business rewew, the hoard of
directors, the unaudited part of the report on directors” remuneration the corporate governance statement and the other items as referred to on
the contents isting We consider the wnplcations for our report if we become aware of any apparent misstatements or material nconsistencies with
the Group financial statements Our responsibilities do not extend to any other information

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit In accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) ssued by the Auditing Practices Board An audit
includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant 10 the amounts and disclosures i the Group financial statements It also includes an
assessment of the sigrificant estimates and judgments made by the directors in the preparation of the Group financial statements, and of whether
the accounting policies are appropniate 1o the Group's circumstances, consistently applied and adequately disciosed

we planned and performed our audit 5o as to obtain all the information and explanations which we considered necessary n order to provide us
with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the Group financial statements are free from matenal misstatement, whether caused by
fraud or other irreguianty ar errar In forming our opinion we have also evaiuated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information tn the
Group financial statements

Opinion

In our opinton
* the Group financial staternents give a true and iar view, n accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union, of ihe state of the Group's
affais as at 31 March 2007 and of s profit and cash flows for the year then ended,

» the Group financial statements have been properly prepared In accordance with the Companies {Jersey} Law 1991 and Arucle 4 of the 1AS
Regulation, and

« the information given i the directors’ report Is consistent with the Group financial statements

PncewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accouniants and Registered Auditors
London, Unrted Kingdom

22 May 2007
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Parent company profit and loss account

for the period ended 31 March 2007

2007
Notes £m
Admunistrative expenses (13 0)
Operating loss C (130)
Net interest Income D 87
Net foreign exchange gain 01
Loss on ordinary activities before taxation 42
Tax on loss on ardinary activities E -
Loss for the finanaal period K (42}

The Company has no recognised gains and losses other than those inciuded i the profit and loss account and therefore no separate statement of
total recogrised gains and losses has been presented
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Parent company balance sheet

at 31 March 2007

2007
Notes £m
Fixed assets
Tangible assets F 02
investments in group undertakings G 5,9705
S.9707
Current assets
Debtots — due within one year H 17
Cash at bank and in hand 74
91
Current habilities
Creditors — amounts due within one year 1 (90 1)
Net current hiabilittes {810}
Net assets 5,8897
Capital and reserves
Called up share capstal ) 547
Share prermium account J 7738
profit and loss account K 5,061 2
Total equity shareholders' funds 5.889 7

The financia! staternents on pages 121 to 132 were approved by the Board of Directors on 22 May 2007 and were signed on 115 behalf by

John Peace
Drrectar

122 [ Expenan Annual Report 2007



Notes to the parent company financial statements

for the penod ended 31 March 2007

A Corporate information

Experian Group Limited {the ‘Company’} was incorporated and registered in Jersey on 30 June 2006 under the Jersey Companies Law &5 3 public
comnpany imited by shares with the name New Germini (lersey Co) No 1 Limited The Company changed rts name to Expenan Group Limiied on
6 July 2006 The pnincspal legislation under which the Company cperates 15 Jersey Companies Law and regulations made thereunder

The principal actwty of the Company Is to act as the ulimate halding company of the Expenan Group, whose principal acivity 15 busmess sennces

The shares of the Company are listed on the London Stock Exchange's market for listed securities (the ‘London Stock Exchange’) and trading 1n
these shares commenced on 11 October 2006

B Basis of preparation and significant accounting pohicies

Basis of preparation

The separate finangal statements of the Company are presented in compliance with the requirements for companies whose shares are isted on the
London Stack Exchange They were approved by the Board on 22 May 2007 The Cormpany's financial statements cover the penod from
mcorporation on 30 june 2006 to 31 March 2007 They are presented in Pounds Sterling, as that 1s the functional currency of the Company In
determining 1ts functional currency, the directors have determined the primary economic environment in which the Company Operates

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis and under the histoncal cost canventian, modified for the revalustion of
certam financial mstruments, and in accordance with the Compariies {lersey) Law 1991 and United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice (‘UK GAAPY)

These separately presented Company financial statements comprise the profit and ioss account, balance sheet and related notes The Company has
taken advantage of the exemption from prepaning a ash flow staterment under the terms of FRS 1 (Revised 1996) ‘Cash Flow Statements’ The
Company s also exempt under the terms of FRS 8 'Related Party Disclosures® from drsclosing transactions with other members of the Experan
Group

The Expenian Group Limited consoiidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2007 contain financial instrument disclosures required
by 1AS 32 ‘Financial Instrurnents  Disclosure and Presentation’ and these would also comply with the disclosures required by FRS 25 ‘Financial
Instruments Disclosure and Presentation * Accordingly, the Company has taken advantage of the exemphion in FRS 25 not to present separate
financial instrument disclosures for the Company

Significant accounting policies
The significanit accounsng policies of the Company are noted below

Tangible fixed assets
Leasehold improvements are deprecigted over the shorter of the estimated life of the asset and the remaining life of the lease

Leases
Gross rental mcome recelvable and payable in respect of operating leases 1s recogriused on a straight line hasis over the penods of the leases

investments 1n group undertakings
Investments In group undertakings are siated at cost less provision considered necessary for any impairment

Impairment of fixed assets
Where there 15 an Indication of impairment fixed assets are subject to review for impairment in accordance with FRS 11 ‘Impairment of Fixed Assets
and Goodwill' Any rmpairment 1s recognised 1n the year in which 1f occurs

Dehtors and creditors
Debtors are inimially recogrused at fair value and carned at the iower of cost and recoverabie amount Where the iime value of maney 15 matenal,
debtors are carried at amortised cost

Creditars are intially recognised at far value and carned at amoruised cost if the ttme value of money ts matenal

Cash
Cash inciudes cash on hand, deposits held at call with banks and other short-term hughly liquid nvestments

Accounting for denvative financaal instruments
The Company uses forward foreign exchange contracts t0 manage Its exposures to fluctuations in foreign exchange rates The interest differential
reflected in forward foreign exchange contracts Is taken to Interest expense

Forward foreign exchange contracts are recognised at fair vaiue, based on forward foreign exchange market rates at the balance sneet date Gains
or fosses on forward foreign exchange contracts are taken directly to net foreign exchange gains or losses i the profit and toss account

Deferred tax

Deferred tax 1s prowided in respect of tirming differences that have anginated but not reversed at the balance sheet date and 1s determined using the
tax rates that are expected to apply when the timing differences reverse Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that they are
expected 10 be recoverable
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Notes to the parent company financial statements

for the penod ended 31 March 2007

B Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies {continued)

ESOP Trust shares

The Experian Group Limited Employee Share Trust ('the Trust’) 15 a separately administered trust Lisbibrises of the Trust are guaranteed by the
Compary and the assets of the Trust mainly compnse shares in the Company The assets, liabiies and expenses of the Trust are inciuded in the
Company's financial statements as if they were the Company's own Such shares held by the Trust are shown as a deduction from equity
shareholders' funds at cost

Share-based payments

The Group has a number of equity settled, share-based compensation plans These include awards in respect of shares In the Company made at of
after demerger together with awards prewviously made (n respect of shares n GUS pic which were rolled-Over into awards in respect of shares in the
Company at gemerger The issuance by the Company of share incentives to employees of its subsidianes represents addiwional capital contributions
and therefore an increase n the Company’s investment N group undertakings with a corresponding Increase In equity sharehoiders’ funds

The fair value of options and shares granted 1s recognised after taking into account the Company's best estimate of the number of awards expected
to vest The Company revises the vesting estmate at each balance sheet date and non market performance condiniens are included 1n the vesung
estimates AmOunts are recognised over the vesting penod Farr vaiue 15 measured at the date of grant using whichever of the Black-Scholes, Monte
Carlo model and closing market prce 15 most appropriate to the award Market based performance conditions are nctuded in the farr value
measurement on grant date and are not revised for actual performance

C Operating loss
The operating ioss 15 stated after charging

2007
{1) Staff costs £m
Directors’ fees 04
Wages and salaries 02
Total 06
{u) Fees payable to the Company’s auditor and 1ts associates
Fees payable 10 Company’s auditor for the audit of the parent company financial statements were £30,000
Fees payable to Company's auditor for the audit of the group financial statements 03
Fees payable to Company's auditor and 1ts associates for other services
Services (n respect of the demerger (ncluded In exceptional iterns} 06
Total 09
(m) Exceptional ntems.
Costs incurred relating 1o the demerger of Home Retall Group and Expenan 46

The Company employed an average of one employee dunng the penod Executive directors of the Company are employed by other companies
within the Group

Detalls of the remuneration of direciors are given in the auditable part of the report on directors’ rernuneration on pages 521057

Dunng the penod the Company pawd an intenm equity diwdend of £20 4m to shareholders and there was a dividend in specie to shareholders of
£3,497 6m relating to the demerger of Home Retail Group The directors propese a further dividend of 11 5 cents per share for the penad ended
31 March 2007 This dwidend 1s not included as a fiabifity in the current year financial statements as it has not been declared For further detals see
note 11 1n the Expenan Group financial staternents
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D Net interest income 2007

fm

Interest Income

External interest iIncome 03

Interest on amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings 80

Unwind of discount on amount owed by subsidiary undertaking 07

a0

Interest expense

Interest on amounts owed 1o subsidiary undertakings {03)
Net interast 87

E Tax on loss on ordinary activities

(i) Tax charge for the penod
There was no tax charge for the penod The appiicable rate of Corporation tax in Ireland 1s 25% for investment income (12 5% for trading income)
The differences are explained below

2007

£m

Loss on ordinary activities befare taxation (42)

Loss on ordmary activities before tax multiphed by the applicable rate of Corporation tax in ireland of 25% {12 5% for trading income) 11
Effects of

income not taxable o1

Expenses not deductible 12

Current tax charge for the pertog -

(1) Factors that may affect future tax charges
In the forseeable future, the Company's tax charge will centinue to be influenced by the nature of its income and expenditure In subsequent
accounting periods, and could be affected by changes in 1ax law

() Tax effect of exceptional items
The exceptional items includad within the Company's expenses are not deductible for tax purposes
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Notes to the parent company financial statements

for the penod ended 31 March 2007

2007
F Tangible fixed assets £m
Short leasehold propertes
Cost
Additions a2
A1 31 March 2007 02
Depreciation
At 31 March 2007 -
Net Book Value at 31 March 2007 02

2007

G Investments in group undertakings im
Addmions 8122
Transfer from subsidiary undertakmg B.6756
Disposzls (6,381 6)
Investments 1n group undertakings at 31 March 2007 3,106 2
Long-term loan to subsidiary undertaking 2,864 3
At 31 March 2007 59705

() Addions in the year compnsed the fair value of the share incentives issued to employees of subsidiary undertakings duning the pened of
£23 6m and £788 6m i respact of a subscription for share capital in Expenan ireland Investments Limuted, whose principal activity 15 to act as
an ntra group finance company

i) The transfer from subsidiary undertakings compnsed the transfer of GUS plc and its subsichary undertakings as part af the demerger process

Gi) Dnsposals comprised £3,497 6m i respect of the distnbution of shares sn Home Retall Group to the Company's shareholders by way of
dividend in specie and a capial reducvon of £4,852 Om by a subsidiary undertaking settled by a long-term foan with a far value of £2,863 6m
ar cash of £20 4m

At 31 March 2007, the investment in group undertakings comprises the holdings of the whole of the 1ssued share capital of Expenan Invesiment
Holdings Limited, Expenian Ireland investments Limited and Expenian Group Services Limited The principal actvity of Experran Group Services Limmited
s the provision of administrative services to group companies

The Company’s brincipal subsidiary undertakings are listed on page 132
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2007

H Debtors — due within one year £m
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings c1
Taxauion recoverable 16
17

2007

1 Creditors — amounts due within one year £m
Amounts owed to subsichary undertakings 887
Accruals 03
Other creditors o4
Overdraft o7
a0 1

At 31 March 2007, the Company had undrawn commutted borrowing faciities of £1,250m, all of which expires more than two years after the
balance sheet date

3 Share capital and share premium

Nurnber of Share Share
Ordinary shares capral premium

of US 10 cents
m im £m
At 30 june 2006 on Incorporatian - - -
Issued on demerger of Home Retaill Group 877 4 459 86287
Capital reduction on 6 October 2006 - - (8,628 7)
Issued by way of Global Offer 142 9 77 7823
Global offer 1ssuance costs - - (22 8
Allotted under share option schemes 20 01 43
At 31 March 2007 1,022 3 547 7738

Authorised and issued share capital

On incorporation, the authonsed share capital of the Company was US$10,000 dvided into 10,000 Ordinary shares of US$1 each Of such Ordinary
shares, two were sssued and were paid up In full at 2 cost of USS2 each On 13 September 2006 the shareholders passed special resolutions under
which each Ordinary share of US$1 each was sub-tivided into 10 Ordinary shares of 10 US cents each and the authorised share capiial of the
Company was 1ncreased from US$10,00C to USS200m by the creation of 1,999,900 000 additional Ordinary shares of 10 US cents each The 20
Ordinary shares of 10 US cents then n 1ssue were converted in to Deferred shares of 10 US cents each

On 10 October 2006 the Company 1ssued 877,444,999 Ordinary shares of 10 US cents each 1n connectron with the demerger and on 11 October
2006 the Company 1ssued a funher 142,857,143 Ordinary shares of 10 US cents each by way of a Global Offer Subsequent to 11 October 2006 a
further 1,979,664 Ordinary shares were allotied on the exarcise of share options At 31 March 2007, 1 022,281,806 Crdinary shares of 10 US cents
each and 20 Deferred shares of 10 US cents each had been allotied, called up and fully paid

Share premium

As a result of the Issue of 877 444,999 Ordinary shares of 10 US cents, referred o above, share premium of £8,628 7m arose being the excess of
the farr value of the net assets of £8,675 6m acquired over the nominal value of £46 9m of the sharas ssued

On 10 October 2006, following the approval of the Jersey Court under Article 63 of Compames (Jersey) Law 1991 the Company reduced 1ts share
capital This gave nise to 3 reduction of £8,628 7m in the share prermium account and a corresponding increase in the profit and loss account
reserve

As & result of the Company rssuing 142,857 143 Ordinary shares of 10 cents each by way of Global Offer, at a price of £5 60 per share, additional
share premium of £792 3m was created being the excess of the proceeds of the shares issued over their nominal value Related issue costs of

£22 8m have been charged against the share premium account Similarly, additonal share premium of £4 3m was created in the period when
shares were allotted under share opuon schemes The share premium account 1s not avaiable for distribution
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Notes to the parent company financial statements

for the penod ended 31 March 2007

Total profit

Profit and loss

ESOP and ioss account

shares account reserve

K Reserves £m £m fm
Loss for the financial penod - (4 2) 42
Transfer to profit and loss account on reducuicn In share capital - 86287 8,628 7
Equity dwidends pard during the penod - (20 4} (20 4)
Divdend 1n speue relating to the demerger of Home Retanl Group - (3,497 5} {3,497 5)
Transfer of £SQP shares at far value {80 1) 170 {63 1)
Purchase of ESOP shares (33 6) - (33 6}
Allotrmentt of share options 277 - 277
Credit in respect of share incentive schames - 236 236
At 31 March 2007 {86 0) 5,147 2 5,061 2

ESOP shares represent the cost of shares in the Company hekd by the fallowing trusts to satsfy the Group's obligations under Its share incentive plans

Number of

shares

Expenan Group Limite¢ Employee Share Trust 13,419,683
GUS plc ESOP Trust 2,340,100
Expenan UK Approved All-Employee Share Plan 926,565
16,686,348

A total of 6,670,514 Orcinary shares were purchased by the Trusts from the date of Incorporation to 31 March 2007 at a cost of £33 6m A total of
15,090,260 shares were transferred from GUS pic to £xpenan Group Limited on novaton of GUS pie's interest in the GUS plg ESOP Trust for a farr
value of £63 1m Subsequently a number of these shares have been wansferred into the Experian Group Limited Exployee Share Trust

Equity dindends of £20 4m were paid to those Expenan Group Limited sharehalders who did not elect to receve dividends under the Income
Access Share ('IAS") arrangements In total £28 5m of dwidends were paid in the post demerger penod of which £8 1m was paid by Experian
Finance plc {formerly GUS plc) under the 1AS arrangements

L. Commtments

(1} Capital commntments
There are no sigmificant ¢apial commitments relaung 1o the Company

(u) Operating lease commitments
The Company has an annual commitment of £0 3m in respect of the lease of the Group’s Corporate Headquarters i iretand, this commitment
expires in mare than five years Rental payrments commence in May 2008

M Contingences

At 31 March 2007, the Company 1s the guarantor of the retrement benefit obligauons of the Group companies that paricipate n the Experian
Pension Scheme
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N Share options and awards

The Company has not repeated the disclosures required by FRS 20 *Share-based Payment as these are already ncluded in note 31 of the Group
financial staternents

Detalls of the unexercised options are shown below and include those options granted to directors ot the Company Further details of options
granted to directors of the Company are contained In she repart on directors remuneration on pages 53 and 54

2007

(1) Options and awards In respect of the Ordinary shares of the Company m
Experian Reinvesiment Plan 103
Expenan Co-Investment Plan 22
Expenan Performance Share Plan 89
Experian Share Option Plan 177
Expernian North Amencan Share Option Plan 118
Expenian UK Approved All-Employee Plan/Free Share Plan 32
Expenan Sharesave Plan 19
56 0

{n} Awards under the Expenian Reinvestment Plan

Dunng the pernod ended 31 March 2007, awards were made uncer this plan in respect of 10 445,779 Ordinary shares in the Company At 31

March 2007 awards 1n respect of 10,302,923 Ordinary shares remained outstanding and, as mdicaied in note K, shares have been purchased by the
Expenan Group Limited Employee Share Trust to meet obligations under this plan These awards include those granted to directars, further detasls of
which are contained in the report on directors remuneration on page 56

puring the penod ended 31 March 2007, no Ordinary shares were transfarred from the Trust to beneficianes of the Expenan Reinvestment Plan

{n1) Awards under the Expenan Co-Investment Plan

Dunng the penod ended 31 March 2007, awards were rolled-over from the GUS plc Co-lnvestment Plan into the Expenan Co-investment Plan <

respect of 2,223,009 Ordinary shares in the Company At 31 March 2007, awards in respect of 2,223,009 Ordinary shares remained outstanding
and, as (ndicated n note K, shares have been purchased by the Expenan Group Limnited Employee Share Trust to meet obligations under this plan
These awards include those granted to directors, further detads of which are contaned In the report on directers remuneraton on page 56

During the penod ended 31 March 2007, 763,972 Ordinary shares were transterred from the Trust 10 beneficiaries of the Expenan Co-lhvestment
Plan

{(v) Awards under the Expenan Performance Share Plan

Duning the penad ended 31 March 2007, awards were rolled-over frem the GUS pic Performance Share Plan in respect of 2,968,004 Ordinary shares
in the Company In addimon, during the penod ended 31 March 2007 new awards In respect of 6,112,885 Ordinary shares of the Company were
made under this plan At 31 March 2007, awards 1n respect of 8 873 114 Ordinary shares remained outstanding and, as indicated 1n note K shares
have been purchased by the Experian Group Limuted Employee Share Trust 1o meet obligauons under this plan These awards inciude those granted
to direciors, further details of which are contained In the report on directors’ remuneration on page 55

During the perod ended 31 March 2007, no Ordinary shares were transferred from the Trust 1o beneficianes of the Expenan Performance Share Plan
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N Share options and awards (continued)
{v) Options under the Expernan Share Opuon Plan

Unexerased options granted under this scheme in respect of Ordnary shares in the Company are as follows

Number
of shares
2007 Exercise pnce Period of exercise
Approved 24,008 219 5p From 07 04 2003 to 06 04 20170
8,379 358 Op From 11 06 2004 10 10 06 2011
50,962 381 6p From 06 06 2005 10 05 06 2012
161,335 394 7p From 19 06 2006 10 18 06 2013
256,078 472 9p From 01 06 2007 to 31 05 2014
244,047 501 7p From 31 05 2008 10 30 05 2015
80,186 54 8p from 22 11 20081021 112015
146,459 578 5p From 11 10 2008 t0 10 10 2019
Non-Approved 40,701 211 4p From 07 04 2003 to 06 04 2010
671,751 344 8p From 11 06 2004 10 10 06 2011
54,964 357 3p From 17 12 2004 10 16 12 2011
936,272 367 5p From 06 06 2005 to 05 06 2012
1,659,685 380 1p From 19 06 2006 to 18 06 2013
54,799 426 0p From 02 12 200610 01 12 2013
2,293,658 455 4p From 01 06 2007 to 31 05 2014
21,566 487 9p From 24 11 2007 10 23 11 2014
3,069,242 483 1p From 31 @5 2008 to 30 05 2015
82,273 495 8p From 22 11 2008 to 21 11 2015
3,823,500 521 1p From 02 06 2009 to 01 06 2016
4,021,593 560 Op From 11 10 2008 to0 10 10 2019
17,701,458

Duning the penod ended 31 March 2007 737,657 Crdinary shares were issued and 2,335,772 Ordinary shares were transferred to beneficiaries
followang the exercise of such share options These awards inciude those granted to directors, further details of winch are contained In the report
on directors' remuneration on pages 53 and 54
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N Share options and awards {continued)
{(w1) Options under the Expenan North Amencan Share Option Plan

Unexercised options granted under this scheme in respect of Ordinary shares in the Company are &s follows

Number

of shares
2007 Exercise price Period of exercise
21,162 344 8p From 11 06 2002 to 10 06 2007
1,013,400 367 5p From 06 06 2003 to 05 06 2008
1,341,664 380 ip From 19 06 2004 to 18 06 2009
49,852 426 0p From 02 12 2004 to 03 12 2009
1,674,819 455 4p From 01 06 2005 10 31 05 2010
6,326 487 9p From 24 11 2005 10 23 11 2010
2,053,635 483 1p From 31 05 2006 10 30 05 2011
8,499 485 8p From 22 11 2006 to 21 11 2011
5,664,935 521 1p From 02 06 2007 to 01 06 2012

11,834,292

All such options are to be satisfied by the transfer of already 1ssued Ordinary shares and shares have been purchased for this purpose by the
Experian Group Limited Empioyee Share Trust Dunng the period ended 31 March 2007, 1,222,262 Ordinary shares were transferred to beneficianes
following the exerase of such options These awards include those granted to directors, further details of which are contained in the report on
directors remuneration on pages 53 and 54

{vi1) Options under the Expenan Sharesave Plan
Unexercised options granted under this scheme 1n respect of Crdinary shares in the Company are as follows

Number

of shares
2007 Exercise price Peniod of exercise
230,344 305 6p From 01 09 2007 to 29 02 2008
157,623 296 8p From 01 09 2008 to 28 02 2008
151,007 3787p From 01 09 2009 t0 28 02 2010
14,098 386 6p From 01 09 2010 to 28 02 2011
730,292 378 7p From 01 0% 2007 to 29 02 2008
634,251 401 4p From 01 09 2008 to 28 02 2009

1,917,615

During the pertod ended 31 March 2007, 2,562 Ordinary shares were issued and 1,232 302 Ordinary shares were transferred to beneficiaries
following the exercise of such share options These awards include those granted to directors, further details of which are contained n the report
on directors remuneratign on page 54

In addition 309,628 Ordinary shares were 1ssued In connection with a savings based share scheme in the United States

{(vin) Awards under the Expenan UK Approved All-Employee Plan/Free Share Plan
Duning the pertod ended 31 March 2007, awards were made under this plan in respect of 3,222,065 Ordinary shares in the Company At 31 March
2007, awards 1n respect of 3 190,815 Ordinary shares remained outstanding

Duning the penod ended 31 March 2007 929,877 Ordinary shares were issued to the Expenan UK Approved Ali-Employee Plan Trust of winch
3,212 were transterred to be beneficianes of the Expenan UK Approved All-Employee Plan
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for the penod ended 31 March 2007

O Principal subsidiary and associate undertakings

The principal subsidiary and associate undertakings at 31 March 2007, all of which are included mn the Group financial statements, are listed below

Percentage
Country of of ordinary
INCOTROration shares held
Experian Finance plc {formerty GUS plo) Engiand and Wales 100%
Experian Holdings Limited England ang Wales 100%
Experian Limited England and Wales 100%
ClantyBlue Lmited England and Wales 100%
QAS umited England and Wales 100%
Expenian AfS Denmark 100%
Expenan Holdings France 5 A France 100%
Creditinform AS Norway 100%
Experian North Amenca, Inc USA 100%
Consumerinfo com USA 100%
PriceGrabber com Usa 100%
LowerMyBills com USA 100%
Experian information Solutions Inc USA 100%
Expenan Services Corporation USA 100%
Expernan Marketing Solutons Inc USA 100%
Assouate
First Amencan Real Estate Solutions LLC usa 20%

None of the above undertakings are directly held by Expenan Group Limited
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Report of the auditors: parent company financial statements

Independent audrtors’ report to the members of Expenan Group Limited

We have audited the parent company financiat statements of Experiar Group Limited for the penod ended 31 March 2007 which comprise the
parent company balance sheet, the parent company profit and loss account and the related notes and those parts of the report on directors’
remuneration descnbed as betng audited These parent company financial statements have been prepared under the accounting policies set out
therem

Wa have reported separately on the Group finanaial statements of Expenan Group Limited for the year ended 31 March 2007

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

The directars’ responsiilities for preparing the annual repott the report on directors’ remuneration and the parent company financial statements in
accordance with apphcabie law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards {Umited Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Prachice) are set out In
the Statement of directors’ respensibilities

Our responsibility 1s to audit the parent company financial statements n accordance with relevant legal and regulatory requirements and
imternational Standards on Auditing {UK and Ireland) This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for the Companys
members as a body In accorgance with Article 110 of the Companies (Jersey) Law 1991 and for no other purpose We do not, In giving this
opinton, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report 1s shown or into whose hands 1t may
come save where exprassly agreed by our pnior consent in wrting

We report to you our opmion as to whether the financal staterments give a true and fair view and are properly prepared in accordance with the
Companies (lersay) Law 1897 We also repart to you whether 1n our Gpimon the information grven 1n the directors’ report Is consistent with the
parent campany financial statements

In addition we report to you I, in aur opinion, we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit

We read the other information contained n the Annual Report, and censider whether it & consistent with the audited parent company financial
statements This other information compnises only the Group financial highiights, the directors’ report, the chairman’ staterment the business
review, the board of directors, the unaudited part of the report on directors’ remuneration and the corporate governance staterment We consider
the implications tor our report if we become aware of any apparent misstatements or matenal inconsistencies with the fimancial statements Qur
responsibilities do not extend to any other information

We also review whether the report on directors’ remuneration complies with the requirements of the Listing Rules of the United Kingdont Financal
Services Authonty and repor to you any non comphance
Rasis of audit opimon

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Audiung (UK and Ireland) 1ssued by the Audming Practices Board An audit
includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant 16 the amounts and disclosures in the parent company financial statements It also
includes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgements made by the directors in the preparation of the financal statements and of
whether the accounting poilcies are appropriate 16 the Company’s circumstances, consistently apphed and adeguately disclosed

We planned and performed our audit so as to abtain all the nformauon and explanations which we considered necessary in order to provide us
with sufficient evidence 10 give reasonable assurance that the parent company financiat staterments are free from material misstaterment whether
caused by fraud or other irregulanty or error In forming our Gpinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of informaton in
the parent company financial staterments

Opimion

In our opinion

» the parent company financial statements give a true and fair view n accordance with Unrted Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Pracuice of
the state of the Company's affairs as at 31 March 2007 and of the loss for the penod then encled,

* the parent company financial statemants have been properly prepared 1n accordance with the Comparves {Jersey) Law 1981, and

 the information given n the directors’ report 15 consistent with the parent company finanaiat statements

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
London United Kingdom

22 May 2007

2007

Expenan Annuat Report 2067 | 133




introduction | Business review | Governance | Financial statements

Reconciliation to the Experian Group
pro forma balance sheet at 31 March 2006

Expenian  Home Retal Intra group Other Expenan
Group Lmited Group balances  adjustmenis Group
pro forma
{Mote a) {Note b} {Note ¢) {Note d)
us$m Usim ussm usim ussm
Non-current assets
Goodwill 5,342 (3,272) - - 2,070
Other intangible assets 926 (108) - - B18
Property, plant and equipment 1,670 (1,211) - - 459
Investment In associates 225 - - - 225
Deferred tax assets 547 (189) - - 358
Ratirement benefit assets n (45) - 14 -
Trade and other recewvables 89 (75) - - 14
QOther financiat assets 158 {13) - - 145
8,988 (4913} - 14 4,089
Current assets
Inventories 1,538 {1,535) - - 3
Trade and other recewables 1,820 (2.574) 1,673 - 929
Current tax assets 207 12) - - 195
Other financial assets 10 (% - - 6
Cash and cash equivalents 385 (228) - - 157
3,970 (4,353) 1,673 - 1,290
Current habiities
Trade and other payables (2421} 1,502 - 8 (911)
Loans and borrowings (303) 1,822 (1,820) - (301)
Current tax habilites (481) 92 - - (389)
Provistons {155) 59 - 96 -
Other finanaal habihties 37 1 - - (36}
(3,397) 3,476 (1,820) 104 (1,637)
Net current assets/(iabilities) 573 {877} (147) 104 {347}
Non-current habilities
Trade and other payables (144) 48 - - (96)
Loans and borrowings (3.599) 386 - - (3,213)
Deierred tax habilites {350} 117 - - (233)
Retirement benefit cbligations - - - {22} {22)
Provisions - 96 - (96) -
Other financial habilities {14) - - - (14)
(4,107) 647 - {i18) (3,578)
Net assets 5,454 (5,143) (147 - 164

A reconodiation between the consalidated balance sheet of Expenan Group Limited and its subsidiary undertakings and the pro forma balance sheet
of the continuing Experian business (‘Experian Group pro forma’) at 21 March 2005 15 set out above

The basis en which this infermaton has been prepared s as follows

(@) As reported n the Annual Report and Financial Statements of GUS pic at 31 March 2006, represented in US$ at the exchange rate prevaiiing

at 31 March 2006

{o} Extracted from the balance sheet information at 31 March 2006, contamed In the 2007 Preliminary Announcement of Home Retail Group plc
issued 1n May 2007, represented in USS at the exchange rate prevaiing at 31 March 2006

{c) Intra group balances represent the ekmination and reclassification of balances between Home Retail Group and Expenian as reported in the

2007 Preliminary Announcement of Home Retarl Group pic

(d) Other adjustments comprise the reclassification of balances beiween Expenan and Home Retall Group
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Shareholder information

Ordinary shareholders

There were 47,679 holders of Ordinary shares at 31 March 2007 and their holdings can be analysed as follows

Percentage Number of
Number of of total number Ordnary shares Percentage of
shareholders of shareholders ‘000s Ordinary shares
Over 1,000,000 173 04 781,788 764
100,001 - 1,000,000 432 09 144,883 V42
10,001 - 100,000 1,216 25 36,292 36
5001 - 10,000 1,639 34 11,216 11
2,000 - 5,000 6,568 138 20,047 29
1 - 2000 37,651 790 28,056 27
47,679 1000 1,022,282 1000

Shareholders are further analysed as follows

Percentage Number of
Number of of total number Ordinary shares Percentage of
shareholders of sharehoiders 000s Ordinary shares
Corporates 11,764 247 966,109 845
Individuals 35,915 753 56,173 55
47,679 1000 1,022,282 1000

Experian website

A full range of investor information 1s available at www expenangroup com The 2007 Annual General Meeting { AGM'} will be broadcast iive on
the Internet, further details are included in the notice of meeting and on the website

Electronic shareholder communication

Sharehalders may register jor Shareview, an electronic communication service provided by Lloyds TSB Registrars on behalf of the Company’s

Registrar, Lloyds TSB (Jersey) Services Limited Registration 15 via the Company’s website www experiangroup com, or direct via

WWW expenansharewew com

The service enables shareholders 1¢ access @ comprehensive range of shareholder services onling, ncluding dwvidend payment information, the ability
to check shareholdings, amend address or bank details and submeit AGM proxy voting instructions

when registering for Shareview, shareholders can select ther preferred commurucation method, post or email Subject to shareholder approval of
amendments to the Company s Articles of Association all shareholders will receive a wnitten notification of the availlability on the Group's website of
shareholder documents such as the interrm and annual reports unless they have elected to receve either notrfication via email or paper copies of

shareholder documents

Dividend Retnvestment Plan {'DRIP)

The DRIP enables shareholders to use their cash dividends to purchase Experian shares Shareholders who wish to participate in the DRIP for the first
ume, in respect of the second intenm dividend 1o be paid on 27 July 2007, should return a completed and signed DRIP mandate form 1o be recerved
by the Registrar, by no later than 29 June 2007 For further details please contact the Registrars at the address below

Capital Gains Tax ('CGT' ) base cost for UK shareholders

On 10 October 2006, GUS pic separated its Experian business from its Home Retall Group business by way of demerger Following the demerger,
GUS shareholders at 4 30 pm on Fniday 6 October 2006 were entitled to receive one share in Expenan Group Limited and one share in Home Reiall
Group plc for every share they held 1n GUS plc at that ume

The previous base cost of any GUS plc shares held at 4 30pm on 6 Qctober 2006 1s apportianed for UK CGT purposes in the foliowing ratio
58 235% to Expenan Group Limited shares and 41 765% to Home Retall Group plc shares {based on the closing prices of the respective shares on
their first day of trading after their agmission to the Offical List of the London Stock Exchange on 11 October 2006}

For GUS plc shares acquired prior to the demerger of Burberry on 13 December 2005 whuch are affected by both the Burberry demerger and the
subsequen: separation of Expernan and Home Retall Group the onginal CGT base cost 1s apportioned 50 604% to Expenan Group Limited shares
36 293% to Home Retail Group plc shares and 13 103% to Burberry Group pic shares
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Shareholder information

American Depositary Receipts {'ADR’)

Experian has a spansored Level 1 ADR programme, for winch The Bank of New York acts as Depositary The Level 1 ADR programme 15 not hsted on
a US siock exchange and trades in the over-the-counter market under the symbol EXPGY Each ADR represents one Experian Group Lirmited
Ordinary share For further information please contact

Shareholder Relations
The Bank of New York
PO Box 11248

Church Street Station
New York

NY 10286 - 1258
Urited States

T 1 610 382 7836 (from the US 1-888-BNY-ADRS)

Financial calendar

Second intenm dividend record date 29 June 2007

First quarter trading update 12 July 2007
Annual General Meeting”* 18 July 2007
Second ntenm dividend to be pad 27 July 2007

First half trading update 10 Qctober 2007
Intenim announcerngnt 15 November 2007
Third quarter trading update January 2008
Preliminary announcement of results May 2008

* 10 be held at the Four Seasons Hote! Sitmmonscourt Road, Bublin 4, Ireland at @ 30 am on Wednesday, 18 July 2007

Contacts

Corporate headquarters Registered office
Newenham House 22 Grenwille Street
Northern Cross St Helier

Malahide Road Jersey JE4 8PX
Dublin 17

Ireland Registered no 93905

T 353 4 846 9100
F 3531846 9130

Registrars

Expenian Shareholder Services
Lloyds TSR {Jersey) Services Limited
PO Box 63

11-12 Esplanade

St Helier

lersey JE4 BPH

T 44 121 415 7586
for 0845 601 0810 from the UK)

Text phone faciity + 44 121 415 7028
{or 0870 600 3950 from the UK)
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Corporate headgquarters

Expenan Group Limited
Newenham House
Northern Cross
Malatude Road

Dublin 17

Ireland

T +353 (0} 1 846 9100
F +353{0) 1 846 G150

Cperational headquarters

Expenan

Talbot House
Talbot Street
Nottingham
NGB0 1TH
United Kingdom

T +44 (0} 115941 0888
F +44 (0) 115 934 4505

Corporate ‘
Responsibility
Report

www.experiancrreport.com’

This comprehensive online report explains
Experian s CR strategy and how we are
managing our responsibilities in six key areas

www.experiangroup.com

Corporate office

Experan
Cardinal Place
80 Victona Street
London

SWIE 5IL

United Kingdom

T +44 (0) 20 304 24200
F +44 (0) 20 304 24250

Expernian

475 Anton Blvd
Costa Mesa
CA 92626
United States

T +1 714 830 7000
F +1714 830 2449

A

3

Explaining
Experian
www.explainingexperian.com

Explaining Expenan prowides further insight for
investors into what Expenan does our products
and services and the markets we serve

This document opens as a PDF
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